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1 (Note: I n session at 9:00.) 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Good morning. I t ' s 

3 9:05 on Monday, September 24th i n Porter H a l l i n 

4 Santa Fe, New Mexico. This i s a meeting of the O i l 

5 Conservation Commission t h a t has come together f o r 

6 the purpose of d e l i b e r a t i n g Consolidated Cases 14784 

7 and 14785, which are the a p p l i c a t i o n s of New Mexico 

8 O i l and Gas Ass o c i a t i o n and the Independent 

9 Petroleum Association of New Mexico f o r amendment of 

10 c e r t a i n p r o v i s i o n s of T i t l e 19 Chapter 15 of the New 

11 Mexico A d m i n i s t r a t i v e Code Concerning P i t s , 

12 Closed-loop Systems, Below-grade Tanks, Sumps and 

13 Other A l t e r n a t i v e Methods Related t o the Foregoing, 

14 and Amending Other Rules t o Conform w i t h Changes 

15 State-wide. 

16 I am Jami Bailey, D i r e c t o r of the O i l 

17 Conservation D i v i s i o n ; Greg Bloom i s here, who i s 

18 the designee of the Commissioner of Public Lands; 

19 and Dr. Balch, who the designee of the Energy, 

20 Minerals and Natural Resources Department. A l l 

21 three commissioners are here. We do have a quorum 

22 of the Commission. 

23 We are t r y i n g something d i f f e r e n t i f i t 

24 works f o r the commissioners. I t may or may not be 

25 h e l p f u l . We have taken the amended s u b m i t t a l of New 
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1 Mexico O i l and Gas Ass o c i a t i o n -- h e r e a f t e r I w i l l 

2 c a l l them NMOGA -- t h e i r amended r e d - l i n e 

3 a p p l i c a t i o n , consolidated i t w i t h the IPANM 

4 suggested changes, proposed changes, and i t i s now 

5 up on the screen so we can look at what we are 

6 discussing and make our changes or not, but t o 

7 record our decisions there so we can a l l be aware of 

8 what we have done. 

9 I n accordance w i t h Rule 19.15.3.12E1, the 

10 Commission w i l l make a de c i s i o n i n open session on 

11 the proposed r u l e changes based on the motion t h a t 

12 includes reasons f o r the dec i s i o n . So at the end of 

13 every s e c t i o n we need t o vote on the motion f o r 

14 whatever we have decided and reasons f o r t h a t 

15 d e c i s i o n . 

16 Upon the Commission's issuance of the 

17 order i n these cases, the commission c l e r k s h a l l 

18 post the order on the D i v i s i o n ' s website and mail or 

19 E-mail a copy of the order t o each person who 

20 presented non-technical testimony at the hearing or 

21 who f i l e d a prehearing statement or the person's 

22 att o r n e y . 

23 Before we get s t a r t e d , our commission 

24 a t t o r n e y may have a few words of guidance f o r us 

25 today. 
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1 MR. SMITH: Just a couple. This i s --

2 f i r s t of a l l , l e t me say t h i s t o everyone i n the 

3 room. This i s d e l i b e r a t i o n . I t i s p u b l i c , but t h a t 

4 does not mean the p u b l i c has the o p p o r t u n i t y t o 

5 comment. Regardless of how badly you want t o say 

6 something, don't. I f you don't t h i n k t h a t you can 

7 avoid i t , go outside and say i t . But you may not 

8 i n t e r r u p t the d e l i b e r a t i o n s of the Commission. 

9 This i s a rule-making, not an 

10 a d j u d i c a t i o n . You a l l are not only able but I t h i n k 

11 probably encouraged t o take i n t o account your own 

12 exp e r t i s e i n judging these matters. That's one of 

13 the reasons t h a t you are on the Commission. You 

14 have a r u l e t h a t has been i n place now f o r a wh i l e . 

15 You have proposed amendments. You have heard 

16 evidence on the amendments and you want t o look f o r 

17 s u b s t a n t i a l evidence t o back up whatever dec i s i o n 

18 you make. S u b s t a n t i a l evidence, as I appreciate i t , 1 

19 i s evidence t h a t would lead a reasonable mind t o the 

20 conclusion t o which you have come, t a k i n g i n t o 

21 account a l l of the evidence t h a t ' s been put before 

22 you. 

23 You can have s u b s t a n t i a l evidence on both 

24 sides. You can have s u b s t a n t i a l evidence f o r A and 

25 s u b s t a n t i a l evidence f o r not A at the same t ime . 
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1 Okay? That's a l l I have t o say unless you have 

2 questions. 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Do you have any 

4 questions? 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I do not. 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Commissioner Balch, do 

7 you have questions? 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Not at t h i s time. 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. The screen w i l l 

10 hold the consolidated a p p l i c a t i o n s . I f t h i s does 

11 not seem t o be h e l p f u l or i f i t seems t o be a 

12 problem, we are not bound t o use i t . I t was j u s t an 

13 idea t h a t could help us i n our d e l i b e r a t i o n s . 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k i t w i l l be 

15 nice. We w i l l be able t o l i t e r a l l y be on the same 

16 page. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k i t ' s a great 

18 idea t o t r a c k anything t h a t we change. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I do, too. Okay. 

20 Then why don't we get t o i t . Let's be sure t o speak 

21 up f o r the court r e p o r t e r so she can hear what we 

22 are t a l k i n g about. I f we go se c t i o n by section, 

23 then we can take care of t h i s i n a reasonably 

24 concise way. However, I do expect t h a t there w i l l 

25 be some back and f o r t h , because what we decide at 
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1 one p o i n t may not hold t r u e f o r what 1s l a t e r on i n 

2 the r u l e . 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k I may have 

4 one question r a t h e r than d i v i n g s t r a i g h t i n t o the 

5 r u l e . And t h a t i s the proposed f i n d i n g s . There are 

6 some f i n d i n g s t h a t say we are unable t o do t h i s and 

7 other f i n d i n g s t h a t say we are not -- I guess I 

8 would l i k e c l a r i f i c a t i o n . 

9 MR. SMITH: I was messing w i t h my 

10 computer. I'm sorr y . 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f we have opposing 

12 f i n d i n g s , i f somebody says the hearing i s not 

13 appropriate t o move forward, i f t h a t ' s appropriate. 

14 MR. SMITH: I t h i n k you can move forward. 

15 I read them. 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So we are f i n e 

17 u n t i l --

18 MR. SMITH: This i s not a t r i a l , not res 

19 j u d i c a t a . 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That's a l l I need. 

21 Thank you. 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: There may be 

23 mis represen ta t ions i n severa l of the s u b m i t t a l s . 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I understand t h a t . I 

25 j u s t wanted t o make sure t h a t was brought up. 
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1 MR. SMITH: That's r i g h t . No, you can 

2 move forward. What you have a l o t here i s argument. 

3 As I was reading through, what I saw i n one i s t h a t 

4 OCD had supported someone's p o s i t i o n i n p a r t i c u l a r . 

5 I t h i n k i t was one of the i n d u s t r y submissions. I 

6 d i d n ' t r e c a l l t h a t anyway. My r e c o l l e c t i o n was OCD 

7 was n e u t r a l throughout t h i s . So you're going t o see 

8 a l o t of argument i n there. I f you are persuaded by 

9 some of the argument, t h a t ' s f i n e . But much of i t 

10 i s argument. Closing arguments are c l o s i n g 

11 arguments. You have t o take i n t o account what you 

12 know and the evidence t h a t was placed before you. 

13 Lawyer argument i s not f a c t unless i t ' s , of course, 

14 from me. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The f i r s t proposed 

16 change i s i n 19.15.17.5, the e f f e c t i v e date. And 

17 the i n d u s t r y proposal i s t o change the o l d date of 

18 the curr e n t r u l e t o 30 days a f t e r p u b l i c a t i o n of the 

19 f i n a l r u l e i n the New Mexico Registry. Do you have 

20 any opinions on t h a t proposal f o r the e f f e c t i v e 

21 date? 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k t h a t would be 

23 f i n e . Seems l i k e i t ' s i n l i n e w i t h the e f f e c t i v e 

24 dates of other new r u l e s t o stand a s - i s . 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And there's the 
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l r language i n there t h a t i f we need a l a t e r date than 

2 t h a t we can come t o t h a t i n t h i s rule-making, so I 

3 t h i n k i t ' s f l e x i b l e enough. 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So I move t h a t we 

5 accept these proposed changes i n 19.15.17.5. A l l i n 

6 favor? 

7 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Aye. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Aye. 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: A l l opposed? No one. 

10 The next s e c t i o n where there are proposed changes 

11 are i n 19.15.17.7, D e f i n i t i o n s . We have q u i t e a few 

12 d e f i n i t i o n s t o discuss. The f i r s t one i s P o r t i o n B 

13 f o r below-grade tank. The proposal i s "means a 

14 vessel w i t h greater than a 500-gallon capacity, 

15 excluding sumps and pressurized p i p e l i n e d r i p traps 

16 i n s t a l l e d w i t h i n an excavation or bu r i e d below the 

17 surrounding ground surface's e l e v a t i o n . Below-grade 

18 tank does not include an above-ground storage tank 

19 t h a t i s located above or at the surrounding ground 

20 surface's e l e v a t i o n and i s surrounded by berms." Do 

21 e i t h e r of you have an opi n i o n on t h a t d e f i n i t i o n ? 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Madam Chair, j u s t a 

23 question. What was the capacity again t h a t you 

24 read? 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The s u b m i t t a l was 500 
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1 g a l l o n s . The testimony s a i d f i v e b a r r e l s . 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. I would be 

3 comfortable w i t h f i v e b a r r e l s there based on the 

4 testimony we heard. 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And I remember from 

6 discussing t h i s i n hearing i n d i r e c t , t h a t my main 

7 concerns were t h a t the r u l e should address f u n c t i o n 

8 r a t h e r than form, at l e a s t t o some degree. My notes 

9 say the tank i s f o r storage, the sump i s f o r f l u i d s 

10 t h a t are i n t r a n s i t . You are not going t o leave i t 

11 there f o r any s u b s t a n t i a l p e r i o d of time. I t should 

12 be a r e l a t i v e l y small volume. 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So would you l i k e t o 

14 include language t o t h a t e f f e c t or are you r e l y i n g 

15 on the l a t e r discussion concerning below-grade tanks 

16 where i t t a l k s about de minimis volumes i n the tank? 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Where i s t h a t 

18 d e f i n i t i o n ? 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The de minimis? 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Was t h a t modified i n 

21 17.17 where they are t a l k i n g about sumps? 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Section 11. Sump as 

23 opposed t o below-grade tank. A sump has the de 

24 minimis t r a n s i t but a below-grade tank i s a holding 

25 tank. 
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1 COMMISSIONER BALCH: As long as i t ' s c l e a r 

2 somewhere else i n the r u l e then I have no problem 

3 w i t h the m o d i f i c a t i o n t o the f i v e b a r r e l s . 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The OCD suggests t h a t 

5 the language says "Below-grade tank means a vessel 

6 excluding sumps and pressurized p i p e l i n e d r i p traps 

7 where a p o r t i o n of the tank's s i d e w a l l i s below the 

8 surrounding ground surface e l e v a t i o n . Below-grade 

9 tank does not include an above-ground storage tank 

10 t h a t i s located above or at the surrounding ground 

11 surface's e l e v a t i o n and i s surrounded by berms." 

12 I would l i k e t o use the OCD language but 

13 i n s e r t the f i v e b a r r e l d e f i n i t i o n , i f t h a t ' s -- i f 

14 you both would l i k e t o have the f i v e b a r r e l 

15 d e s c r i p t i o n . 

16. COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah, I would be i n 

17 agreement w i t h t h a t . I believe t h a t coincides 

18 almost p r e c i s e l y w i t h what NMOGA had except they 

19 s u b s t i t u t e d f i v e b a r r e l s . I t h i n k t h a t would be 

20 f i n e . 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Which e x h i b i t i s 

22 that? 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: OCD E x h i b i t 2, Page 1 . 

24 So you w o u l d l i k e t o have "means a v e s s e l w i t h 

25 g r e a t e r t h a n a f i v e b a r r e l " ? 
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1 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Five b a r r e l , c o r r e c t . 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Commissioner Balch, i s 

3 t h a t what you would l i k e t o have? To change the 500 

4 g a l l o n t o f i v e b a r r e l ? 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That would be f i n e . 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And then accept the 

7 r e s t of the language t h a t OCD suggested where i t 

8 would say, "Below-grade tank means a vessel w i t h 

9 greater than a f i v e b a r r e l capacity excluding sumps 

10 and pressurized p i p e l i n e d r i p t r a p s , " i s t h a t 

11 correct? Okay. 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Do we need t o wait 

13 f o r t h i s t o be on the screen? 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, I t h i n k they w i l l 

15 catch up w i t h us as soon as they can. The next 

16 change of d e f i n i t i o n s i s i n the d e f i n i t i o n f o r 

17 closed-loop system where the language "without using 

18 below-grade tanks or p i t s " would be deleted. Do 

19 e i t h e r of you have --

2 0 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k t h a t depends. 

21 Without using below-grade tanks or p i t s i s SO i f you 

22 have a s i t e on a slope you can s t i l l use a 

23 closed-loop system, whereas p o s s i b l y the e x i s t i n g 

24 language could d i s a l l o w t h a t . 

2 5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I agree w i t h t h a t . I 
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1 t h i n k t h a t i t l i m i t s the v a r i e t y of ways the 

2 closed-loop system can be used. Do we a l l agree t o 

3 delete the language as suggested? 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f i n d t h a t 

5 acceptable, yes. 

6 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I do as w e l l . 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. Confined 

8 groundwater i s the next proposed language change. 

9 MR. SMITH: I'm sorr y , can you go back and 

10 l e t Theresa know what you d i d on t h a t , the new C? 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: C does delete the l a s t 

12 phrase of t h a t d e f i n i t i o n . Yes. The next question 

13 i s do we want t o have the d e f i n i t i o n of confined 

14 groundwater as p a r t of the rule? The charge t o the 

15 O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n i s t o p r o t e c t waters 

16 designated by the State Engineer. I t does not make 

17 a d i s t i n c t i o n between confined or unconfined. 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k there's some 

19 challenge t o t r y t o determine whether water i s 

20 confined or not. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes, there i s . 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You would know i t 

23 would be -- by t h i s d e f i n i t i o n you would know i t 

24 would be confined only i f the water came t o the 

25 surface i n an Ar t e s i a n way. But i f the head was 
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1 such t h a t i t rose up ten f e e t from the a q u i f e r or 

2 w i t h i n two f e e t of the surface, you may not know 

3 t h a t n e c e s s a r i l y . That c o n d i t i o n could change, 

4 depending upon other f a c t o r s , seasonal changes t o 

5 water f l u x from r i v e r s . A l l kinds of things could 

6 a f f e c t whether the water i s confined, so i t may not 

7 be confined i n August but i t could be i n February. 

8 So I t h i n k i t may be a complicating f a c t o r t o have a 

9 separate d e f i n i t i o n , e s p e c i a l l y i f the State 

10 Engineer's O f f i c e does not have m u l t i p l e d e f i n i t i o n s 

11 of groundwater. 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: They may, but the 

13 charge t o the OCD i s t o p r o t e c t water designated by 

14 the State Engineer. I t does not make a d i s t i n c t i o n 

15 between confined and uhconfined. 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I would coincide w i t h 

17 Commissioner Balch. There i s , as Dr. Neeper pointed 

18 out, an unsupportable d i s t i n c t i o n or d i f f i c u l t y i n 

19 determining i f groundwater i s confined or 

20 unconfined, so I would not include t h i s new 

21 d e f i n i t i o n i n the f i n a l r u l e . 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: As a counterpoint t o 

23 t h a t , why would we need a d e f i n i t i o n of confined 
| 

24 groundwater? s | 
1 
I 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: There are references j 
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1 l a t e r i n the proposal t o d i s t i n g u i s h between 

2 confined and unconfined as f a r as some of the 

3 proposals are concerned. 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH:' I t h i n k the concept 

5 i s i f you have confined groundwater, which I take t o 

6 mean you have something i s o l a t e d and under pressure, 

7 i s you have l i t t l e chance of contaminants spreading 

8 from t h a t a q u i f e r . But I t h i n k the f a c t or the 

9 d i f f i c u l t y i n d i s c e r n i n g whether the water i s 

10 a c t u a l l y confined i s what makes me uncomfortable 

11 about having the d e f i n i t i o n i n the r u l e . 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: A l l three of us r e j e c t 

13 the i n s e r t i o n of t h i s d e f i n i t i o n of confined water; 

14 i s t h a t correct? 

15 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That's c o r r e c t . 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. The next 

18 d e f i n i t i o n i s "Continuously f l o w i n g watercourse 

19 means a r i v e r , stream or creek t h a t i s named or 

20 del i n e a t e d by a s o l i d blue l i n e on a USGA quadrangle 

21 map having a scale f a c t o r of one t o 24,000 and t h a t 

22 t y p i c a l l y has water f l o w i n g d u r i n g the m a j o r i t y of 

23 the days of the year. This does not include 

24 ephemeral washes, arroyos and s i m i l a r depressions 

2 5 t h a t do not have f l o w i n g water d u r i n g the m a j o r i t y 
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1 of days duri n g the year." 

2 Do e i t h e r of you have an opi n i o n on 

3 i n s e r t i o n of t h a t d e f i n i t i o n ? 

4 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I f i n d t h a t 

5 acceptable. I t looks l i k e there's agreement between 

6 OCD's d e f i n i t i o n and NMOGA's proposed d e f i n i t i o n . 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I be l i e v e so. 

8 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I f i n d t h a t 

9 acceptable. 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k i n p r a c t i c e 

11 t h a t ' s something t h a t could be enforced. 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I agree w i t h both of 

13 you. 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t ' s common mapping 

15 terms. You know the exact scale and the d e f i n i t i o n . 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we w i l l accept t h i s 

17 proposed d e f i n i t i o n and include the d e f i n i t i o n f o r 

18 continuously f l o w i n g watercourse. 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

20 MR. SMITH: Could I j u s t r a i s e an issue 

21 here? 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

23 MR. SMITH: I t h i n k you want t o make sure 

24 t h a t you have the d e f i n i t i o n from the l e g a l 

25 perspective t h a t ' s manageable. You might want t o 
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1 discuss how the determination of flow m a j o r i t y days 

2 of the year i s going t o be determined. 

3 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Half a year plus one? 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Surface water i n New 

5 Mexico i s a r e a l i n t e r e s t i n g t h i n g because, you 

6 know, I don't t h i n k you are going t o f i n d something 

7 t h a t ' s h a l f plus one t h a t ' s ephemeral. Generally 

8 i t ' s u s u a l l y f l o w i n g or g e n e r a l l y not u s u a l l y 

9 f l o w i n g . How t h a t enters i n t o the d e f i n i t i o n I'm 

10 not completely c l e a r . 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Let me so t h i s 

12 becomes important i n the d e f i n i t i o n of a 

13 continuously f l o w i n g watercourse when we s t a r t 

14 l o o k i n g at setbacks, so I t h i n k we could add 

15 something i n there where you could have the same 

16 s o r t of setback f o r an arroyo t h a t we do f o r the 

17 continuously f l o w i n g watercourse or something along 

18 those l i n e s . The f a c t t h a t the arroyo can contain 

19 water would be respected. 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The arroyo can 

21 contain water but i t would only contain i t during 

22 the r a i n event at t h a t l o c a t i o n or above. But by 

23 t h a t d e f i n i t i o n , i f you were t o look at San Antonio, 

24 New Mexico and look at the Rio Grande i t would be an 

25 ephemeral stream many p a r t s of the year when i t ' s 
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1 not f l o w i n g at the surface. However, t h a t would be 

2 a s o l i d blue l i n e on the USGS map and t h a t example 

3 would not f a l l i n t o the b i n . So I t h i n k perhaps the 

4 question i s whether the s o l i d blue l i n e covers a l l 

5 the cases of surface water fl o w t h a t we want i t t o . 

6 The other example I would p o i n t out i s the 

7 Rio Salado, which i s at about Mile Marker 165. I 

8 t h i n k t h a t r i v e r i s a dashed l i n e where i t crosses 

9 the freeway and you are lucky t o see water i n there 

10 f i v e times a year. 

11 MR. SMITH: You guys know t h i s s t u f f . I 

12 don't. I'm only worried about your language and the 

13 law. But the way t h i s i s d r a f t e d , i t ' s a s o l i d blue 

14 l i n e on the USGS map and having a scale f a c t o r and 

15 t h a t t y p i c a l l y has water f l o w i n g during the m a j o r i t y 

16 of days duri n g the year. I t ' s a conjunction. So 

17 the f a c t t h a t i t ' s a blue l i n e i s n ' t going t o get 

18 you anywhere. I t has t o have both of the conditions 

19 f u l f i l l e d , according t o your language. 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: But i f we change and 

21 and use "or" i t would be both what's mapped and --

22 MR. SMITH: Then i t would be e i t h e r . The 

23 question i s whether t h a t s u i t s you. 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Let me -- I don't 

25 know i f t h i s i s h e l p f u l or not, but wasn't NMOGA's 
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1 o r i g i n a l i n t e n t here t o have something which b e t t e r 

2 delineated watercourse because they f e l t t h a t a 

3 playa or j u s t a p u b l i c water a f t e r r a i n was 

4 sometimes being seen by inspectors as being a body 

5 of water? Wasn't t h a t the issue? 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes, I believe i t was. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Really i t would 

8 depend on -- b a s i c a l l y you want t o come up w i t h 

9 something i n the r u l e , I t h i n k , where i f the 

10 inspector went out, there wouldn't be an ambiguity 

11 whether i t was a reg u l a r watercourse or something 

12 ephemeral. The map designation, i f you were t o 

13 scratch everything a f t e r the one t o 24,000, t h a t 

14 would be very simple t o enforce. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes, i t would be, 

16 r e l y i n g simply on those maps. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The problem i s the 

18 maps or USGS quadrangles are updated every 2 0 t o 3 0 

19 years and thi n g s can change i n t h a t amount of time, 

20 so you do want t o leave some f l e x i b i l i t y , 

21 p a r t i c u l a r l y i f someone were t o b u i l d an i r r i g a t i o n 

22 d i t c h . I f i t d i d n ' t show up on the map f o r 15 years 

23 or so, t h a t would be a continuously f l o w i n g 

24 watercourse. I t would e v e n t u a l l y --

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t would appear on 
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1 the USGS. 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t would e v e n t u a l l y , 

3 but i t might take some time t o do so. So you want 

4 something t o cover the changes i n water flow t h a t 

5 could make something t h a t was re g u l a r ephemeral or 

6 something t h a t was not there at a l l or ephemeral 

7 i n t o a r e g u l a r flow. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: An i r r i g a t i o n d i t c h 

9 wouldn't q u a l i f y by the very f i r s t words of the 

10 d e f i n i t i o n because i t means a r i v e r , stream or 

11 creek. 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: To me the simplest 

13 d e f i n i t i o n , the t h i n g most enforceable, i s t o r e a l l y 

14 s t r i k e e v e r y t h i n g a f t e r the one i n 24,000, and i f we 

15 t h i n k t h a t leaves too much leeway we may have t o add 

16 other language somewhere else or come up w i t h other 

17 language t h a t b e t t e r describes the i n t e n t . 

18 MR. SMITH: You could make t h i s 

19 d i s j u n c t i v e , use the word "or," but i t doesn't make 

20 i t less vague w i t h respect t o determining the 

21 m a j o r i t y of the days, but i f you use the "or" i t 

22 would give you more f l e x i b i l i t y i n your r u l e so i t 

23 could be " r i v e r , stream or creek" t h a t USGS..."or a 

24 r i v e r , stream or creek t h a t t y p i c a l l y has water 

25 f l o w i n g through i t . " At l e a s t then you have SOME 
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1 f l e x i b i l i t y t o make the determination. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And gives an unbiased 

3 reference out i n the f i e l d i f i t ' s s t r u c k completely 

4 f o r the p e r i o d a f t e r one t o 24,000 so t h a t there are 

5 no questionable c a l l s f o r enforcement. 

6 MR. SMITH: That's r i g h t . 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You are saying a f t e r 

8 the one t o 24,000 "or has water c o n t i n u a l l y f l o w i n g 

9 through i t " ? 

10 MR. SMITH: No. T y p i c a l l y -- you could 

11 keep the m a j o r i t y of days. The only reason I b r i n g 

12 i t up i s i f you put a p e r i o d a f t e r the one i n 

13 24,000, t h a t ' s i t . There w i l l be no f l e x i b i l i t y i n 

14 making the determination. The issue i s do you want 

15 f l e x i b i l i t y i n making t h a t determination? 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t seems t o me t h a t 

17 the i n t e n t of the proposed changes i s t o remove 

18 ambiguity and make t h i n g s more e a s i l y enforced, so 

19 i n my mind t h a t has t o be a con s i d e r a t i o n . I f you 

2 0 leave too many th i n g s i n there ambiguous, then you 

21 could have something t h a t would have v a r y i n g 

22 judgment of whoever goes out there. I f you happen 

23 t o go out on one of the non-majority days and 

24 there's flow, the next week you might go out and 

25 have e x a c t l y the opposite case. 
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1 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That's r i g h t . 

2 MR. SMITH: That's a judgment c a l l . You 

3 are above my pay grade now. 

4 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Just t o summarize, I 

5 t h i n k we are lo o k i n g at three d i f f e r e n t t h i n g s . One 

6 i s continuously f l o w i n g watercourse. Later i t comes 

7 up when we are lo o k i n g at setbacks. We are t a l k i n g 

8 about using the d e f i n i t i o n t o help p r o t e c t water. 

9 We are going t o make the change t o keep companies 

10 from being dinged i n a p p r o p r i a t e l y . We also want t o 

11 use i t f o r enforcement, and then the i r r i g a t i o n or 

12 canal was i n t e r e s t i n g because we have some u n l i n e d 

13 canals t h a t do have contact w i t h groundwater and 

14 t h a t can be recharging i n d i f f e r e n t areas. And a 

15 l o t of i r r i g a t e d canals don't have water i n them 

16 more than h a l f a year. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Sure. They have them 

18 i r r i g a t i o n season. 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Exactly. 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So I guess the 

21 question would be i f you were t o propose a p i t 

22 w i t h i n X distance of perhaps an i r r i g a t i o n canal 

23 t h a t Commissioner Bloom mentioned, do you want t o 

24 w r i t e a r u l e where t h a t ' s okay i n December and not 

25 okay i n July? Or would you l i k e i t t o be always not 
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1 be okay or always be okay? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And t h a t has t o be a 

3 judgment c a l l . 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the i n t e n t i s 

5 i f there's going t o be continuously f l o w i n g water at 

6 some p o i n t i n time as a r e g u l a r watercourse, then 

7 you want t o p r o t e c t i t . Since you are separating 

8 out the arroyos and t h i n g s l i k e t h a t , you can't 

9 p r e d i c t when those are going t o have water, but t o 

10 me, t h a t i r r i g a t i o n d i t c h i s going t o be a r e g u l a r 

11 watercourse, and I do b e l i e v e a one i n 24,000 

12 quadrangle w i l l show us the blue l i n e even i f they 

13 don't have water i n them f o r one month out of the 

14 year. 

15 So t h a t p a r t i c u l a r case would be p r e d i c t e d 

16 by the one i n 24,000 map d e f i n i t i o n , the blue l i n e . 

17 But you want t o b u i l d i n enough f l e x i b i l i t y so t h a t 

18 i f someone b u i l d s a new d i t c h t h a t i t would be 

19 p r o t e c t e d as w e l l . I guess t h a t ' s the p o i n t . 

2 0 MR. SMITH: Remember t h a t you are not 

21 stuck w i t h the language being proposed here. You 

22 can make whatever adjustments here t h a t you want, 

23 i n c l u d i n g saying "This d e f i n i t i o n includes 

24 i r r i g a t i o n ditches but does not include," and then 

25 go on i f you have t h i n g s t h a t you are p a r t i c u l a r l y 
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1 concerned about. 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH:- I don't want t o make 

3 things o v e r l y complicated. I wanted t o b r i n g up 

4 those issues. 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: They are important 

6 issues. 

7 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: They are important. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We need t o look at 

9 them. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So what i s your 

12 proposed language? 

13 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: As i t stands now, I 

14 would be concerned t h a t an i r r i g a t i o n canal would 

15 not be considered a continuously f l o w i n g watercourse 

16 and be pr o t e c t e d as such, because a continuously 

17 f l o w i n g watercourse i s only a r i v e r , stream or creek 

18 t h a t i s named, delineated, and not an i r r i g a t i o n 

19 d i t c h or an acequia. So perhaps we add t h a t i n 

20 there and we could change the "and" t o an "or." 

21 Maybe t h a t gets us where we need t o go. 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You are proposing 

23 "means a r i v e r , stream, creek or i r r i g a t i o n " ? 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Channel, canal. 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And put i n the "or." 
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1 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Separate the one i n 

2 24,000 "or t h a t t y p i c a l l y has water f l o w i n g during 

3 the m a j o r i t y of days of the year." 

4 MR. SMITH: I'm sorry, t h a t ' s not going t o 

5 get you where you want t o go. Unless you might have 

6 an i r r i g a t i o n d i t c h t h a t i s a s o l i d blue l i n e on the 

7 USGS you're not going t o be able t o add i r r i g a t i o n 

8 d i t c h at the l e a d - i n . You w i l l have t o add i t a f t e r 

9 the "or" i f t h a t ' s what you want t o p r o t e c t . 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So i t could be --

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You would have t o 

12 have a p e r i o d a f t e r one t o 24,000. 

13 MR. SMITH: No. I f you put an "or" there 

14 i t would be a long sentence but i t would be 

15 grammatically a l l r i g h t . 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t would be "Having a 

17 scale f a c t o r of one t o 24,000 or t h a t t y p i c a l l y has 

18 water f l o w i n g d u r i n g the m a j o r i t y of the days of the 

19 year or i s an i r r i g a t i o n channel." 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BALCH: At the r i s k of 

21 complicating t h i n g s f u r t h e r you could say, "Or 

22 t y p i c a l l y has water f l o w i n g through i t f o r some 

23 s u b s t a n t i a l p e r i o d of the year." I guess the 

24 m a j o r i t y of the days i s a l i t t l e too confined 

25 because the i r r i g a t i o n d i t c h i s not going t o have 
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water f l o w i n g the m a j o r i t y of the days of the year. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: U n t i l October 1st? 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That's the i r r i g a t i o n 

4 season, but j u s t because t h a t ' s the season doesn't 

5 mean there's water always going t o be i n the d i t c h . 

6 Sometimes i n Socorro i t comes i n i n June or Jul y and 

7 i f you have a drought l i k e we are having now, i t may 

8 end e a r l y . So i t may only have water i n i t f o r one 

9 or two days i n the year when i t ' s most c r u c i a l f o r 

10 water. 

11 MR. SMITH: You can change i t t o 

12 . s u b s t a n t i a l i f you want. But i f you want t o p r o t e c t 

13 i r r i g a t i o n d i t c h e s , put i r r i g a t i o n d i tches i n there 

14 i s my advice. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So i t can read "on a 

16 USGS quadrangle map having a scale f a c t o r of one t o 

17 24,000, an i r r i g a t i o n channel, or." What do you 

18 t h i n k about that? 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So replace the "and" 

20 w i t h "or an i r r i g a t i o n channel or"? 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Put a comma a f t e r 

22 24,000, an i r r i g a t i o n channel, comma, or. 

23 MR. SMITH: Then you are p u t t i n g 

24 i r r i g a t i o n channel i n there, which i s not a r i v e r , 

25 stream or creek, so a f t e r your i r r i g a t i o n channel 
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1 or, you are going t o have t o repeat something t h a t 

2 has water f l o w i n g during the m a j o r i t y of days, 

3 modifies. Do you know what I'm saying? 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Or a watercourse t h a t 

5 t y p i c a l l y has water f l o w i n g . 

6 MR. SMITH: I t h i n k t h a t gets you where 

7 you want t o go. Do you want t o keep m a j o r i t y or do 

8 you want t o go back t o su b s t a n t i a l ? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I l i k e m a j o r i t y . What 

10 do you fee l ? 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: The m a j o r i t y gives us 

12 at l e a s t an understanding t h a t i t would be h a l f the 

13 year plus one, and s u b s t a n t i a l could be a l i t t l e b i t 

14 more ambiguous. 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: As long as we 

16 s p e c i f i c a l l y p o i n t out i r r i g a t i o n channels, which I 

17 t h i n k are probably the most l i k e l y gray area t h a t 

18 w i l l be l e f t out. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So Theresa, could you 

20 i n s e r t "having a scale f a c t o r of one t o 24,000 or an 

21 i r r i g a t i o n channel." Make a comma a f t e r the 24,000. 

22 Delete "and" and put "or." 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And a comma? 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: True. A watercourse 

25 t h a t t y p i c a l l y has water f l o w i n g . Does t h a t work 
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1 f o r you? 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k t h a t would 

3 work f o r me, yes. 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I'm comfortable w i t h 

5 t h a t d e f i n i t i o n . 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then we can go on t o 

7 the next d e f i n i t i o n . Let's go t o emergency p i t . 

8 The OCD made a suggestion t h a t emergency p i t means a 

9 p i t t h a t i s constructed i n an emergency t o contain a 

10 s p i l l i n the event of a release. Because a 

11 precautionary p i t i s not an emergency. 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: How would we change 

13 that? 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t would read, 

15 "Emergency p i t means a p i t constructed i n an 

16 emergency t o contain a s p i l l i n the event of a 

17 release." I f i t ' s not changed, t h a t precautionary 

18 p i t t h a t ' s constructed would not have t o have the 

19 clearances, the s i t e l o c a t i o n s . 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Would i t be more 

21 c l e a r t o say, "An emergency p i t means a temporary 

22 p i t t h a t i s constructed i n an emergency as a 

23 precautionary manner"? 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then we run i n t o the 

25 problem w i t h the use of the word "temporary p i t " 
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1 because t h a t ' s a d r i l l i n g or workover p i t . 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Madam Chair, I 

3 remember we discussed t h i s ' d u r i n g the hearing and 

4 t h i s d e f i n i t i o n as you proposed would be s u f f i c i e n t . 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Commissioner Balch, 

6 are you t h i n k i n g ? 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I don't know about 

8 the lawyer words but I'm wondering i f you want t o 

9 say "during an emergency instead" of " i n an 

10 emergency." 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k t h a t ' s an 

12 acceptable change. "Emergency p i t means a p i t t h a t 

13 i s constructed during an emergency t o contain a 

14 s p i l l i n the event." 

15 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Do we need 

16 "precautionary matter" i n there s t i l l ? 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, because t h a t 

18 removes i t from the realm of the emergency. 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Take t h a t out, r i g h t ? 

2 0 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes, delete i t . 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: This i s an attempt t o 

22 deal w i t h a bad s i t u a t i o n . You don't want i t t o be 

23 permanent i n any way. 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Do we a l l agree on 

25 removing the words "as a precautionary matter" and 



Page 2438 
1 instead using the words "during an emergency"? 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

3 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I agree w i t h t h a t , 

4 yes. 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. The next 

6 d e f i n i t i o n t o go t o i s f l o o d p l a i n . I t means U.S. 

7 Army'Corps of Engineers or FEMA documented 100-year 

8 f l o o d p l a i n . I s there any discussion on that? 

10 t h i s was being i n s e r t e d because i t makes i t easy t o 

11 enforce what a f l o o d p l a i n i s . To our f r i e n d s i n 

12 i n d u s t r y , I would comment t h a t FEMA has begun 

13 remapping f l o o d p l a i n s i n New Mexico, and oftentimes 

14 there's been unbelievable disagreement at the county 

15 l e v e l doing i t county by county, and areas are 

16 g e t t i n g cast i n the f l o o d p l a i n s t h a t f o l k s imagine 

17 i s up f o r serious debate. And I would j u s t caution 

18 everyone t o keep an eye on t h i s process and make 

19 sure you check i n w i t h your f l o o d map managers 

20 because sometimes t h i n g s can appear i n a f l o o d p l a i n 

21 and we can get sheet flows and thi n g s l i k e t h a t and 

22 i t can be very d i s r u p t i v e i f you have a l o t of 

23 f l o o d p l a i n added. 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I'm glad t o hear you 

25 say they are reworking on i t on a county-by-county 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Madam Chair , I t h i n k 
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1 basis. But r i g h t now i n New Mexico, i f you go t o 

2 FEMA f l o o d p l a i n s , most of the s t a t e i s broadly 

3 categorized county by county as the whole county i s 

4 X r i s k . So i f you want t o f i n d more d e t a i l e d 

5 i n f o r m a t i o n , i t ' s c e r t a i n l y out there. But 

6 enforceable, u l t i m a t e l y the U.S. Army Corps of 

7 Engineers or FEMA are the n a t i o n a l l y accepted 

8 a u t h o r i t y . 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That's c o r r e c t . 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So s h a l l we accept 

11 t h i s d e f i n i t i o n ? 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I don't see any other 

13 way t o define a f l o o d p l a i n . 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I agree. No other 

15 way t o do i t n e a t l y . 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Let me c o r r e c t t h a t . 

17 There's another way t o define a f l o o d p l a i n but i t 

18 requires two years of a master's student's l i f e . 

19 Because I had a student do a f l o o d p l a i n a nalysis f o r 

20 the Pecos River. I t took her two years. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I don't t h i n k our 

22 inspectors have t h a t o p t i o n , so we w i l l accept t h i s 

23 proposed d e f i n i t i o n and go on t o the d e f i n i t i o n f o r 

24 groundwater. I would l i k e t o p o i n t out t h a t t h i s 

25 d e f i n i t i o n i s not what's recognized by the Water 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb19b22a1 ea 



Page 2440 

1 Q u a l i t y Control Commission i n t h e i r r e g u l a t i o n s 

2 20.6.2.7. That's the Water Q u a l i t y Control 

3 Commission d e f i n i t i o n . 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So the green t e x t 

5 here, t h a t ' s NMOGA's second mo d i f i c a t i o n ? 

6 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Does t h a t come i n 

7 from IPA? 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That's IPA. I n f a c t , 

9 NMOGA's proposed m o d i f i c a t i o n s does not have a 

10 d e f i n i t i o n -- does not have t h i s d e f i n i t i o n . 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: What i s the other 

12 d e f i n i t i o n t h a t you r e f e r r e d to? Or i s there a 

13 s t r i c t d e f i n i t i o n ? 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: WQCC? 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: For the Water Q u a l i t y 

16 Control Commission? I t h i n k I have i t somewhere 

17 here. I don't seem t o be able t o put my f i n g e r s on 

18 i t r i g h t now. As I r e c a l l , i t does not r e q u i r e the 

19 water t o be capable of e n t e r i n g the w e l l i n 

20 s u f f i c i e n t amounts t o be used as a continuous water 

21 supply. 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So i t j u s t says 

23 something l i k e "means i n s t i t i a l water t h a t occurs i n 

24 saturated e a r t h m a t e r i a l . " Something l i k e t h a t . 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And i s capable of 
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1 e n t e r i n g the w e l l t o be used as a water supply. 

2 MR. SMITH: Do you guys want t o --

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Take a break? 

4 MR. SMITH: Well, e i t h e r take a break or 

5 move on and l e t me see i f I can f i n d i t here on 

6 Westlaw? 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That would be good. 

8 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I wasn't t r a c k i n g 

9 t h i s change, and I don't r e c a l l the discussion we 

10 had on i t . So i f there would be any way t o p u l l 

11 t h a t up here i n the t r a n s c r i p t , t h a t might be 

12 h e l p f u l . Maybe search i n s t i t i a l . 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: This brings up a 

14 question t h a t I t h i n k w i l l come up l a t e r . What 

15 happens when -- who has precedence on d e f i n i t i o n s 

16 f o r some of these things? 

17 MR. SMITH: I'm sorry? 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So l a t e r on we w i l l 

19 be t a l k i n g about f l u i d management p i t s t h a t have a 

20 greater than a ten acre f o o t capacity. But there's 

21 apparently a l i m i t a t i o n i n other s t a t e r e g u l a t i o n s 

22 t o impoundments t h a t are greater than ten acre f e e t . 

23 Who has precedent or who can w r i t e the r u l e on t h a t 

24 case? Can we w r i t e a r u l e t h a t counters somebody 

25 else's d e f i n i t i o n ? 
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1 MR. SMITH: Well, your d e f i n i t i o n s don't 

2 have t o be l i k e other d e f i n i t i o n s . Now, i f an 

3 operator who i s subject t o your r e g u l a t i o n s i s also 

4 subject t o these other r e g u l a t i o n s , then probably 

5 u n t i l there i s some s o r t of r e s o l u t i o n i n the 

6 courts, the operator i s probably going t o have t o 

7 comply w i t h the more r e s t r i c t i v e of the two. That 

8 i s t o say, I don't t h i n k an operator would want t o 

9 say, "Well, I'm subject t o both of these but because 

10 OCC says I can do X plus one, t h a t ' s what I'm going 

11 t o do even though some other agency says only do X." 

12 Do you understand what I'm saying? 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

14 MR. SMITH: You create a problem f o r the 

15 operator t h a t way. I f they are not subject t o the 

16 other agency's r e g u l a t i o n s you can do whatever you 

17 want t o do. 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: When i t comes t o t h a t 

19 p o i n t I'm sure we w i l l have an a c t i v e discussion, 

2 0 but I was curious about what happens when you have 

21 c o n f l i c t i n g r u l e s . 

2 2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: As i n i f we allow the 

23 i n s e r t i o n of "continuous water supply" r a t h e r than 

24 j u s t "water supply"? 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. 
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1 CHAIRWOMAN. BAILEY: I don't b e l i e v e t h a t 

2 we have a good reason t o i n s e r t "continuous water 

3 supply" when Water Q u a l i t y Control Commission 

4 Regulation 20.6.2.7, I b e l i e v e , says "of e n t e r i n g 

5 the w e l l i n s u f f i c i e n t amounts t o be used as a water 

6 supply." 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And i t sounds l i k e 

8 from counsel's perspective i f we d i d change i t , you 

9 would create a p o i n t of l i t i g a t i o n . 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I be l i e v e we would. 

11 MR. SMITH: Do you want me, i f you guys 

12 are going t o take a break, do you want me t o t r y t o 

13 p u l l up what the WQCC says? 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Sure, t h a t would be 

15 h e l p f u l . 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I would agree t h a t we 

18 don't want t o have two d e f i n i t i o n s of groundwater i n 

19 the s t a t e . 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Why don't we take a 

21 ten-minute break. 

22 (Note: The hearing stood i n recess at 

23 10 : 00 t o 10 :15.) 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: When we broke f o r the 

25 break, there was s t i l l the ques t ion on the Water 
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Q u a l i t y Control Commission'definition f o r 

2 groundwater. I be l i e v e our counsel found t h a t 

3 d e f i n i t i o n d u r i n g the break, and i t i s h i g h l i g h t e d 

4 up on the screen, t h a t i t means i n t e r s t i t i a l water 

5 t h a t occurs i n saturated e a r t h m a t e r i a l and which i s 

6 capable of e n t e r i n g a w e l l at s u f f i c i e n t amounts t o 

7 be u t i l i z e d as a water supply. Commissioners, do 

8 you want t o replace the proposed d e f i n i t i o n f o r 

9 groundwater w i t h t h a t d e f i n i t i o n ? 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM:. The only d i f f e r e n c e 

11 i s change the s p e l l i n g of i n t e r s t i t i a l and drop 

12 continuous? 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Then I would f i n d the 

15 d e f i n i t i o n from the WQCC t o be s u f f i c i e n t . 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Seems l i k e an 

17 adequate d e f i n i t i o n . 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then we are i n 

19 agreement t h a t the proposed d e f i n i t i o n f o r 

20 groundwater w i l l be replaced w i t h the Water Q u a l i t y 

21 Control Commission d e f i n i t i o n f o r groundwater. 

22 MR. SMITH: Let me say f o r the record, 

23 t h a t d e f i n i t i o n i s at NMAC 20.6.2.7 Subparagraph Z 

24 as i n zebra. 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The next d e f i n i t i o n i s 
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1 l i f e form r a t i o . I t ' i s the r e l a t i v e percentage of 

2 p l a n t s i n each of the f o l l o w i n g c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s : 

3 Shrubs, forbs and grasses. Commissioners, do you 

4 have opinions on that? I bel i e v e t h a t t h i s shows up 

5 i n the sections concerning reclamation. 

6 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Madam Chair, I p r e f e r 

7 the d e f i n i t i o n proposed by the OCD which i s " L i f e 

8 form r a t i o means the r e l a t i v e percentage of 

9 r e g i o n a l l y n a t i v e species i n each of the f o l l o w i n g 

10 c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s : Shrubs, forbs and grasses," so we 

11 would be adding i n " r e g i o n a l l y n a t i v e species." 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Commissioner Balch, do 

13 you support that? 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t c e r t a i n l y sounds 

15 b e t t e r . 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I w i l l say t h a t I 

17 l i k e OCD's d e f i n i t i o n because i t does make sure t h a t 

18 we are deali n g w i t h n a t i v e species when we are 

19 dea l i n g w i t h r e v e g e t a t i o n . That's important and i t 

20 should be i n there, and I t h i n k r e g i o n a l l y i s good 

21 i n t h a t i t doesn't mean i t has t o be a s i t e - s p e c i f i c 

22 n a t i v e species, so i f there was a p a r t i c u l a r s t r a i n 

23 of grass or something on a nearby s i t e but seeds 

24 weren't a v a i l a b l e but something t h a t was r e g i o n a l l y 

25 appropriate and g e n e r a l l y f i t t i n g w i t h the area, 
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1 t h a t i t would be w e l l s u i t e d f o r r e v e g e t a t i o n of the 

2 area. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I beli e v e t h a t was 

4 Dr. Buchanan's argument was you d i d n ' t want t o 

5 r e s t r i c t y o u r s e l f -- i f you said only p l a n t s n a t i v e 

6 t o New Mexico but you had a l o c a t i o n t h a t was on the 

7 New Mexico/Colorado border and the c l i m a t e , the 

8 e l e v a t i o n , a l l of t h a t s t u f f i s appropriate f o r the 

9 p l a n t t h a t doesn't u s u a l l y show up i n New Mexico but 

10 might, you wouldn't be able t o use i t i f you said 

11 r e g i o n a l l y . 

12 My only concern would be -- and t h i s i s 

13 a c t u a l l y s o r t of -- t h i s comes back t o the issue of 

14 enforceable and vague r u l e s . Because r e g i o n a l l y 

15 could mean something d i f f e r e n t t o everybody. 

16 Somebody could say the Southwest U.S., and t h a t 

17 would include Texas and Arizona and maybe New 

18 Mexico. But i f you are i n the northern p a r t of the 

19 s t a t e , you are more l i k e Colorado or Wyoming type 

20 climates. I f you are i n the Southeast you are much 

21 more l i k e Texas. 

22 So i f i t ' s going t o be e a s i l y enforceable, 

23 I t h i n k you want t o leave as broad an a b i l i t y t o put 

24 i n the c o r r e c t p l a n t s t h a t you can. Even j u s t 

25 saying a r e l a t i v e percentage of p l a n t s , how do you 
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1 come up w i t h t h a t number? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: There are requirements 

3 i n the cu r r e n t r u l e concerning comparison w i t h p l a n t 

4 species and thickness, volume, i n the same general 

5 area as the w e l l s i t e . I be l i e v e t h a t r e g i o n a l l y i s 

6 s p e c i f i c enough as t o e l i m i n a t e C a l i f o r n i a o r New 

7 York or any areas c l e a r l y outside of the region, no 

8 matter i f you are t a l k i n g about the mountainous west 

9 or the desert southwest. 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Sure. I guess l e t me 

11 r e s t a t e my concern. I t ' s not t h a t great of a 

12 concern ne c e s s a r i l y , but i f you go down t o the G i l a 

13 Wilderness you w i l l f i n d p l a n t s t h a t are unique t o 

14 t h a t area which are seen nowhere else i n New Mexico 

15 r e a l l y . However, they would be i n the same region. 

16 You could t h e o r e t i c a l l y take t h a t p l a n t and use i t 

17 i n the San Juan Basin or the Permian Basin, which 

18 I'm not sure i f t h a t ' s n e c e s s a r i l y bad. I j u s t want 

19 t o p o i n t out t h a t you might take a r e g i o n a l l y n a t i v e 

2 0 species from the Permian Basin t h a t may not 

21 n e c e s s a r i l y be found i n the San Juan Basin. 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So maybe you would 

23 l i k e t o suggest language then t h a t cleans t h a t up a 

24 l i t t l e b i t and would be something along the l i n e s of 

25 r e l a t i v e percentage of n a t i v e species t o a New 
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1 Mexico region? Or a region i n New Mexico? ! 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I don't t h i n k you can 

3 clean i t up b e t t e r than i t i s . The f a c t i s , a pl a n t 

4 t h a t can't survive i n the new area would not take i 

5 anyway. Of course, t h a t leaves you without your ; 

6 ground cover. So you are k i n d of t r u s t i n g wherever 

7 else i n the r e g u l a t i o n s t h a t s p e c i f y your r e l a t i v e 

8 percentage of p l a n t s t o -- I'm not sure t h a t I'm 

9 being c l e a r . j 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, I can see where : 

11 you're t r y i n g t o define region. 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: But I don't t h i n k you 

13 r e a l l y can. 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I don't t h i n k you can 

15 e i t h e r , but I t h i n k we want t o e l i m i n a t e C a l i f o r n i a ; 

16 and New York. j 

1 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. So what was j 

18 the OCD d e f i n i t i o n again t h a t you were reading, •: 

19 please? j 

20 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. " L i f e form j 
i 

21 r a t i o means the r e l a t i v e percentage of r e g i o n a l l y 1 

22 n a t i v e species i n each of the f o l l o w i n g ; 

23 c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s : Shrubs, forbs and grasses." 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f I r e c a l l 
i 

25 c o r r e c t l y , I t h i n k t h a t Dr. Buchanan a c t u a l l y had a ; 
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1 d i f f e r e n c e of opi n i o n w i t h language t h a t was very 

2 s i m i l a r t o t h a t because he thought i t would be 

3 e l i m i n a t i n g . 

4 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k Dr. 

5 Buchanan's concern was t h a t n a t i v e could be 

6 over-enforced and you could end up w i t h somebody 

7 saying w e l l , there was a p a r t i c u l a r s t r a i n of blue 

8 grama grass on t h i s pad o r i g i n a l l y and t h a t ' s what 

9 has t o be put there, and maybe there's no seed 

10 market f o r t h a t so you couldn't f i n d i t . I t h i n k 

11 t h a t was h i s concern, t h a t i t could be you were 

12 causing some issues. 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I guess my question 

14 i s : I s there a l i s t of r e g i o n a l l y n a t i v e plants? 

15 I f there i s , does i t include Russian T h i s t l e ? 

16 That's not n a t i v e but i t ' s a l l over the United 

17 States. 

18 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I don't t h i n k t h a t ' s 

19 considered a n a t i v e species. 

2 0 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I don't t h i n k so. I 

21 t h i n k t h a t ' s one of those introduced species t h a t 

22 they are t r y i n g t o e l i m i n a t e . 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You could e l i m i n a t e 

24 i t . I t ' s tumbleweeds. You see i t everywhere. So 

25 there's a place where you could f i n d l i s t s of nat i v e 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb 19b22a 1 ea 



Page 2450 
1 plants? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I be l i e v e so. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I don't t h i n k we can 

4 come up w i t h a b e t t e r d e f i n i t i o n than the proposed 

5 OCD language. 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So s h a l l we agree t o 

7 i n s e r t the words " i s the r e l a t i v e percentage of 

8 r e g i o n a l l y n a t i v e p l a n t s i n each of the f o l l o w i n g 

9 c l a s s i f i c a t i o n s " ? 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I would agree t o 

11 t h a t . 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That would work f o r 

13 me. 

14 MR. SMITH: Plants or species? 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Plants, because we are 

16 t a l k i n g three d i f f e r e n t types, shrubs, forbs and 

17 grasses. 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Should t h a t be pl a n t 

19 species? 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Native species. 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Native p l a n t species? 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Regionally n a t i v e 

23 p l a n t species. Does t h a t help? 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Sure. 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Add "pl a n t " between 
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1 n a t i v e and species. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then we come t o low 

3 c h l o r i d e f l u i d s . The proposed d e f i n i t i o n i s "means 

4 f l u i d s t h a t contain less than 15,000 m i l l i g r a m s per 

5 l i t e r of c h l o r i d e s determined by analysis or process 

6 knowledge." Do e i t h e r of you believe t h a t we need 

7 t o have t h i s d e f i n i t i o n f i r s t ? 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t seems k i n d of an 

9 i n t e r e s t i n g d e f i n i t i o n t o have, because i t ' s not 

10 h a l f of sea water but i t ' s h a l f higher than d r i n k i n g 

11 water standards, which i s why I t h i n k i t ' s i n the 

12 d e f i n i t i o n . 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Dr i n k i n g water 

14 standards i s 250 m i l l i g r a m s per l i t e r . 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: What's the l i m i t ? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: TDS, t o t a l d i ssolved 

17 s o l i d s . 

18 MR. SMITH: Low c h l o r i d e f l u i d s i s what 

19 you are working on? 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Because the way t h i s 

22 d e f i n i t i o n i s used, i t makes the d i s t i n c t i o n between 

23 s i t i n g l o c a t i o n s , b u r i a l of waste m a t e r i a l s and 

24 analyses performed f o r s o i l s . Other states have 

25 developed t h e i r own d e f i n i t i o n s f o r low c h l o r i d e 
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f l u i d s . I t appears t o be a u s e f u l standard i n the 

2 i n d u s t r y . 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t c e r t a i n l y gives 

4 you something t o measure against. 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes, i t does. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: More or less. I t ' s 

7 e i t h e r less or greater than. What i s the t y p i c a l 

8 number f o r other states t h a t you are aware of? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k i n the 

10 t r a n s c r i p t s there were some numbers t h a t were given. 

11 I n some states i t may be as low as 5,000 and i n 

12 others i t may be 15,000. 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That's what I 

14 remember. I t h i n k i t was poi n t e d out i n the hearing 

15 t h a t i t was a number t h a t b a s i c a l l y t r a n s l a t e d t o 

16 m a t e r i a l being able t o be b u r i e d o n - s i t e when you 

17 d i d your mixes. 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And s i t e l o c a t i o n s . 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: As f a r as o f f s e t s . 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So i t ' s not e x a c t l y 

22 a r b i t r a r y , but i t does allow you t o conclude t h a t i f 

23 you have a f l u i d w i t h less than t h a t concentration 

24 t h a t you would be able t o bury i t o n - s i t e i n many 

25 cases. 
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1 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I f we decide t h a t j 

2 th a t ' s an op t i o n . | 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. I was j u s t j 

4 saying I think that's where the number came from. 1 

5 I t wasn't p u l l e d out of a hat. j 

6 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Madam Chair, I don't | 

7 support the i n c l u s i o n of the d e f i n i t i o n of low j 

8 ch l o r i d e f l u i d s . Chlorides are c u r r e n t l y used as a 

9 marker and i f we set the l e v e l t h i s high there 

10 wouldn't be a cause t o look at c h l o r i d e plumes, 

11 which i s p r e t t y h e l p f u l i n terms of f i n d i n g how a 

12 leak i s moving. 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, I have t o disagree 1 

14 w i t h t h a t statement because we s t i l l would be able 

15 t o mark c h l o r i d e plumes w i t h i n groundwater. ; 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We wouldn't be 

17 lo o k i n g at them over a c e r t a i n p e r i o d . 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Of course we would. j 

19 We would be able t o analyze any volume of chl o r i d e s J 

20 1 
or any concentration of c h l o r i d e s , put i t t h a t way, j 

21 i n groundwater. 1 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k we want t o 1 

1 
23 look at t h a t . | 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Maybe i f I can say j 

25 t h i s b r i e f l y , t h i s may be something we have t o come J 
i 
1 
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1 back t o a f t e r we look at the end r e s u l t , which i s 

2 why we do have t h i s l i m i t a t i o n or t h i s d e f i n i t i o n . 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: S h a l l we come back t o 

4 i t l a t e r ? 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We could do t h a t . 

6 That would be f i n e . 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t may t u r n out t h a t 

9 we don't need a d e f i n i t i o n or t h a t the discussion 

10 w i l l be more meaningful i n context. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. Why don't we go 

12 down t o the d e f i n i t i o n f o r measurable. I t means a 

13 lay e r of o i l greater than a sheen t h a t i s measurable 

14 by c o l o r c u t t i n g or other acceptable method. 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: This i s another one 

16 t h a t ' s hard t o measure. 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Unless you have c o l o r 

18 cut tape. 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the examples 

2 0 were i f you had a windy day i t could be blown t o one 

21 side of the p i t and you wouldn't n e c e s s a r i l y be able 

22 t o see i t at a l l . Other days t h a t same amount of 

23 o i l or whatever could cause a sheen t h a t would cover 

24 h a l f the pond. So do you c o l o r cut -- i f you have 

25 t h a t s i t u a t i o n and you use your tape, w i l l you see 
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1 anything i f i t ' s a l l blown t o one side of the pond? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Obviously, i t ' s 

3 decided by where you put your tape, but on the tank 

4 or on the p i t under the normal circumstances you 

5 would be able t o say from an unbiased p o i n t of view 

6 t h i s i s what i t shows on the tape as measurable. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. Could you 

8 describe what t h a t tape is? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I haven't used i t i n a 

10 very long time. 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You have got me beat. 

12 I have never used i t so I guess I want t o understand 

13 what i t does. 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: A very long time. 

15 There have been other improvements and i t ' s simply a 

16 matter of di p p i n g i t i n and the tape shows the depth 

17 of the --

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. So i t measures 

19 the thickness of the o i l on top of the water? 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And then the 

22 thickness i s t r a n s l a t e d on a volume across the area 

23 of the surface? Okay. And measurable, you know, 

24 what k i n d of l i m i t a t i o n s are on that? I t h i n k you 

25 have t o be able t o see i t t o be able t o measure i t . 
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You would see the sheen before you would measure i t . 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: You would see 

3 something, yes, obviously. I f i t ' s measurable, i t ' s 

4 v i s i b l e , but there i s t h a t d i s t i n c t i o n between 

5 v i s i b l e and measurable because you can see a sheen 

6 but i t ' s not going t o be measurable. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH : Right. I t ' s a 

8 molecule t h i n g . 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM : I'm wondering, and 

11 t h i s j u s t occurred t o me, I laven't considered i t 

12 before, but do we want t o look at the d e f i n i t i o n of 

13 v i s i b l e at the same time? I t h i n k these seem t o 

14 i n t e r s e c t at some p o i n t . 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH : That's on the next 

16 page. 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Page 3 . 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH : I guess i t would be 

19 T. No, i t ' s s t i l l S. 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So you can see a 

21 sheen. 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM : Then there's a 

23 separate OCD d e f i n i t i o n of v i s i b l e , which i s any o i l 

24 on the surface of the p i t . 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Any sheen. 
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1 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That's c o r r e c t . 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That's v i s i b l e , not 

3 measurable. You're not going t o be able t o clean up 

4 a sheen as e a s i l y or p r a c t i c a l l y as you can a 

5 measurable amount. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So I guess what i s 

7 the purpose of the d e f i n i t i o n ? Where would i t come 

8 i n t o p l a y f o r measurable and f o r v i s i b l e ? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Operations. I t h i n k 

10 i n the chapter on operations there are references t o 

11 d i s t i n g u i s h v i s i b l e from measurable. 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I'm wondering i f we 

13 need both. 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Do you want t o come 

15 back t o that? 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We should come back 

17 t o t h a t . 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I would l i k e t o be 

19 c l e a r . V i s i b l e i s what t r i g g e r s the measurement 

2 0 perhaps? 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Let's come back t o 

22 t h a t a f t e r we look at Section .1107. We come t o 

23 m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t , which includes not 

24 only the d e f i n i t i o n but time and size i s not 

25 attached t o the d e f i n i t i o n . I t means a p i t used f o r 
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1 the storage, treatment and r e c y c l i n g of s t i m u l a t i o n 

2 f l u i d s and flowback water, not d r i l l i n g muds, not 

3 produced water, during the d r i l l i n g and completion 

4 of m u l t i p l e w e l l s . They are not governed by the 

5 Surface Waste Management Rule and not used f o r the 

6 disposal of d r i l l i n g or completion waste. Located 

7 e i t h e r o n - s i t e or o f f - s i t e of a w e l l d r i l l i n g 

8 l o c a t i o n and may remain i n use u n t i l a l l w e l l s 

9 i d e n t i f i e d i n the p i t are completed. Any freshwater 

10 containment s t r u c t u r e such as pond, p i t or other 

11 impoundment i s not included i n t h i s d e f i n i t i o n . 

12 I t h i n k we have a l o t of work t o do on 

13 t h i s paragraph. 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So 19.13.36 NMAC, i s 

15 t h a t where you are l i m i t i n g your impoundments t o 

16 less than ten acre feet? 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Rule 3 6 i s the Surface 

18 Waste Management Rule which has t o do w i t h l a n d f i l l s 

19 and ponds f o r disposal or treatment of wastes. 

20 L a n d f i l l s . This would exempt i t because i t ' s not a 

21 permanent disposal of the s t i m u l a t i o n f l u i d s and 

22 flowback water, but there's no size l i m i t a t i o n and 

23 there's no e x p i r a t i o n i n t h i s d e f i n i t i o n . 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The reason there's no 

25 size l i m i t a t i o n i s because you don't know 
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1 n e c e s s a r i l y how many w e l l s you might want t o t r e a t 

2 as a s i n g l e 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Or what volume w i l l be 

4 used i n the f r a c j o b . 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t would be 

6 determined o p e r a t i o n a l l y what the size of the pond 

7 would be? 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I know during 

10 testimony, I t h i n k i t was Mr. Lane, t a l k e d about the 

11 m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t and said t h a t the 

12 t y p i c a l m u l t i - w e l l p i t would have about 40 acre f e e t 

13 as opposed t o a temporary p i t , which i s about ten. 

14 So we're l o o k i n g u s u a l l y at about four times the 

15 volume. 

16 I'm very i n t r i g u e d by the m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d 

17 management p i t . I t h i n k we have much less surface 

18 disturbance, conservation of water. I t works i n a 

19 l o t of ways. But I don't know t h a t i t was fleshed 

20 out very w e l l throughout the -- or developed here i n 

21 terms of how i t ' s . r e g u l a t e d , and we heard b i t s and 

22 pieces and I don't know i f we can cobble something 

23 together and make these work but I am very i n t r i g u e d 

24 by i t . 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I have done some 
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1 research, because l i k e you, I have been i n t r i g u e d by 

2 i t . I t h i n k t h a t there are some strong advantages, 

3 but yet I be l i e v e t h a t there are some r e g u l a t o r y 

4 c o n s t r a i n t s t h a t should be put on them. I n f a c t , 

5 during the discussion w i t h Mr. Lane I asked, "When 

6 does the r e g u l a t o r step i n and say t h i s i s no longer 

7 a m u l t i - w e l l p i t , i t ' s a permanent p i t because i t 

8 has some aspects of a permanent p i t . " And h i s 

9 testimony was t h a t there may be an i n a c t i v a t i o n 

10 component t h a t needs t o be b u i l t i n t o t h i s . 

11 So l o o k i n g at t h a t , I checked what's the 

12 t y p i c a l size of a f r a c job? And I looked at f r a c 

13 focus, which i s the n a t i o n a l database, and I found 

14 everything from less than 2000 gal l o n s of water t o 

15 s i x and seven m i l l i o n gallons of water f o r some of 

16 the l a r g e r jobs. The s i x and seven I found i n 

17 Texas. I d i d n ' t f i n d those i n New Mexico. But j u s t 

18 from my plunking around, i t appeared as though a 

19 t y p i c a l water volume was about 3.2 m i l l i o n g a l l ons. 

20 I looked s p e c i f i c a l l y at the Devon 

21 Snapping 2 State 3H, which used 3.3 rounded up 

22 m i l l i o n g a l l o n s of water i n t h e i r r e p o r t . 

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So t o make sure we 

24 are on the same page, an acre f o o t i s 325,000 

25 g a l l o n s , ten acre f e e t i s 3.25 m i l l i o n gallons? I s 
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1 t h a t r i g h t ? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The way I measured i t 

3 out, ten acre f e e t was about 3,350,000 gal l o n s , so 

4 the ten acre f o o t l i m i t a t i o n would take care of many 

5 of the f r a c jobs t h a t go on, many of the f r a c 

6 systems. I t wouldn't take care of a l l of them, but 

7 would take care of many of them. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t would depend on 

9 the operations, too. I f you are doing them 

10 s e r i a l l y , then I t h i n k ten acre f e e t would be able 

11 t o cover your t y p i c a l shale f r a c jobs of two, three 

12 or fou r m i l l i o n g a l l o n s . You do lose water on the 

13 f r a c j o b . Your flowback i s h a l f t o 70 percent of 

14 the water you put i n . I t v a r i e s , depending upon the 

15 formation, c o m p a t i b i l i t y . 

16 The idea, I t h i n k , and the way these are 

17 done i n p r a c t i c e , the reason they are large i n 

18 places l i k e Wyoming and Texas i s so they can be 

19 r a p i d l y moving t h e i r r i g . Or you have two r i g s 

20 operating at once on a sequence of w e l l s . That 

21 said, I don't t h i n k you want something t h a t ' s -- i f 

22 you are s t a r t i n g t o look at things t h a t are t o the 

23 scale of several Olympic swimming pools, you need t o 

24 probably look at them a l i t t l e d i f f e r e n t l y than a 

25 temporary p i t . 
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1 The p e t i t i o n s , I t h i n k , t r i e d t o address 

2 t h a t p r i m a r i l y by some s o r t of double l i n e r or l i n e r 

3 i n play w i t h monitoring f o r your leakage, and then 

4 by d e s c r i b i n g them as temporary, everything i n there 

5 would be removed and the s i t e reclaimed and nothing 

6 l e f t on the s i t e . 

7 Whether t h a t addresses a l l of the concerns 

8 you might have w i t h the larg e scale impoundment, and 

9 then my other concern, I t h i n k , i s l i m i t a t i o n --

10 other l i m i t a t i o n s by other agencies on the size of 

11 ponds and impoundments. We have t o f i g u r e out 

12 j u r i s d i c t i o n a l l y i f we can even have something 

13 greater than ten acre f e e t . I don't know f o r sure 

14 and we can probably discuss t h a t l a t e r on. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I checked i n t o i t . I 

16 be l i e v e -- and I may be wrong because I'm not an 

17 a u t h o r i t y on State Engineer r e g u l a t i o n s . I believe 

18 t h a t i t ' s a matter of our determining i f we want t o 

19 have a size l i m i t a t i o n and, i f we want t o have t h a t 

20 l i m i t a t i o n , what i t should be. I n my research, i t 

21 appeared as though the 3.3 m i l l i o n g a l l o n volume 

22 would be ten acre f e e t and would be adequate f o r 

23 many -- maybe the m a j o r i t y of jobs. But i f i t was 

24 inadequate they could always b r i n g t r u c k s , as they 

25 apparently are doing now, t o supplement. 
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1 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I guess i f the ten 

2 acre f e e t l i m i t a t i o n was not f o r operating under the 

3 new paradigm of production, p a r t i c u l a r l y w i t h shales 

4 and some of these large commingled plays, and I'm 

5 t h i n k i n g more of what's happening i n West Texas 

6 r i g h t now, i f t h a t ten acre f e e t l i m i t was enough, 

7 then they wouldn't be b u i l d i n g ponds t h a t are 

8 bigger, and they are b u i l d i n g ponds t h a t are bigger. 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Because t h a t 

10 e l i m i n a t e s the need f o r a d d i t i o n a l t r u c k i n g . 

11 MR. SMITH: I j u s t want t o caution you a l l 

12 t o remember t h a t you need t o be able t o look t o your 

13 record i n order t o j u s t i f y whatever decisions you 

14 make i n t h i s matter. I don't know whether there's 

15 enough evidence f o r you t o make these kinds of 

16 determinations or not. That's up t o you a l l , but 

17 you want t o look t o the record i n order t o make your 

18 decisions. 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k they d i d n ' t 

2 0 put a -- i n testimony, I don't t h i n k Mr. Lane put a 

21 l i m i t a t i o n on i t because he d i d n ' t want there t o be 

22 a l i m i t t h a t was imposed a r b i t r a r i l y . He would 

23 r a t h e r i t be imposed by the needs of the operation. 

24 That said, i n a well-formed r e g u l a t i o n you would --

25 I t h i n k there's a couple t h i n g s t h a t are important 
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1 t o me i n m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s . I t h i n k 

2 they have t o be s u b s t a n t i a l l y temporary. You don't 

3 want them s t i c k i n g around f o r ten years or f i v e 

4 years. You want i t t o be there f o r the d u r a t i o n of 

5 the operation t h a t ' s i t ' s being b u i l t f o r . You want 

6 t o make sure there's something t h a t has some 

7 l i m i t a t i o n on the time so i t i s temporary. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I have some 

9 suggestions f o r t h a t , too. 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. The other 

11 t h i n g i s do you want t o l e t them be of any a r b i t r a r y 

12 size? And I t h i n k t h a t one approach t h a t might be 

13 v i a b l e i s t o set some l i m i t , and then above t h a t you 

14 would have t o seek an exception or a variance on a 

15 case-by-case basis. What t h a t l i m i t i s , I do not 

16 know. 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That's a concern I 

18 have as w e l l . We don't have a l i f e s p a n y e t . The 

19 l i f e s p a n would be, I guess, the --

2 0 COMMISSIONER BALCH: U n t i l the operations 

21 are completed. 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. I f you get 

23 bigger i n si z e , we haven't r e a l l y t a l k e d about 

24 performance of l i n e r s and what l i n e r s would be 

25 adequate, but we do have the permanent p i t s and they 
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1 are l i m i t e d t o ten acre f e e t and then they have 

2 t h e i r g u i d e l i n e s which I . would have t o review. But 

3 t h a t 1 s out there. 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: T a l k i n g about a time 

5 l i m i t t h a t you are concerned about also, and based 

6 on Mr. Lane's comment, "So there may be an 

7 i n a c t i v a t i o n component t h a t needs t o be b u i l t i n t o 

8 t h i s , " I looked t o see where else i n the o i l and gas 

9 i n d u s t r y we have the p o t e n t i a l f o r a reasonable 

10 l i m i t a t i o n on time. I f we use the language t h a t the 

11 p i t may remain i n use -- lo o k i n g at the t h i r d l i n e 

12 from the bottom -- u n t i l a l l w e l l s w i t h approved 

13 APDs i d e n t i f i e d i n the p i t permit are completed --

14 because APDs have a two-year l i m i t a t i o n . 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That would be the 

16 o p e r a t i o n a l p e r i o d plus two years at the most. I t 

17 would be two years at the most from the l a t e s t f i l e d 

18 APD. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: There's another 

2 0 approach. I t e l l you, I was i n t r i g u e d w i t h the 

21 idea. I n the template f o r the standard u n i t 

22 agreements, e x p l o r a t i o n u n i t agreements, there i s a 

23 se c t i o n on d r i l l i n g t o discovery, and i t says t h a t , 

24 "An operator s h a l l continue d r i l l i n g d i l i g e n t l y one 

25 w e l l at a time a l l o w i n g not more than s i x months 
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1 between the completion of one w e l l and the beginning 

2 of the next w e l l , " which means t h a t -- or u n t i l the 

3 production i s -- the discovery i s made. We don't 

4 need t o have t h a t , but there's also the l i m i t a t i o n 

5 t h a t the d i r e c t o r could modify the d r i l l i n g 

6 requirements of t h a t s e c t i o n by g r a n t i n g reasonable 

7 extensions of time when such a c t i o n i s warranted. 

8 So I throw out f o r discussion, we could 

9 e i t h e r l i m i t i t t o only those approved APDs and/or 

10 we could have t h i s continuous d r i l l i n g requirement. 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the a c t i v e 

12 APDs t o me sounds a l i t t l e more easy t o enforce and 

13 t r a c k a b l e because i t ' s already tracked on the map. 

14 Whether you can d r i l l or not -- APDs, can you get an 

15 extension on the two years? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: They can be renewed. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: They can be renewed 

18 f o r another two years? 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Just another two 

21 years? Continuously d r i l l i n g -- here i s my concern. 

22 And I t h i n k you have heard me say t h i s a l o t of 

23 times. About 70 percent of a l l o i l comes from the 

24 smaller producers and about h a l f our n a t u r a l gas at 

25 t h i s time. Well, l a s t time I checked i n 2003. I 
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1 have no reason t o t h i n k t h a t ' s changed 

2 s u b s t a n t i a l l y . By small, I mean not a major o i l 

3 company. 

4 I f some of the scenarios t h a t Mr. Lane 

5 described were t o occur i n the San Juan Basin and be 

6 done by a large operator, I would imagine t h a t the 

7 p i t s would only be there f o r a year because they 

8 would get i n there, they would do a completion, 

9 three weeks l a t e r another completion, three weeks 

10 l a t e r another completion. They would probably spend 

11 more time on b u i l d i n g and di s m a n t l i n g the p i t than 

12 they d i d on operation. 

13 On the other hand, i f you have a smaller 

14 operator or a group of smaller operators, you could 

15 run i n t o delays t h a t would extend t h a t time p e r i o d 

16 and you d e f i n i t e l y don't want t o discourage those 

17 people from using a t o o l l i k e a m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d 

18 management p i t which would make th i n g s more 

19 e f f i c i e n t , use less resources and be more 

20 c o s t - e f f e c t i v e . But you also want t o make sure i t 

21 doesn't hang around f o r f o u r years or two years and 

22 another two years and another two years, and you are 

23 s t a r t i n g t o get t o the p o i n t where you wonder i f the 

24 l i n e r i s going t o be st a b l e f o r t h a t time period. 

25 So something has t o be put i n there t o 
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1 make sure t h a t these are temporary, t h a t ' s e a s i l y 

2 monitored and enforceable but allows the f l e x i b i l i t y 

3 t o make them a c t u a l l y b e n e f i c i a l . Did I pose more 

4 questions than I d i d answers there? 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, I'm looking f o r 

6 a s o l u t i o n t o the proposal. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I l i k e the idea of 

8 t y i n g i t t o APDs and having c e r t a i n APDs t i e d t o the 

9 i n i t i a l a p p l i c a t i o n f o r the m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d , 

10 management p i t . 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a good 

12 way t o s t a r t considering i t , p u t t i n g a l i f e s p a n on 

13 there, on the m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t . I'm 

14 concerned t h a t ten acre f e e t might not be enough f o r 

15 i n d u s t r y . I t may be where they would need t o go 

16 bigger. Commissioner Balch t a l k e d about some i n 

17 Texas or some l a r g e r p i t s , and I t h i n k one of the 

18 things t h a t we l i k e about the, m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d 

19 management p i t s i s you reduce a l o t of tr u c k t r a f f i c 

20 which i s o f t e n a complaint i n our o i l producing 

21 regions. You have less environmental impacts. 

22 I f we found something t h a t would end a 

23 good p o r t i o n of the t r u c k t r a f f i c , I t h i n k t h a t 

24 would be good. I don't know how -- I haven't heard 

25 any testimony of anything over ten acre f e e t and I 
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1 don't know how l i n e r s perform given various volumes 

2 and depths. • 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k there was 

4 testimony on t h a t , and i t p a r t i c u l a r l y came up i n 

5 regards t o h y d r a u l i c head, and I t h i n k the idea was 

6 t h a t the p i t s would not n e c e s s a r i l y be deeper, they 

7 would tend t o be l a r g e r i n area. So the p o i n t of 

8 where you are measuring your h y d r a u l i c head on a 

9 l i n e r at the bottom of the p i t , i t doesn't care how 

10 much water there i s t o the side. I t only cares how 

11 much water i s above i t . 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I understand i t . I f 

13 we go wider there's more evaporative loss of water 

14 and more surface disturbance, too. 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. Although i f 

16 you are r e p l a c i n g m u l t i p l e heads you wash out the 

17 increase i n the surface area. I don't know what a 

18 good average number i s . I do know t h a t you want 

19 something t h a t can be u s e f u l and f l e x i b l e enough. 

20 I n other words, i f you say ten or you say 20 or you 

21 say 30 or 80 or l i k e some of these p i t s i n Texas 

22 t h a t are 100 acre f e e t , I don't know i f pin n i n g an 

23 exact number on i t i s the best way t o go or having a 

24 number over which you have t o have a more a c t i v e 

25 involvement by the D i v i s i o n or the Commission. 
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1 Now, i n our work t h a t we have done l a t e l y , 

2 we look at the a c i d gas i n j e c t i o n w e l l s . The reason 

3 i s because i t ' s something t h a t ' s becoming more and 

4 more prevale n t , and we want t o understand the 

5 . usefulness and the i m p l i c a t i o n s of a v a r i e t y of 

6 features and how do you best address them. So i t 

7 may be a s i m i l a r time p e r i o d where we would look at 

8 some of these l a r g e r p i t s or p i t s above a c e r t a i n 

9 size j u s t t o see what they are doing and come up 

10 w i t h a good understanding of how w e l l they work or 

11 what i s a size below you don't worry too much and 

12 above you want t o have e x t r a considerations taken. 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Are you suggesting 

14 t h a t we put a ten acre f e e t and approved APD, but 

15 say t h a t there exceptions may be f o r d i f f e r e n c e s i n 

16 size or le n g t h of time? 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, I guess I am 

18 less confident about p u t t i n g a size l i m i t . I don't 

19 know what would be appropriate. I t h i n k i f you are 

2 0 doing -- I t h i n k some of the jobs t h a t Mr. Lane 

21 described might be ten w e l l s or 15 w e l l s , and i f you 

22 have a l i m i t a t i o n of ten acre f e e t and t h a t was one 

23 f r a c j o b, then I t h i n k you are not going t o have 

24 something t h a t would be e f f i c i e n t f o r r a p i d l y 
25 completing those w e l l s w i t h j u s t ten acre f e e t . 
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1 On the other hand, do I want them t o be 

2 able t o a r b i t r a r i l y b u i l d as large of an impoundment 

3 as he wants to? I t h i n k there has t o be someplace 

4 where you look at i t a l i t t l e more c l o s e l y . 

5 MR. SMITH: Let me j u s t i n t e r j e c t here 

6 r e a l q u i c k l y . You want t o make sure, I t h i n k , t h a t 

7 the discussions t h a t you are having at t h i s p o i n t 

8 are matters of how t o exercise your judgment as 

9 opposed t o matters not having enough evidence t o 

10 make the de c i s i o n . 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. I t h i n k --

12 MR. SMITH: I mean, I'm not arguing 

13 anything one way or the other. I j u s t , again, want 

14 t o caution you t h a t you want t o make sure t h a t you 

15 have enough evidence i n the record t o make decisions 

16 or maybe you do and you are t r y i n g t o make a 

17 judgment c a l l . That's up t o you guys. 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I bel i e v e t h i s i s a 

19 judgment c a l l based on the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t i s i n 

20 the record. 

21 MR. SMITH: Okay. 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And the a d d i t i o n a l 

23 research t h a t was done at the time. 

24 MR. SMITH: That's f i n e . I'm j u s t doing 

2 5 my j ob. 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb19b22a1 ea 



1 
Page 2472 j 

CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I r e a l i z e t h a t . j 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Appreciate i t . 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: There i s the j 

4 p o s s i b i l i t y of not p u t t i n g a size l i m i t a t i o n but 

5 putting a construction requirement that it meets the \ 

6 same standards' as a permanent p i t w i t h the heavier j 

7 • 
l i n e r and the double l i n e r ? 8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k other 

9 concerns t h a t were r a i s e d was about the nature of 

10 the double p r o t e c t i v e system. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We do have testimony [ 

12 concerning the problem w i t h the c o n s t r u c t i o n . 

13 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We heard both t h i n g s . j 

14 Somebody said there would be two l i n e r s and somebody ) 
1 

15 s a i d i t could be one f a b r i c l i n e r and i t could be 1 

16 
i 

clay as well. \ 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: What does the current 

18 r e g u l a t i o n s t a t e f o r permanent p i t s ? 1 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Unchanged. 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. I understand. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t ' s a double l i n e r j 

22 w i t h a leak d e t e c t i o n system. j 

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: You have a choice of I 

24 a 30 m i l f l e x i b l e PVC or 60 m i l HDPE l i n e r . 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The 60 m i l i s the 
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1 permanent p i t . 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t allows both. 

3 "Geomembrane l i n e r s h a l l consist of 30 m i l f l e x i b l e 

4 PVC or 60 m i l HDPE l i n e r . " 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Oh, okay. Depending 

6 on the type? 

7 • COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Exactly. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t has the upper l i n e r 

9 geomembrane and secondary lower l i n e r , geomembrane 

10 l i n e r s . Geomembrane s h a l l constant of 30 m i l or the 

11 60 m i l . 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I w i l l note, too, 

13 t h a t when I was reading OGAP's c l o s i n g statement 

14 t h a t they also shared some concerns about was t h i s 

15 fleshed out enough t h a t the permanent p i t could be a 

16 possible s o l u t i o n here, l o o k i n g at t h a t f o r 

17 guidance. 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. I would f e e l 

19 more comfortable i f we put the time l i m i t a t i o n of 

2 0 the approved APDs f o r the w e l l s t h a t would be 

21 dedicated. 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That these would 

23 include --

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. And the use of 

25 the c o n s t r u c t i o n standards o f a permanent p i t 
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1 without any k i n d of size l i m i t a t i o n . 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Now, I would have 

3 some concerns there i n t h a t i f the p i t went higher 

4 and bigger, you would have a l o t more head, correct? 

5 And maybe those l i n e r s wouldn't be s u f f i c i e n t i n 

6 t h a t case. I haven't heard any testimony about the 

7 e f f i c a c y of those l i n e r s i f the size would increase 

8 above ten acre f e e t . 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So are you proposing 

10 the time l i m i t a t i o n , the size l i m i t a t i o n and the 

11 permanent p i t c o n s t r u c t i o n standards? 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k he i s t a l k i n g 

13 more about a depth l i m i t a t i o n . 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Depth, yeah. 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: There was testimony 

16 about h y d r a u l i c head on a number of occasions. The 

17 back of the envelope c a l c u l a t i o n l i k e I believe 

18 Dr. Neeper d i d i n one of h i s e x h i b i t s , he could 

19 c a l c u l a t e a r a t h e r large amount of water going 

20 through a l i n e r w i t h ten f e e t of hyd r a u l i c head, but 

21 I don't b e l i e v e t h a t those equations r e a l l y work 

22 very w e l l f o r the e f f u s i v e f l o w t h a t you are seeing 

23 w i t h the l i n e r , so you are r e a l l y l o o k i n g more at 

24 what's going t o come through pinhole leaks and 

25 imperfections and thi n g s l i k e t h a t . 
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1 To some extent, i f you increase head 

2 d r a m a t i c a l l y you might increase t h a t amount of 

3 e f f u s i v e flow, but I would have t o do an awful l o t 

4 more c a l c u l a t i o n before I comfortably want t o look 

5 at t h a t . I t h i n k I would r a t h e r see these p i t s be 

6 l a r g e r a e r i a l l y than considerably much deeper. I s 

7 there a l i m i t a t i o n on the depth of permanent p i t s ? 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No. 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I don't t h i n k so. 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Do you have a copy of 

11 the c u r r e n t Rule 17? 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I am lo o k i n g at the 

13 NMOGA's Attachment A which had t h e i r changes. 

14 Permanent p i t i s on Page 15 of t h a t . 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k , p r a c t i c a l l y 

16 speaking, you are probably not going t o end be up 

17 w i t h a 40-foot deep head. I f you have a ten acre 

18 f o o t head, i t could be ten acres of area and ten 

19 f e e t of depth or i t could be f i v e acres of area and 

20 20 fe e t of depth -- sorry, f i v e acres of 20 feet of 

21 depth. But at some p o i n t you are going t o f i n d i t 

22 easier t o make i t wider than deeper w i t h a 

23 bu l l d o z e r , and being able t o meet other c o n s t r u c t i o n 

24 g u i d e l i n e s such as your edge m a t e r i a l and your 

25 overlap and thi n g s l i k e t h a t . Berm. 
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1 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And the slope t h a t we 

2 s t i l l need t o t a l k about. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. 

4 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Dr. Balch, i s there a 

5 way t o increase the volume s i m i l a r t o the 20 acre 

6 f e e t t h a t there would be more than enough t o do at 

7 one average f r a c j o b, increase i t t o 20 acre f e e t , 

8 not get i t t o a size where i t has too much more head 

9 on i t than you would have i n a permanent p i t t h a t 1 s 

10 ten acre feet? 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, head i s j u s t 

12 dependent on the depth of the water so the only 

13 t h i n g you would be able t o do i s put a l i m i t a t i o n on 

14 the depth of the pond. But there was not, I don't 

15 t h i n k , any testimony or anything about depth and 

16 what would be appropriate --

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We don't have 

18 guidance. 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Now, these l i n e r s 

20 have design s p e c i f i c a t i o n s and I'm going t o guess 

21 t h a t one of those design s p e c i f i c a t i o n s would be how 

22 much head can i t handle, how much pressure. Well, 

23 normally what they do i s a rod t e s t , poke at i t w i t h 

24 a rod or something u n t i l i t breaks and then they 

25 know how much pressure i n the p a r t i c u l a r l o c a t i o n . 
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1 So, I mean, some of the thi n g s we are 

2 discussing may not be important at a l l because they 

3 w i l l already be i n the l i m i t a t i o n s of the mate r i a l s 

4 i f they are used c o r r e c t l y , which i s a concern. 

5 Now, as f a r as l i m i t i n g the size of a 

6 m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t , I t h i n k i f you do 

7 t h a t then very l i k e l y we w i l l be discussing i t again 

8 p r e t t y soon because you are not making a design 

9 t h a t ' s based upon o p e r a t i o n a l parameters and needs, 

10 you are making one based on some a r b i t r a r y number, 

11 t h a t probably the three of us i n d i v i d u a l l y are not 

12 n e c e s s a r i l y q u a l i f i e d t o determine. We have the 

13 evidence t h a t ' s before us t h a t there's a need f o r 

14 i t , and I t h i n k i t ' s up t o us t h a t makes a 

15 r e g u l a t i o n t h a t allows f o r i t i n a safe and 

16 e f f e c t i v e way. 

17 And I l i k e the stronger requirements of 

18 the permanent p i t . I don't l i k e ad hoc l i m i t a t i o n 

19 on siz e . I have a f e e l i n g t h a t I don't want them t o 

2 0 be 100 fe e t deep or 3 00 acres b i g , but I don't know 

21 how t o r e a l l y l i m i t t h a t . The only l i m i t a t i o n I can 

22 see i s t o l i m i t the number of w e l l s t h a t would be 

23 allowed on a permanent f o r m u l t i - w e l l p i t , at which 

24 p o i n t you are lo o k i n g at e f f e c t i n g what i s the most 

25 e f f e c t i v e operations. But t h a t might be the easiest 
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1 way t o l i m i t the s i z e . 

2 I f you say ten w e l l s , you are going t o be 

3 l o o k i n g a t , at most, probably 50 acre f e e t would be 

4 a very l a r g e , e f f e c t i v e volume t h a t you could use. 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: But t h a t --

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And i f they wanted 

7 more than t h a t , then they would have t o seek an 

8 exception. 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That di s a l l o w s use of 

10 the p i t f o r large f r a c jobs i f you l i m i t i t t o the 

11 number of w e l l s . A c e n t r a l l o c a t i o n w i t h i n one of 

12 the large u n i t s i n the Northwest may service more 

13 than ten w e l l s . 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Sure. Well, ten was 

15 an a r b i t r a r y number. My concern i n c o n s t r u c t i n g a 

16 u s e f u l r e g u l a t i o n i s t h a t i f you put i n a r b i t r a r y 

17 l i m i t a t i o n s then you defeat the purpose of having 

18 the r u l e i n the f i r s t place. You create an 

19 a r t i f i c i a l l i m i t on what i t ' s supposed t o remove, 

20 which i s an i n e f f i c i e n c y . 

21 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I agree. You want 

22 t h i s t o serve the i n d u s t r y ' s needs and be e f f i c i e n t 

23 f o r them. 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, and the most 

25 e f f i c i e n t they are, the less t r u c k t r a f f i c , the less 
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1 water tanks there are moving down the freeways, the 

2 less i n d i v i d u a l chance f o r leaks from a l l the 

3 f i t t i n g s and valves t h a t you have on your thousand 

4 tanks. I mean, i t makes a l o t of sense t o reduce 

5 your f o o t p r i n t f o r these l a r g e operations, and 

6 r e a l i s t i c a l l y , the d i r e c t i o n t h a t i n d u s t r y i s going 

7 i s towards shales and towards l a r g e r f r a c jobs and 

8 t h a t ' s going t o be happening i n New Mexico as w e l l . 

9 Texas doesn't have a P i t Rule, so they can 

10 b u i l d a 100 acre m u l t i - w e l l p i t i f they want t o . 

11 But because we have a ten acre l i m i t , t h a t ' s why 

12 i t ' s brought up. I f i n d u s t r y thought they could do 

13 t h i s w i t h a ten acre p i t they wouldn't have put i t 

14 i n here. They would j u s t do i t under the cur r e n t 

15 r u l e s . 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Because the permanent 

17 p i t i s only used f o r the produced water. 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: No, I meant using the 

19 temporary p i t . I guess there's no allowance i n the 

20 cur r e n t v e r s i o n of the P i t Rule f o r using m u l t i p l e 

21 w e l l s from one p i t anyway. You have t o have one 

22 w e l l , one p i t , which i s an example of what I was 

23 j u s t saying. I f you -- you have t o be c a r e f u l not 

24 t o impose l i m i t a t i o n s t h a t defeat the purpose of the 

25 proposed change i f we t h i n k the proposed change i s a j 
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1 good t h i n g . 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So what would you l i k e 

3 t o see? 

4 MR. SMITH: Let me remind you about your 

5 idea f o r a variance. Maybe t h a t would give you more 

6 f l e x i b i l i t y . 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The idea i s i f there 

8 was some t r i g g e r where l i k e w i t h the acid gas 

9 i n j e c t i o n w e l l s t h a t have t o come before the 

10 Commission and not p o t e n t i a l l y give us more work but 

11 i t does give an o p p o r t u n i t y t o put a workable 

12 r e g u l a t i o n i n t o play now r a t h e r than doing ten years 

13 of research and then p u t t i n g the r e g u l a t i o n i n t o 

14 play. I t h i n k t h i s i s something t h a t i s extremely 

15 important. 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t i s . So do you 

17 suggest a ten acre f o o t l i m i t a t i o n w i t h a l a r g e r t o 

18 be an exception t o be heard by a hearing examiner or 

19 the Commission? 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k I l i k e the 

21 idea b e t t e r of having the l a r g e r p i t s managed by 

22 something else, l i k e a number of APDs t h a t are 

23 attached t o i t or something l i k e t h a t . Or the 

24 p r e d i c t e d -- you know, at some p o i n t i t ' s going t o 

25 become i m p r a c t i c a l -- and I t h i n k Mr. Lane brought 
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1 t h i s up -- i t ' s going t o become i m p r a c t i c a l t o have 

2 more than X number of w e l l s managed by one c e n t r a l 

3 management p i t because you do have t o have temporary 

4 p i p e l i n e s and a l l kinds of thi n g s l i k e t h a t t o move 

5 the water around. 

6 I t seems l i k e you would end up w i t h a 

7 s i t u a t i o n where you would be t r a c k i n g the 100 wel l s 

8 from one m u l t i - w e l l p i t . 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So the t r u e l i m i t a t i o n 

10 would be the number of we l l s w i t h approved APDs t h a t 

11 can be d r i l l e d using t h a t p i t w i t h i n two years or 

12 extensions thereof. 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That would seem t o be 

14 a p r a c t i c a l l i m i t t h a t would be p r e t t y e a s i l y 

15 monitored. Well, i t wouldn't have t o be monitored. 

16 I t would take care of i t s e l f . 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Takes care of i t s e l f . 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So i f you had an 

19 o p e r a t i o n a l plan t o do 20 we l l s and you could do i t 

2 0 w i t h i n two years -- I guess you wouldn't make a plan 

21 then i f you couldn't do i t w i t h i n three years, so i t 

22 would be a n a t u r a l l i m i t a t i o n . And i f you weren't a 

23 large company and you were doing i t w i t h a d i f f e r e n t 

24 type of operation, you may not t r y t o put 20 wel l s 

25 on your APD. Maybe t h a t would be the best way t o 
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1 l i m i t i t . I r e a l l y don't l i k e the idea of p u t t i n g 

2 an a r b i t r a r y size l i m i t on i t . 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And we have had no 

4 testimony. 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That's r i g h t . Now, 

6 on the other hand, I t h i n k i f those APDs are put up 

7 f o r renewal, t h a t ' s when i t should come before the 

8 Commission, because then they are going t o extend 

9 the l i f e of the p i t . 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: What i s your b e l i e f , 

11 Commissioner Bloom? 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I f we could cobble 

13 something together t h a t would be p r o t e c t i v e of the 

14 environment and base i t on testimony we heard and 

15 what's i n the r u l e c u r r e n t l y , I t h i n k we could do 

16 t h a t . I don't know t h a t -- I'm s t i l l wondering i f 

17 we have heard enough t o be able t o put together a 

18 m u l t i - w e l l p i t t h a t works f o r i n d u s t r y and gets them 

19 what they need. 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, I t h i n k t h a t 

21 the time l i m i t a t i o n on the APDs w i l l s e l f - l i m i t the 

22 volume, the size of the volume they need. 

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Let me ask you t h i s : 

24 What i f the f r a c j o b requires -- hearing what 

25 Commissioner B a i l e y found was some three m i l l i o n 
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1 gallons plus f o r an average f r a c j o b , but we are 

2 seeing some t h a t go up much l a r g e r than t h a t . We 

3 could be seeing i n the Northwest more shale o i l 

4 production. I f we make something too small we lose 

5 some of the environmental b e n e f i t s . 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Here's the t h i n g . 

7 The l a r g e r the f r a c job -- your f r a c job size i s 

8 going t o be d i c t a t e d by a couple t h i n g s . The f i r s t 

9 t h i n g i t ' s going t o d i c t a t e i s how many stages you 

10 are going t o do. The number of stages i s going t o 

11 be d i c t a t e d by the len g t h of the s e c t i o n t h a t you 

12 are t r y i n g t o f r a c t u r e and the rock mechanics t h a t 

13 goes i n t o how much f l u i d i s needed w i t h i n a 

14 p a r t i c u l a r c l o s e d - o f f s e c t i o n t o break the rock. So 

15 the l a r g e r your h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s are, the longer 

16 they are, the less w e l l s you are going t o need. 

17 So as you increase the size of the f r a c 

18 job, you need less w e l l s i n the same area. There's • 

19 also going t o be a l i m i t a t i o n on how many -- w e l l , 

20 there's not r e a l l y a l i m i t a t i o n on h o r i z o n t a l w e l l s , 

21 i s there? 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No. 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: But b a s i c a l l y , I 

24 t h i n k t h a t ' s the other side of i t . I f you are doing 

25 a much l a r g e r job, you need t o do less of them i n 
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1 the same r e l a t i v e area t o f r a c t u r e the rock 

2 e f f e c t i v e l y . So I t h i n k i t would be s e l f - l i m i t i n g 

3 t o some extent. A c t u a l l y , t o a great extent. I 

4 r e a l l y l i k e the automatic use of the APD t i m e l i n e 

5 and then i f they want t o extend the APD then they 

6 have t o come show us. 

7 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k we could work 

8 something w i t h t h a t , and i f i t extended out two 

9 years i t could s t i l l be okay maybe because we were 

10 d e a l i n g w i t h something o r i g i n a l l y designed as a 

11 permanent p i t which would have a longer l i f e s p a n . 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k you would 

13 want t o have a r e - e v a l u a t i o n at t h a t p o i n t b a s i c a l l y 

14 and make sure t h a t there's a f i x e d time. And t h a t ' s 

15 when coming before the Commission would be 

16 appropriate. 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: You want them t o come 

18 before the Commission or before the Divis i o n ? 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The D i v i s i o n , yeah. 

20 Doesn't have t o come s t r a i g h t t o us. I know w i t h 

21 the ac i d gas i t comes s t r a i g h t t o us. And since 

22 t h i s i s a new t h i n g , t h a t might be advisable f o r a 

23 p e r i o d of time. I don't know how you w r i t e 

24 something l i k e t h a t . 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We can simply say i t 
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1 s h a l l go t o hearing, and then --

2 ; COMMISSIONER BALCH: You can 

! 

3 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y decide --

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y 

5 say, l i k e the a c i d gas comes t o the Commission, 

i 

6 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e l y say t h a t i t comes t o the Commission 

7 f o r extensions. 

8 ; COMMISSIONER BALCH: APDs f o r w e l l s t i e d 
i 

9 t o a m u l t i - w e l l management p i t ? 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. Then l e t ' s do 

11 some wordsmithing. 

12 | COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Excuse me. Have we 

13 decided on a ten acre f o o t size l i m i t on t h i s ? 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: No. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No. 

16 j COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the 

17 m o d i f i c a t i o n w i l l be based on what they can do 

18 o p e r a t i o n a l l y w i t h i n two years, which should be a 

19 p r e t t y good l i m i t a t i o n on si z e . I t h i n k t h a t would 
! 

20 be greater than ten acre f e e t but i t won't be a 

21 m i l l i o n acre f e e t or 100 or something l i k e t h a t . 

22 Hopefully i t gives enough f l e x i b i l i t y t h a t they can 

23 design operations a p p r o p r i a t e l y , and I t h i n k most 

24 operations would be designed t o be completed by the 
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1 j COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I f i t was t o go 

i 

2 beyond ten acre f e e t , would there be a way we could 

3 c r a f t something where the depth wouldn't be much 

4 bigger on average than what you f i n d i n the 

5 permanent p i t so you don't have --

6 | COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k i t would be 

i 

7 more on the design s p e c i f i c a t i o n s than the l i n e r s . 

8 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Not t o exceed the 

9 design s p e c i f i c a t i o n s . 

10 | COMMISSIONER BALCH: Not t o exceed. Or 
i 

11 a c t u a l l y engineering, they u s u a l l y have a 200 

12 percent f a c t o r so you wouldn't go up t o a l i m i t of 

13 the l i n e r , you would go t o h a l f the l i m i t of the 

14 l i n e r t y p i c a l l y i n most engineering designs. 

15 j COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That could work. 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: There's one other 

17 small d e t a i l . Part of t h i s d e f i n i t i o n says 

18 " M u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s may be located 

19 e i t h e r o n - s i t e or o f f - s i t e of the w e l l d r i l l i n g 

20 l o c a t i o n . " One of the p u b l i c comments by R360 

21 Environmental Solutions t a l k e d about the d e f i n i t i o n 

22 of o n - s i t e . On t h e i r p u b l i c comment dated May 2nd, 

23 2012 on Page 7 R360 suggests keeping the word 

24 "o n - s i t e " throughout 19.15.17.11 NMAC and d e f i n i n g 
l 

25 i t i n 19.15.17.7 NMAC t o mean w i t h i n the boundaries 
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1 of the lease and/or development plan wherein 

2 e x p l o r a t i o n and production waste continues t o be 

3 under the c o n t r o l and management of the 

4 operator/producer. 

5 That would prevent a commercial l a n d f i l l 

6 from being developed on an o n - s i t e area t h a t allows 

7 disposal of the f l u i d s or temporary holding of the 

8 f l u i d s i n the m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s . The 

9 word -- I ' l l repeat t h a t . Because we use the term 

10 "o n - s i t e " i n t h i s d e f i n i t i o n , I be l i e v e we need t o 

11 have a d e f i n i t i o n of o n - s i t e t o mean w i t h i n the 

12 boundaries of the lease and/or development plan 

13 wherein e x p l o r a t i o n and production waste continues 

14 t o be under the c o n t r o l and management of the 

15 operator/producer. 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I s there ever a 

17 s i t u a t i o n where i t would be o f f - s i t e by t h a t 

18 d e f i n i t i o n ? 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: When we s t a r t a l l o w i n g 

20 f l u i d s from m u l t i p l e w e l l s t o be put i n t o an 

21 o f f - s i t e l o c a t i o n ? 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right, but I'm 

23 guessing by the d e f i n i t i o n t h a t -- where would i t be 

24 o f f - s i t e ? Because i t would s t i l l be -- they would 

25 s t i l l have t o have an agreement f o r the p i t w i t h the 
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1 surface owner. 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Maybe they are t r y i n g 

3 t o prevent somebody opening m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d 

4 . management p i t s , say, on p r i v a t e land and saying, " I 

5 w i l l take the water over t o you," or something l i k e 

6 t h a t where i t 1 s no longer i n the c o n t r o l of the 

7 owner/operator. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Somebody b a s i c a l l y 

9 saying you can put i t on my ranch? 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then they become --

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: They become a partner 

13 i n the operation. So by d e f i n i t i o n i t would be 

14 o n - s i t e . Now, the question there might be s o r t of 

15 how do you connect the water t o your operations? I 

16 t h i n k you have t o have a continuous surface area t o 

17 be able t o run your temporary p i p e l i n e , get the 

18 water from the management p i t t o the s i t e t h a t you 

19 need. So I guess o f f - s i t e , the only t h i n g t h a t 

20 would be r e a l l y o f f - s i t e i s something t h a t was 

21 disconnected t o t h a t l o c a t i o n and you would have t o 

22 have some other arrangement t o move the p i p e l i n e or 

23 pipe the water. That might be the concern. 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, i f you have 

25 m u l t i p l e leases and m u l t i p l e w e l l s i t e s and you are 
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1 using a c e n t r a l i z e d m u l t i - w e l l p i t t h a t ' s not 

2 located on the lease --

3 MR. SMITH: Let me ask you two t o keep i n 

4 mind -- and I don't know whether i t ' s used elsewhere 

5 or not -- but i f you are going t o define o n - s i t e f o r 

6 the purpose of making t h i s d e f i n i t i o n c l e a r e r , you 

7 want t o make sure t h a t however you define i t , i t 

8 does not u n i n t e n t i o n a l l y a f f e c t uses of the term 

9 o n - s i t e elsewhere i n the r e g u l a t i o n s . 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then why don't we hold 

11 o f f on debating t h i s d e f i n i t i o n f o r o n - s i t e u n t i l we 

12 see where else i n the r u l e i t may appear. We w i l l 

13 j u s t stay a l e r t . 

14 MR. SMITH: Well, not j u s t the use of the 

15 word "o n - s i t e " where i t may appear i n the amendments 

16 but use of the word " o n - s i t e " where i t ' s l e f t 

17 completely alone. I mean, you may not n o t i c e i t 

18 there, but what we should probably do i s a search 

19 f o r the word " o n - s i t e " throughout the whole 

2 0 document, not j u s t l o o k i n g at i t there. 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Seems l i k e what the 

22 i n t e n t of the e x i s t i n g d e f i n i t i o n i s , i s you 

23 wouldn't n e c e s s a r i l y have t o put i t at a w e l l 

24 d r i l l i n g l o c a t i o n . 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 
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COMMISSIONER BALCH: But I t h i n k t h a t 

2 maybe e l i m i n a t i n g the words "o n - s i t e " or " o f f - s i t e " 

3 and p u t t i n g i n something t h a t i s more appropriate 

4 would be b e t t e r than t r y i n g t o t a c k l e the issue of 

5 the d e f i n i t i o n , which may have cross-purposes i n 

6 other places. We could b e t t e r frame the i n t e n t 

7 using a d i f f e r e n t set of words. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Why don't we see where 

9 else " o n - s i t e " and " o f f - s i t e " are used w i t h i n the 

10 r u l e . 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: But other than t h a t , 

13 do we want t o use t h i s d e f i n i t i o n but i n s e r t the 

14 words i n t h a t next t o the l a s t sentence where i t 

15 says, " M u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s may be 

16 located e i t h e r o n - s i t e or o f f - s i t e of a w e l l 

17 d r i l l i n g l o c a t i o n and may remain i n use u n t i l a l l 

18 w e l l s w i t h approved a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r permits t o 

19 d r i l l APDs i d e n t i f i e d i n the p i t permit are 

20 completed." 

21 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That gives i t a 

23 two-year maximum, and t h a t would s e l f - l i m i t the size 

24 of the operation. 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Does t h a t leave some 
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ambiguity i n there about whether or not the APD 

2 could be extended? 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay, so now i n the 

4 next sentence --

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Do we want t o say 

6 "the o r i g i n a l l i f e of the APD" or add something else 

7 a f t e r t h a t which would say should the APD be 

8 extended t h i s would go before --

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: "Any extensions of 

10 approved APDs i n the p i t permit s h a l l come t o 

11 hearing." 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. Aren't 

14 extensions common? 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t depends. A l o t of 

16 times. I can't give you a number. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k t h a t 

18 addresses the time l i m i t . 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: The l i f e s p a n . 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Now we can t a l k about 

21 the other design c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s when we get t o t h a t 

22 p a r t of the r u l e . 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. So t h a t brings 

24 us t o the d e f i n i t i o n f o r permanent p i t . 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: No, t h a t hasn't 
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1 caught up ye t . 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: " U n t i l a l l w e l l s w i t h 

3 approved a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r permit t o d r i l l . " A f t e r 

4 t h a t sentence -- no. No, no.period there. That's 

5 p a r t of the sentence. Go t o the end of the sentence 

6 and i n s e r t another sentence t h a t says, "Any 

7 extensions of permits t o d r i l l i d e n t i f i e d i n the p i t 

8 permit s h a l l go t o hearing." I d e n t i f i e d i n the p i t 

9 permit s h a l l go t o hearing. 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: At the beginning we 

11 have u n t i l " a l l w e l l s " twice. 

12 MR. SMITH: Just before the language 

13 i d e n t i f i e d i n the p i t permit, do you want t o 

14 put " t h a t are" i n there? 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Put an e f f e c t i v e 

17 three-year l i f e s p a n or something on the p i t ? 

18 MR. SMITH: Do you want t o discuss the two 

19 d i f f e r e n t d e f i n i t i o n s and why you are p i c k i n g one 

20 over the other? 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: What are the 

22 d i f f e r e n c e s between the two other than what we 

23 inserted? 

24 MR. SMITH: Well, I t h i n k i t ' s the 

25 discussion of the Surface Waste Management Rule i n 
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1 the f i r s t one. I don't see t h a t i n the second one. 

2 I haven't done i t word f o r word. 

3 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Where d i d the second 

4 d e f i n i t i o n come from? 

5 MR. SMITH: I t h i n k t h a t ' s IPANM. I s t h a t 

6 IPANM? 

7 MS. FOSTER: No. 

8 MR. SMITH: You're not supposed t o t a l k . 

9 I enjoyed t h a t . 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That p o r t i o n 

11 concerning the Surface Waste Management Rule i s p a r t 

12 of the NMOGA a p p l i c a t i o n , so the second paragraph 

13 would be the IPANM. 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So what's the Surface 

15 Waste Management Rule of 193 6? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That's the Surface 

17 Waste Management Rule. 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: B a s i c a l l y governs --

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Disposal of wastes. 

20 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Since t h i s i s not a 

21 permanent --

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: There's no disposal 

23 o n - s i t e . And i f there happened t o be a leak you 

24 would have t o claim i t . So there would s t i l l be 

25 n o t i c e . 
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1 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Does t h a t c l a r i f y the 

2 r u l e by having t h a t i n there? 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k so. So we can 

4 el i m i n a t e the second paragraph, the one i n green? 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Let's see i f there 

6 are any other d i f f e r e n c e s . I don't t h i n k there are. 

7 . COMMISSIONER BALCH: Then we w i l l have t o 

8 come back. Maybe get her t o h i g h l i g h t the 

9 o n - s i t e / o f f - s i t e and we w i l l have t o come back t o 

10 t h a t and discuss t h a t l a t e r . 

11 MR. SMITH: You might want t o consider f o r 

12 c l a r i t y ' s sake, instead of saying "not governed 

13 under the Surface Waste Management Rule," i f what 

14 you r e a l l y want there i s t o say "may not be used f o r 

15 permanent d i s p o s a l " as opposed t o making some s o r t 

16 of --

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So i t would read 

18 " M u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s may not be used 

19 f o r the disposal of d r i l l i n g or completion waste." 

2 0 MR. SMITH: Are there only two kinds of 

21 waste? Do you want t o put " d r i l l i n g , completion or 

2 2 other"? I don't know. I'm j u s t a lawyer. 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That would ensure t h a t 

24 nothing i s disposed o f. 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Could i t be 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb19b22a 1 ea 



1 " M u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s may not be used 
Page 2495 

2 f o r the permanent disposal of waste"? 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: "Or other waste" 

4 covers everything. 

5 

6 

COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Okay. 

CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Good. 

7 MR. SMITH: You want t o take out the next 

8 one; i s t h a t correct? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. I t ' s 2 0 t i l l 

10 12:00. S h a l l we go f o r a couple more? 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Are they smaller? 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: They are smaller. 

13 They should not be ne a r l y as time-consuming. The 

14 next d e f i n i t i o n i s f o r permanent p i t . I t means a 

15 p i t , i n c l u d i n g a p i t used f o r c o l l e c t i o n , r e t e n t i o n 

16 or storage of produced water or b r i n e t h a t i s 

17 constructed w i t h the c o n d i t i o n s and/or the d u r a t i o n 

18 provided i n i t s permit and i s not a temporary p i t , 

19 and then they have suggested adding the language " or 

20 a p i t governed under the Surface Waste Management 

21 Rule 19.15.36," which i s the surface waste 

22 management or dis p o s a l , permanent disposal or f o r 

23 land farming. 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the reason we 

25 took i t out of the other one i s because i t was 
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temporary. But the permanent p i t i s , by i t s very 

2 nature, permanent. 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: But a permanent p i t i s 

4 s p e c i f i c a l l y f o r produced water or b r i n e . Permanent 

5 p i t does not include anything other than those two 

6 components. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k t h a t 

8 d e f i n i t i o n i s okay. 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: To include the 

10 suggested language or t o not? 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I'm not a lawyer. 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I don't t h i n k we need 

13 i t when we have Rule 3 6 t h a t says what i t covers. 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I'm f i n e w i t h t h a t . 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: S h a l l we e l i m i n a t e the 

16 suggested language? 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I would be f i n e w i t h 

18 t h a t . 

19 MR. SMITH: I don't t h i n k you need t o 

20 reference other s t a t u t e s or make a claim w i t h 

21 respect t o what i s or i s not governed as long as you 

22 are saying what you mean without reference t o the 

23 other s t a t u t e . My fea r i s i t could lead t o argument 

24 l a t e r on. Just say what you mean and stop. 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Rule 3 6 should say 
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1 what i t covers. 

2 MR. SMITH:' Yeah. 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We can go t o -- are we 

4 a l l i n agreement? 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

6 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: S h a l l we go t o playa 

8 lake? I t means a dry, barren area i n the lowest 

9 p a r t of an undrained n a t u r a l desert basin u n d e r l a i n 

10 by clay, s i l t or sand and commonly soluble s a l t , 

11 which the OCD suggests a d i f f e r e n t d e f i n i t i o n . 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Any rele v a n t s t a t e 

13 r e g u l a t i o n s t h a t describe the playa lake? 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Not t h a t I'm aware of. 

15 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So the NMOGA 

16 d e f i n i t i o n doesn't mention the formation of the 

17 temporary lake. This d e f i n i t i o n i s taken from 

18 19.15.2.7.4. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Which i s the current 

20 d e f i n i t i o n i n the OCD regs. 

21 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Okay. 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I don't see t h a t 

23 p u t t i n g the d e f i n i t i o n i n accomplishes anything. 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I don't e i t h e r . 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So --
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1 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Let me look f o r one 

2 minute i n NMOGA's c l o s i n g documents t o see i f they 

3 reference t h a t . They may t e l l why they want t o make 

4 those changes. I t says, "NMOGA proposes the 

5 a d d i t i o n of a new d e f i n i t i o n of playa lake" and 

6 gives the d e f i n i t i o n t h a t should be adopted. 

7 There's no f u r t h e r e l a b o r a t i o n . I f we want t o use 

8 t h a t over what we c u r r e n t l y have --

9 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The OCD d e f i n i t i o n 

10 b e t t e r f i t s my dim r e c o l l e c t i o n of geology. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I don't see the need 

12 t o change the d e f i n i t i o n f o r playa lake. 

13 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I would agree w i t h 

14 t h a t . 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we w i l l use the OCD 

16 d e f i n i t i o n which i s r e t a i n i n g the current d e f i n i t i o n 

17 of 19.15.2.7P4. 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Do we have t o 

19 e x p l i c i t l y s t a t e t h a t or j u s t e l i m i n a t e the 

20 d e f i n i t i o n from the proposed rule? 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We can e l i m i n a t e the 

22 d e f i n i t i o n from the r u l e because i t ' s already i n the 

23 r u l e . 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So N can go away? 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then there's the 
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1 suggested d e l e t i o n of the term r e s t o r e , which i s 

2 found predominantly i n the reclamation requirements. 

3 So I suggest we come back t o t h i s because what we 

4 decide i n the reclamation area w i l l determine 

5 whether or not we need t o r e t a i n the d e f i n i t i o n 

6 here. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: For housekeeping 

8 maybe you want t o s c r o l l back up. There were a 

9 couple other t h i n g s we want t o come back t o l a t e r 

10 before we s t a r t e d h i g h l i g h t i n g t h i n g s . Further up. 

11 I and J and, I t h i n k , S. 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. We agreed on 

13 the d e f i n i t i o n f o r continuously f l o w i n g watercourse 

14 and now we have a proposed d e f i n i t i o n f o r 

15 s i g n i f i c a n t watercourse. The proposed language 

16 e l i m i n a t e s the words "a f i r s t order" and adds "the 

17 next lower order t r i b u t a r y w i t h a defined bed and 

18 bank of such watercourse." The OCD suggestion i s "a 

19 watercourse w i t h a defined bed and bank e i t h e r named 

20 or i d e n t i f i e d by a dashed blue l i n e on a USGS 7.5 

21 minute quadrangle map or the next lower order 

22 t r i b u t a r y w i t h a defined bed and bank of such 

23 watercourse." 

24 I f we choose t o change the d e f i n i t i o n , 

25 then the OCD language i s what i s suggested. I don't 
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want t o imply t h a t the OCD i s advocating t h i s , j u s t 

2 t h a t i f we decide t o change the language, t h e i r 

3 proposed language i s b e t t e r . 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the OCD 

5 d e f i n i t i o n i s a l i t t l e more c l e a r and d e f i n i t e l y 

6 states what you're l o o k i n g f o r on the map, the 

7 dashed blue l i n e . I would p r e f e r t h a t d e f i n i t i o n . 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And i t does r e q u i r e 

9 defined bed and bank f o r a s i g n i f i c a n t watercourse 

10 or the next lower order t r i b u t a r y . 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We are a l l i n 

13 agreement t o use the OCD language? 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. Do you need 

16 t h a t language? 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: A l l r i g h t . We can 

18 move on t o d e f i n i t i o n of sump. S h a l l we do th a t 

19 a f t e r lunch? 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Looks l i k e a long 

21 one. 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t ' s one t h a t could 

23 p o s s i b l y take some time and discussion. 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: When would you l i k e t o 
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come back? 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: 1:00 o'clock? 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Ten a f t e r 1:00 we w i l l 

4 reconvene. 

5 (Note: The hearing stood i n recess at 

6 11:52 t o 1:10.) 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We w i l l go back on the 

8 record. Mr. Smith, as commission, counsel, you said 

9 you wanted t o say something? 

10 MR. SMITH: Yes. Could we put the 

11 document back up on the screen. Go down t o 

12 closed-loop. Can you a l l see that? I t has been 

13 brought t o my a t t e n t i o n , and I have confirmed, t h a t 

14 during the hearing IPANM requested the word "or 

15 workover" be p u l l e d from t h a t d e f i n i t i o n , and I 

16 wanted t o draw t h a t t o your a t t e n t i o n so you could 

17 consider whether t o do so or not. 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f I r e c a l l , the 

19 concern was i f you were doing a simple recompletion 

20 you have t o f i l e a form. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And i n the IPANM's 

22 proposed Findings of Fact they do r e i t e r a t e t h a t 

23 IPANM deleted the words "workover" before the word 

24 " f l u i d s " so t h a t i n Section 19.15.17.9 only 

25 n o t i f i c a t i o n of the use of closed-loop systems 
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1 d u r i n g operations would be requi r e d . 

2 MR. SMITH: I would l i k e t o p o i n t out t h a t 

3 I t h i n k i t ' s important t h a t i t be a r e i t e r a t i o n . 

4 Asking f o r something a f t e r the record has been 

5 closed and the p u b l i c has not had the a b i l i t y t o 

6 comment, I t h i n k would be i n a p p r o p r i a t e . But t h i s 

7 was requested during the hearing so I t h i n k you 

8 could consider t h i s change. 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. So the request 

10 i s t o delete the word "workover" and make i t "a 

11 system t h a t uses above-ground s t e e l tanks f o r the 

12 management of d r i l l i n g f l u i d s . " 

13 MR. SMITH: That's the suggestion. They 

14 haven't done i t y e t . 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Commissioner Bloom? 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I'm sorry, would you 

17 p o i n t me t o the IPANM's c l o s i n g statement? I don't 

18 know i f there's page numbers. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t ' s t h i s f a r back 

20 i n t o the Findings of Fact. The sec t i o n i s labeled 

21 the IPANM P e t i t i o n Section --

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I see i t . Thank you. 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And they reference 

24 Mr. M u l l i n s ' testimony and Mr. Scott. 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: My question t o you 
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1 would be does the OCD want t o be n o t i f i e d i f the 

2 closed-loop system i s being used f o r a workover? 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t could be a r e a l l y 

4 simple, small j o b . 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Are we considering, 

6 i n terms of n o t i f i c a t i o n f o r closed-loop systems, 

7 j u s t t u r n i n g i t i n t o a box t h a t ' s checked? 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I believe t h a t ' s 

9 what's proposed. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Right. S o ­

i l CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I f we go f u r t h e r i n t o 

12 t h a t paragraph of IPANM's Findings of Fact, i t says, 

13 "As noted by Mr. M u l l i n s , the i n t e n t of the P i t Rule 

14 r e g u l a t i o n concerns management of s o l i d s or d r i l l 

15 c u t t i n g s . Mr. Scott defined the closed-loop system 

16 as s o l i d s removal equipment t h a t i s i n a d d i t i o n t o 

17 normal d r i l l i n g equipment t h a t would be u t i l i z e d t o 

18 dewater the s o l i d s on l o c a t i o n and move them from 

19 the l o c a t i o n t o a c e n t r a l f a c i l i t y . Therefore, 

20 closed-loop systems are p a r t of the d r i l l i n g 

21 operation." 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k i t goes on i n 

23 the next paragraph, too. 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Down below i t says 
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1 Mr. Ma r t i n f o r the OCD agreed t h a t " t h i s P i t Rule 

2 doesn't p e r t a i n t o workovers." That's i n the 

3 t r a n s c r i p t , Page 1917. He would not have a problem 

4 t a k i n g the word "workover" out of the d e f i n i t i o n i f 

5 the operator i s using a tank and not a f u l l 

6 closed-loop system w i t h a shale shaker, et cetera. 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. So do you 

8 bel i e v e t h a t we could delete the words "or workover" 

9 and leave i t only f o r d r i l l i n g c u t t i n g s ? While you 

10 t h i n k about i t , Dr. Balch? 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, I can t h i n k of 

12 w e l l s where they go i n every couple months t o clean 

13 out p a r a f f i n so you are p o t e n t i a l l y c r e a t i n g a f l o o d 

14 of forms t h a t don't provide any purpose, and I t h i n k 

15 the i n t e n t as s t a t e d was t o manage the s o l i d s . 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I agree. 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Okay. I t h i n k I 

18 agree w i t h t h a t . 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. So we w i l l 

20 remove the words "or workover" from the d e f i n i t i o n 

21 of closed-loop systems so i t reads "Means a system 

22 t h a t uses above-ground s t e e l tanks f o r the 

23 management of d r i l l i n g f l u i d s . " Did you have 

24 anything else, Mr. Smith? 

25 MR. SMITH: No, ma'am. Except t h a t I do 
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1 have a search t h a t Theresa d i d f o r o n - s i t e and 

2 o f f - s i t e whenever you a l l are ready t o go back and 

3 consider i t . 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, we can since she 

5 has i t handy. 

6 MR. SMITH: Probably I should j u s t hand i t 

7 t o you guys. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Looks l i k e a good 

9 number of instances. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: A l o t of those w i l l 

11 be t o o n - s i t e b u r i a l . 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. Why don't we 

13 j u s t leave i t a s - i s unless we see a reason t o change 

14 i t when we get f a r t h e r back i n t o i t ? 

15 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k t h a t ' s wise. 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Continue on u n t i l we 

17 f i n i s h the r e s t of the d e f i n i t i o n s . 

18 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: This was i n reference 

19 t o the m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s , c o r r e c t . 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. Okay. We can go 

21 t o sump as our next d e f i n i t i o n . And the suggested 

22 language has been "means a subgrade impermeable 

23 vessel t h a t i s p a r t i a l l y b u r i e d i n t o ground. I t ' s 

24 i n contact w i t h the ground surface or i s a 

25 c o l l e c t i o n device incorporated w i t h i n a secondary 
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1 containment system w i t h a capacity less than or 

2 equal t o 500 ga l l o n s , which remains predominantly 

3 empty, serves as a d r a i n or receptacle f o r de 

4 minimis releases on an i n t e r m i t t e n t basis, and i s 

5 not used t o st o r e , t r e a t , dispose of or evaporate 

6 products of waste." Adding the language "Buckets, 

7 p a i l s , d r i p pans or s i m i l a r vessels t h a t are not i n 

8 contact w i t h the ground surface are not sumps." 

9 Dr. Neeper, i n h i s testimony, requested 

10 t h a t we remove the size so t h a t we have a system 

11 which remains predominantly empty. Doesn't matter 

12 what s i z e , according t o Dr. Neeper. 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And 500 gallons i s 

14 approximately 2 0 b a r r e l s , I guess, between 15 and 2 0 

15 b a r r e l s . I can env i s i o n a system where you may want 

16 t o have a l a r g e r sump. I f you have a l i m i t a t i o n on 

1 

17 the siz e , you might have under-engineered a 

18 pr o t e c t e d response t h a t you are t r y i n g t o achieve. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That's a p o i n t . The 

2 0 OCD has suggested language which says, "A c o l l e c t i o n 

21 device w i t h a capacity less than or equal t o 500 

22 g a l l o n s . " That's i f we decide we want t o use t h a t 

23 si z e , "Which remains predominantly empty and serves 
24 as a d r a i n or receptacle f o r releases on an 
25 i n t e r m i t t e n t basis and i s not used t o st o r e , t r e a t , 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1dec-4e80-a925-ffb19b22a1 ea 



Page 2507 

1 dispose of or evaporate products or wastes. 

2 Buckets, p a i l s , d r i p pans, et cetera." So i t ' s j u s t 

3 a change of wordsmithing there f o r the OCD's 

4 suggestion. 

5 I t h i n k the de minimis phrase i s an 

6 important key t o what t h i s i s and I believe t h a t 

7 inspectors have had problems considering buckets as 

8 sumps and so I understand why t h a t l a s t sentence was 

9 added t o t h i s d e f i n i t i o n . 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k t h a t l a s t 

11 sentence c e r t a i n l y makes sense i n l i g h t of t h a t . 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The f u n c t i o n of the 

13 sump i s t o be an always-present emergency overflow, 

14 not a bucket or other catch basin language. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I have no problem w i t h 

16 t h i s d e f i n i t i o n as proposed. And you say t h a t we 

17 should leave the volume d e s c r i p t i o n i n there? 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k so. This i s 

19 a question of f u n c t i o n , and as Dr. Neeper said, the 

20 size of i t r e a l l y depends upon what i t i s you are 

21 t r y i n g t o p r o t e c t . I may have made t h a t l a s t 

22 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n myself. The f u n c t i o n i s t o have an 

23 emergency overflow t h a t i s s u f f i c i e n t f o r every 

24 operation. 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Are sumps subject t o 
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1 inspection? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

3 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Okay. How frequent 

4 i s that? 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Whenever the inspector 

6 i s out at the f a c i l i t y . 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f i t has f l u i d i n 

8 i t , i t b e t t e r have been i n there a very short p e r i o d 

9 of time. The sump i s the catch basin and then they 

10 w i l l come and pump i t out w i t h a t r u c k or something 

11 l i k e t h a t . 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: On an i n t e r m i t t e n t 

13 basis and not used t o st o r e , t r e a t , dispose of or 

14 evaporate. So s h a l l we accept Dr. Neeper's 

15 m o d i f i c a t i o n ? 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: My concern i s these 

17 get r e a l l y b i g and we are engineering something 

18 t h a t ' s huge and t h i s i s s i t t i n g on the ground, but 

19 i f i t ' s inspected and the i n t e g r i t y i s checked, I 

20 don't t h i n k the size p a r t i c u l a r l y matters. 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You want them t o size 

22 i t t o the j o b . 

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah. Okay. 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we can delete the 

25 language " w i t h the capacity less than or equal t o . " 
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So i t would read, "Or i s a c o l l e c t i o n device 

2 incorporated w i t h i n a secondary containment system 

3 which remains predominantly empty." I s t h a t 

4 correct? 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We can go t o the next 

7 d e f i n i t i o n , temporary p i t ? Dr. Neeper also 

8 suggested t h a t i f we incorporate the words "and 

9 s o l i d s " t h a t we sp e c i f y t h a t t h a t ' s minimal s o l i d s 

10 and not p a i n t cans. 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: He suggested "and 

12 s o l i d s " . 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Which NMOGA d i d not 

14 have "and s o l i d s . " 

15 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: My only concern i s 

16 would a p a i n t can be i n t e r p r e t e d as a mineral soli d ? 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That would r e a l l y be 

18 pushing i t . 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I thought we could 

20 include i t . There might be a b e t t e r way t o phrase 

21 i t . 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, I t h i n k 

23 Dr. Neeper's concern was people throwing wrenches or 

24 a chunk of broken pipe. Some of i t may damage the 

25 inner l i n e r i n t e g r i t y r e a l l y . I t h i n k t h a t ' s a 
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1 v a l i d concern. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. And then IPANM 

3 suggested t h a t we add the language, " W i l l be closed 

4 i n less than one- year from the spud date" so t h a t we 

5 have a beginning time t o s t a r t from when we are 

6 t a l k i n g about closure. 

7 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Can I r a i s e an issue 

8 here? There's a l o t of th i n g s t h a t we may be t r y i n g 

9 t o do w i t h the temporary p i t so i t would be 

10 extending the closure date out s i x months. You 

11 might have t h a t p i t serving more than one w e l l . I t 

12 would then be burying i t s contents w i t h d i f f e r e n t 

13 concentration of contaminants t h a t are of i n t e r e s t 

14 t o us. 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k there's 

16 a c t u a l l y a separate -- we are addressing m u l t i - w e l l 

17 f l u i d management p i t s separately from temporary p i t , 

18 which are j u s t f o r the d r i l l i n g phase of the 

19 operation, whereas m u l t i - w e l l management p i t s are 

2 0 more f o r completion. 

21 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Here I'm t a l k i n g 

2 2 about the temporary p i t being used f o r more than one 

23 w e l l s . 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I see, yes. We have 

25 the o n - s i t e or o f f - s i t e aga in . 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb19b22a1 ea 



1 
Page 2511 

COMMISSIONER BLOOM: One t h i n g I would 

2 add, too, i s the way we have been asked t o deal w i t h 

3 the temporary p i t i s allow the l i q u i d s t o stay i n 60 

4 days versus the curr e n t 30, so we are going t o have 

5 more l i n e r s out there. I t might have l i q u i d s i n i t 

6 30 days post-production or 60 days. I t could have 

7 s i x months exposure t o the elements or now i t could 

8 be a year. 

9 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Not only a year, but 

10 i f you have m u l t i p l e w e l l s , when does the spud date 

11 s t a r t ? On the f i r s t w e l l or the second w e l l or the 

12 t h i r d or the f i f t h ? 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t ' s not s p e c i f i c , i s 

14 i t ? 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: No. Again, I t h i n k 

16 you would l i k e t o be able t o come up w i t h a way 

17 where you could use the p i t f o r more than one w e l l 

18 i f you have c l o s e l y spaced completions. You don't 

19 want fo u r p i t s i f you.can avoid i t . 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We encourage reuse and 

21 recycled and d r i l l i n g p i t s can be reused and 

22 recycled. 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k i f we can 

24 come up w i t h a way t o ensure t h a t they don't become 

25 semi-permanent as we d i d w i t h m u l t i - w e l l p i t s t h a t 
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1 can be t r a n s p a r e n t l y regulated, t h a t w i l l be a good 

j 

2 idea. \ 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We would be deali n g 

4 w i t h t h a t under the closure requirement. 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Let me throw one more 

6 t h i n g out there, and t h a t i s when I believe i t was 
i 

7 Mr. Gantner was g i v i n g h i s testimony on a l l o w i n g a j 

8 temporary p i t t o serve more than one w e l l , he said 

9 t h a t t y p i c a l l y there have been periods i n the past 

10 where they wanted one p i t t o serve two w e l l s , and i t 

11 sounded l i k e t h a t ' s what they wanted t o do. 

12 Commissioner Balch, when you were cross-examining \ 
if 

13 Mr. Gantner, t h a t came up again, t h a t r e a l l y what j 

14 they are lo o k i n g t o do i s have t h a t p i t serve two ] 

15 w e l l s . j 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t would become 

17 i m p r a c t i c a l c e r t a i n l y t o serve more than a few j 

18 because of spacing. But i f you could use one f o r 

19 two or one f o r three, t h a t would be e f f i c i e n t . I 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I guess my only j 

21 r e s e r v a t i o n about -- no, I have a couple 

22 re s e r v a t i o n s about extending the temporary p i t t o | 

23 more than one w e l l , and t h a t would be when we 

24 see more of a -- I don't know i f it''S a r e s e r v a t i o n 1 
! 

25 but we might see more of a concen t r a t i on o f 
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1 contaminants t h a t we are concerned about, but I 

2 guess the p i t would be d e a l t w i t h accordingly. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You have t o close the 

4 p i t i f you are above the t h r e s h o l d . 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Right, doesn't matter 

6 how many w e l l s fed i n t o i t . So maybe I don't have 

7 t o worry about t h a t . The other one i s i f the p i t i s 

8 being used f o r t h i s extended p e r i o d of time, i t 

9 might not be an extended p e r i o d of time but seeing 

10 more use, more f l u i d s going through i t , w i l l the 

11 l i n e r hold up t o the same extent? 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I'm not sure we heard 

13 any d i r e c t testimony about how durable p i t s are, 

14 temporary p i t s . 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, there are 

16 s p e c i f i c a t i o n s f o r the thickness of the l i n e r and 

17 there are s p e c i f i c a t i o n s f o r t e a r s i n the l i n e r 

18 above or below the water l i n e . 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So i n the d e f i n i t i o n 

20 the way i t ' s w r i t t e n r i g h t now, i t says "constructed 

21 w i t h the i n t e n t t h a t i t w i l l hold l i q u i d s and w i l l 

22 be closed i n less than one year," so i t doesn't 

23 matter how many w e l l s you service i f you close 

24 w i t h i n one year. 
25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I f you add "from the 
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1 spud date." 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t would have t o be 

3 the f i r s t w e l l . That's when you are i n t o operation. 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We could say t h a t , 

5 from the spud date of the f i r s t w e l l . 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Would t h a t a l l e v i a t e 

7 your concern, Commissioner Bloom? The time s t a r t s 

8 when you f i r s t s t a r t t o use the p i t b a s i c a l l y ? 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k t h a t would be 

10 h e l p f u l . 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we could i n s e r t the 

12 words, "And would be closed w i t h i n one year from the 

13 spud date of the f i r s t w e l l . " Do we need t o get 

14 more s p e c i f i c than "of the f i r s t well"? 

15 MR. SMITH: I was j u s t t h i n k i n g about 

16 t h a t . Why don't you leave i t t h a t way f o r now. 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. I have some 

18 concerns about the l a s t sentence of t h i s d e f i n i t i o n 

19 where i t says, "Any freshwater containment s t r u c t u r e 

2 0 such as a pond, p i t or other impoundment i s not a 

21 temporary p i t . " I would l i k e t o i n s e r t the word, 

22 "Any untreated freshwater s t r u c t u r e . " Or "any I I i 

23 containment s t r u c t u r e h o l d i n g untreated freshwater | 

1 
24 i f i t does not inc lude produced water or o ther j 
25 f l u i d s or contaminants ." j 
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1 Because so many times the freshwater 

2 containment s t r u c t u r e could have bi o c i d e or 

3 something added t o i t , and i n my mind t h a t ' s no 

4 longer freshwater containment. 

6 a d e f i n i t i o n of freshwater? I don't know i f t h i s 

7 happens i n New Mexico or i f i t has happened, but 

8 when you are t r y i n g t o f i n d water f o r f r a c f l u i d s , 

9 people are going t o u n t r a d i t i o n a l sources -- c i t y 

10 water, which might be t r e a t e d t o make i t , obviously, 

11 more d r i n k a b l e . 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: True. 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Swimming pools. 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: You would have the 

15 c h l o r i n e . Well, t h a t ' s an i n t e r e s t i n g p o i n t . 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I appreciate the 

17 d i s t i n c t i o n , because t h i s i s something t h a t w i l l 

18 probably be open t o have c a t t l e come up and d r i n k 

19 out of i t . A k i d might swim i n i t , t h i n g s l i k e 

2 0 t h a t . 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Or we could put i t 

22 t h i s way: "Any freshwater containment s t r u c t u r e 

23 such as a pond, p i t or other impoundment i s not a 

24 temporary p i t i f i t does not include produced water 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Do we have somewhere 

25 or o ther f l u i d s or mixed contaminants ." 
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1 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Can we put t h a t up? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: " I f i t does not 

3 contain produced water or other f l u i d s or other 

4 contaminants." 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Other contaminants? 

6 MR. SMITH: I s contaminant defined? 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No. 

8 MR. SMITH: I d i d n ' t t h i n k so. 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Does not contain 

10 produced water or other i n d u s t r y - r e l a t e d f l u i d s ? 

11 I n d u s t r y - s p e c i f i c f l u i d s ? 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, the word 

13 " t r e a t e d " i s great. The problem i s , what i f they 

14 are using c i t y water? You don't want them t o take a 

15 non-temporary p i t , storage, f o r water and then s t a r t 

16 t o p r e t r e a t i t f o r s t i m u l a t i o n f l u i d . 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We could use the word 

18 " i n d u s t r y f l u i d s . " Scratch the l a s t p a r t "or other 

19 contaminants" and j u s t say, "Does not contain 

20 produced water or other i n d u s t r y f l u i d s , 

21 i n d u s t r y - r e l a t e d f l u i d s . " This i s going t o be an 

22 a t t r a c t i v e s t r u c t u r e f o r w i l d l i f e of any kind. 

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I f i t was t r e a t e d 

24 c i t y water i t would s t i l l f i t i n t h a t d e f i n i t i o n 
25 unless there's an issue w i t h c h l o r i n e or something. 
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1 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I wonder i f there's a 

2 d e f i n i t i o n f o r freshwater. 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I don't t h i n k the WQCC 

4 has a d e f i n i t i o n of freshwater, but I know t h a t 

5 IPANM i n t h e i r Findings of Fact -- was i t ? 

7 the l a s t sentence need t o be i n there? Why do we 

8 need t o exclude these? 

10 are going t o be p e r m i t t i n g temporary p i t s . This 

11 would be a hol d i n g pond somewhere where they store 

12 freshwater nearby from a farm or some other source 

13 and then they w i l l be d i s t r i b u t i n g i t t o p i t s 

14 through t r u c k i n g or something l i k e t h a t . That's my 

15 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . What you don't want them t o do i s 

16 t o take t h a t b i g pond and s t a r t messing w i t h i t s 

17 chemistry p r i o r t o i t being a production p i t , so 

18 i t ' s r e a l l y -- I t h i n k t h i s i s a form f o r 

19 approaching k i n d of a discussion. I f we go back t o 

20 what the basic d e f i n i t i o n i s , we might be able t o 

21 come at t h i s from another d i r e c t i o n . 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: But I don't t h i n k we 

23 have a d e f i n i t i o n f o r freshwater. We have something 

24 t h a t ' s been suggested. 

25 MR. SMITH: Would i t help i f you put 

6 MR. SMITH: Commissioner Balch, why does 

9 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, okay. So we 
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instead of any freshwater containment s t r u c t u r e , any 

2 containment s t r u c t u r e t h a t holds freshwater or t h a t 

3 i s h o l d i n g freshwater? Because i f i t ' s freshwater 

4 i t ' s not going t o be produced. I t ' s not going t o be 

5 

6 

f r e s h , i s i t , i f i t has i n d u s t r y - r e l a t e d f l u i d s i n 

i t ? Do you have a l l you need j u s t by saying 

7 freshwater and t a k i n g the s t r u c t u r e and rev e r s i n g i t 

8 so t h a t the s t r u c t u r e i s defined by t h a t which i t 

9 holds? 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k t h a t maybe 

11 the way t o go on t h i s i s somehow g e t t i n g language 

12 t h a t i t does not have an i n f l u x of water from a 

13 producing w e l l --

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, we don't want i t 

15 t o be t r e a t e d w i t h --

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, other 

17 i n d u s t r y - r e l a t e d f l u i d s , I t h i n k t h a t covers 

18 everything. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t r e a l l y does. 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: But i n 

21 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , what's an i n d u s t r y - r e l a t e d f l u i d ? 

22 Well, not a l l i n d u s t r y - r e l a t e d f l u i d s do not have 

23 other uses. You know, there are contexts. For 

24 example, c h l o r i n e t o c i t y water or f l u o r i d e or 

25 something l i k e t h a t . I'm sure there's probably 
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1 b e t t e r examples out there than t h a t . The main t h i n g 

2 i s t h i s i s a source of freshwater and i t ' s never had 

3 contact from i n d u s t r y . A l l they would be doing i s 

4 drawing f l u i d from i t . That's the bottom l i n e . 

5 MR. SMITH: Why not j u s t say, "Can only 

6 contain freshwater"? 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Let's s t r u c t u r e i t 

8 t h a t way. 

9 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Unless somebody wants 

10 t o argue t h a t the C i t y of Hobbs' water i s n ' t f r e s h . 

11 MR. SMITH: Hobbs w i l l be pleased, I'm 

12 sure. 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So i t should read --

14 how d i d you have i t before? 

15 MR. SMITH: So i t would be "a containment 

16 s t r u c t u r e t h a t holds freshwater, such as" -- and 

17 then i t would go on. 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Holds only freshwater. 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Holds only 

20 freshwater. 

21 MR. SMITH: What you want t o do i s a f t e r 

22 the word "any" at the beginning 

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Type i t out a f t e r 

24 t h a t sentence and we can compare i t . S t a r t over. 

25 MR. SMITH: "Any containment s t r u c t u r e 
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1 t h a t holds only freshwater" and then continue on 

2 w i t h i t j u s t the way i t i s up there, "such as a 

3 pool, p i t or other," and j u s t repeat t h a t . I'm 

4 sorry, stop. Okay. Go ahead. 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Stop at p i t or keep 

6 going? 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k you stop at 

8 p i t . 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Are we agreed on that? 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yeah. 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Theresa, i f you would 

13 delete the previous sentence then. 

14 MR. SMITH: What you might do a f t e r the 

15 f i r s t w e l l up there, Madam Chair, you remember you 

16 asked should we j u s t leave i t at that? Spud date of 

17 the f i r s t well? 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

19 MR. SMITH: You might want t o put i n there 

20 a f t e r the f i r s t w e l l language l i k e "the l i q u i d from 

21 which i s placed i n the p i t . " 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We want t o say 

23 b a s i c a l l y when the p i t f i r s t goes i n t o service. 

24 MR. SMITH: Right. I t would be the spud 

25 date from the f i r s t w e l l , the l i q u i d of which i s 
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1 placed i n the p i t . I t would s t i l l be the spud date. 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We marked spud date, 

3 though, r i g h t ? And I don't know i f we marked when 

4 the l i q u i d would f i r s t come out of the w e l l and i n t o 

5 the --

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t could be some time 

7 l a t e r . I don't know. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We have not discussed 

9 whether or not i t should be open f o r s i x months or 

10 closed i n less than a year. 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We need t o t a l k about 

12 t h a t , and one w e l l or more than one w e l l . 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We need t o have t h a t 

14 s t a r t i n g date as t o when you are going t o r e q u i r e 

15 the closure. 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k I would be 

17 okay w i t h spud date of the f i r s t w e l l . 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Spud date i s c l e a r l y 

19 i d e n t i f i a b l e i n the c i t y records. 

20 MR. SMITH: The f i r s t w e l l on the lease? 

21 The f i r s t w e l l i n the area? 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: F i r s t w e l l using the 

23 p i t . 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: The shared p i t or 

25 something. 
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1 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The problem i s you 

2 have "Temporary p i t s may be used f o r more than one 

3 or more w e l l s . " I t h i n k you want t o take the 

4 "Temporary p i t s may be used f o r on or more w e l l s " 

5 and put t h a t i n f r o n t of -- there's no place t o put 

6 i t . We're t a l k i n g about the concept of m u l t i p l e 

7 w e l l s before we define the p o s s i b i l i t y of m u l t i p l e 

8 w e l l s . 

9 MR. SMITH: Yeah, I t h i n k t h a t makes 

10 sense. So what Commissioner Balch i s t a l k i n g about, 

11 see the f i r s t red t h a t says "temporary p i t s may be 

12 used"? Take t h a t sentence and put i t --

13 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Put i t behind " s i x 

14 months." 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Why d i d you want t o 

16 move t h a t sentence? 

17 MR. SMITH: Well, I t h i n k the reason 

18 Commissioner Balch wanted t o move i t i s because i t 

19 makes i t p l a i n t h a t a temporary p i t may be used f o r 

20 more than one w e l l s , because the d e f i n i t i o n of your 

21 spud date imp l i e s t h a t there may be more than one 

22 w e l l t h a t i s used. So the movement of t h a t sentence 

23 would be l a y i n g the p r e d i c a t e f o r the i m p l i c a t i o n 

24 t h a t more than one w e l l can be used. The problem 

25 i s , i t doesn't make any sense t o say "Temporary p i t 
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1 means temporary p i t s may be used." That's not going 

2 t o work. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Maybe i f you went 

4 r i g h t up t o where i t says, "Which i s constructed f o r 

5 the use of one or more w e l l s and w i t h the i n t e n t " --

6 MR. SMITH: Wait a minute. You can say, 

7 "Means a p i t i n c l u d i n g a d r i l l i n g or workover p i t 

8 which i s constructed w i t h the i n t e n t t h a t the p i t 

9 w i l l hold l i q u i d s , " p e r i o d . "Temporary p i t s may be 

10 used f o r more than one w e l l s , " b l ah blah blah. Then 

11 make i t temporary p i t -- make i t mandatory --

12 temporary p i t s must be closed i n less than one --

13 and then move on t h a t way. That way you accomplish 

14 what you want t o accomplish. 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Now we are j u s t 

16 adding the time. 

17 MR. SMITH: Do you want t o see what t h a t 

18 looks l i k e ? What you want t o do, I t h i n k , i s 

19 instead of "and" put "temporary p i t s must be 

20 closed." See i f t h a t does what you want. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So the question 

22 becomes we have a temporary p i t t h a t may be used --

23 t h a t has d r i l l i n g mud and other f l u i d s t h a t may be 

24 used f o r more than one w e l l . The p i t does not have 

25 n e t t i n g but i t does have a fence. I t i s l i n e d . I t 
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1 may be located o f f - s i t e from where they were reused, 

2 recycled, t h a t d r i l l i n g mud. So the question i s , 

3 can we leave i t open f o r a year or does i t need t o 

4 be closed i n s i x months? 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: No. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: What have you been 

7 seeing i n p r a c t i c e ? Do you have a l o t of people 

8 asking f o r extensions? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yeah. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Very often? Common 

11 enough where you are going t o increase the paperwork 

12 load? 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: The extension i s 

15 granted? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Most of the time 

17 unless there's reason not t o . 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: A l l they can do i s 

19 shut the d r i l l i n g down and close the b i d and open a 

2 0 new one. Okay. So c u r r e n t l y i t ' s s i x months, which 

21 appears t o at l e a s t i n some percentage of cases be 

22 too sho r t . 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: E s p e c i a l l y i f i t ' s 

24 duri n g w i n t e r t i m e or something. 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: What s o r t of 
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1 extensions are u s u a l l y granted? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Six months. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Which makes i t a 

4 year. So e s s e n t i a l l y i t ' s a u t o m a t i c a l l y g r a n t i n g 

5 the extension f o r s i x months under the current Rule 

6 19. 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: There was some 

8 discussion about t h a t i n the t r a n s c r i p t . 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Chairman Bailey, do 

10 we ever grant a second extension? 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Not t h a t I'm aware of. 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Could we --

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: There would have t o be 

14 extenuating circumstances? 

15 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Would we put language 

16 i n there t h a t would say something along the l i n e s 

17 of, "Extensions w i l l not be granted a f t e r one year." 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k "must be 

19 closed" k i n d of takes care of t h a t . I f they don't 

2 0 want t o close i t , they have t o go t o hearing. 

21 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: True. 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Or ask f o r a variance. 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We haven't gotten t o 

24 t h a t y e t . 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Tha t ' s tomorrow. 
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1 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: With what we heard 

2 from testimony, i t was the desire t o use the 

3 temporary p i t f o r two wells? I t h i n k I would be 

4 more comfortable w i t h t h a t language i n t h a t we're 

5 not c r e a t i n g a backdoor t o a m u l t i - w e l l temporary 

6 p i t , I guess. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Something l i k e , "As 

8 many as two w e l l s " or three w e l l s or something. 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Temporary p i t s may be 

10 used f o r up t o two wells? 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Up t o two wells? 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: One or two w e l l s . 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I guess i f they want 

14 t o do three or four they have t o ask f o r an 

15 exception or a variance. I would be comfortable 

16 w i t h t h a t . I t h i n k i t becomes i m p r a c t i c a l t o 

17 service too many w e l l s w i t h one d r i l l i n g p i t . 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, the mud 

19 i t s e l f --

2 0 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f you have t o pump 

21 at any distance. 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Help me get a b e t t e r 

23 understanding of o n - s i t e / o f f - s i t e i m p l i c a t i o n s 

24 because now you t y p i c a l l y see the temporary p i t 

25 there i n very, very close p r o x i m i t y t o the w e l l . 
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1 What s o r t of distances could we be lo o k i n g at 

2 between them? Where would the p i t be located 

3 between two wells? 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: What i s on - s i t e and 

5 what i s o f f - s i t e ? 

6 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: A d r i l l i n g pad could 

8 be one d e f i n i t i o n of o n - s i t e and i t could also be 

9 the e n t i r e lease. 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Uh-huh. I f the size 

11 of the lease v a r i e s depending on what the Land 

12 O f f i c e and the f e d e r a l government or the fee lands 

13 determine. 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: What could the 

15 spacing be? 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Down t o 20 f o r the --

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: What, spacing? 

18 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That's the smallest 

19 spacing I could t h i n k o f. 

2 0 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: For i n - f i e l d d r i l l i n g . 

21 But we also have the 320 and 640. 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That's where - - i t 

23 would probably be i m p r a c t i c a l t o use the temporary 

24 p i t f o r two w e l l s at the 320 unless you have them 

25 near each other w i t h h o r i z o n t a l s always going away. 
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1 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: From the same w e l l pad 

2 we may have m u l t i p l e w e l l s because of d i r e c t i o n a l 

3 d r i l l i n g . So the d e f i n i t i o n t h a t says only two 

4 w e l l s , we may have m u l t i p l e w e l l s coming o f f of t h a t 

5 same w e l l pad. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: They have d r i l l i n g 

7 islands i n the potash reserve. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. So t h a t would be 

9 a r e a l problem because we would l i k e t o have as 

10 l i t t l e surface disturbance or as few p i t s as 

11 necessary. 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I n t h a t case, I guess 

13 then I have renewed concern f o r the p r o t e c t i o n 

14 o f f e r e d by the 20 m i l l i n e r . I t h i n k i f we increase 

15 the number of w e l l s , h o r i z o n t a l , t o share one head, 

16 does t h a t --

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The problem w i t h 

18 l i n e r s , you know, w i t h i n a year i t ' s not going t o 

19 degrade because of the environment. I t w i l l degrade 

20 because of people throwing a wrench on i t and 

21 running over i t w i t h b u l l d o z e r s or something l i k e 

22 t h a t . Sharp rocks maybe a l i t t l e b i t ? I don't 

23 know. The 20 m i l l i n e r i s p r e t t y t h i c k . 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t i s . 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k we a c t u a l l y 
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1 have testimony -- I can't remember who said i t but 

2 of c l o s i n g the p i t and seeing the o u t l i n e of a 

3 wrench i n the bottom of the l i n e r . So i t can take a 

4 good amount of abuse. 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I don't know i f t h i s 

6 was durin g the hearing or elsewhere but I t h i n k we 

7 have seen p i c t u r e s , too, of l i n e r s t h a t have been 

8 t o r n up by the wind and probably come loose, 

9 unanchored, and they don't l a s t long i n 50 

10 mile-an-hour New Mexico winds. 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That's a l i t t l e hard 

12 t o p r e d i c t , because i f the wind event happens i n 

13 August and you d r i l l i t i n September the previous 

14 year, i t would take 12 months f o r i t t o get t o t h a t 

15 p o i n t . But i f you d r i l l i t i n July , i t might happen 

16 w i t h i n 30 days. So t h a t i s r e a l l y up t o the good 

17 design and good monitoring of the p i t during i t s 

18 operation, which I t h i n k may f a l l more a p p r o p r i a t e l y 

19 under the S p i l l Rule. 

2 0 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, we do address 

21 r e p o r t i n g of t o r n l i n e r s l a t e r i n the r u l e . 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We don't need t o get 

23 too f a r out. I don't know t h a t a 20 m i l l i n e r i s 

24 going t o survive 50 mile-an-hour winds b e t t e r than a 

25 3 0 m i l l i n e r . I hadn't considered t h a t , but we 
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could have m u l t i p l e w e l l s coming o f f of one hole and 

2 you are p r o t e c t i v e of the disturbance and not have 

3 too much surface disturbance. 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We want t o allow the 

5 d r i l l i n g p i t t o be there f o r a l l w e l l s t h a t are 

6 d r i l l e d o n - s i t e . 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: What happens now i n 

8 case of one of these d r i l l i n g islands? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, we don't have 

10 any y e t . 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I know Bass has 

12 d r i l l e d w e l l s i n the potash reserve. There's 

13 d r i l l i n g i s l a n d s . 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay, but not the one 

15 t h a t ' s been proposed by the BLM. 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, t h a t ' s somebody 

17 else's can of worms. 

18 MR. SMITH: I f your concern i s m u l t i p l e 

19 w e l l s from one pad, i s n ' t t h a t of necessity going t o 

20 be on-site? 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

22 MR. SMITH: So why would you want t o leave 

23 o f f the "or o f f - s i t e " ? 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the t h i n g we 

25 are w r e s t l i n g w i t h i s what i s on-site? I s i t the 
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1 e n t i r e lease or i s i t the pad? I f i t ' s the e n t i r e 

2 lease i t could be q u i t e a distance away. 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: But we don't want t o 

4 l i m i t the number of w e l l s t h a t can use the w e l l pad, 

5 as we were discussing a while ago. 

6 MR. SMITH: Why don't you say f o r more 

7 than one well? 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We have one or more 

9 w e l l s was the o r i g i n a l language. 

10 MR. SMITH: One or are more w e l l s and then 

11 t i e t h a t t o the pad i f t h a t ' s what you are concerned 

12 about. 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: There's two 

14 scenarios. There's the scenario where you have a 

15 d r i l l i n g i s l a n d and there are m u l t i p l e w e l l s from a 

16 r e l a t i v e l y l a r g e r w e l l than normal f o r f i v e or s i x 

17 l a t e r a l s going up. Also i n shale d r i l l i n g now they 

18 do a l o t of t h i s and i f shale d r i l l i n g becomes b i g 

19 i n New Mexico you w i l l see the same t h i n g , where you 

20 have m u l t i p l e l a t e r a l s and you have a pad t h a t ' s 

21 long and you have the wellheads spaced every 25 t o 

22 30 f e e t or something l i k e t h a t . The other scenario 

23 i s where you have two leases next t o each other. 

24 Say they're 32 0, but your pads are close enough t o 

25 each other where you can share one d r i l l i n g pad. So 
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1 there's two scenarios t h a t are addressed by t h i s 

2 language. 

3 MR. SMITH: Well, maybe i t introduces some 

4 vagary, but instead of saying e i t h e r o n - s i t e or 

5 o f f - s i t e , do you want t o introduce the n o t i o n of 

6 p r o x i m i t y t o the w e l l pad? 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k we need t o 

8 f i g u r e out what o n - s i t e and o f f - s i t e mean, whether 

9 i t ' s p r o x i m i t y or lease-wide or something. 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Do you want t o review 

11 the suggested language t h a t came i n i n the p u b l i c 

12 comment from R360? The word "o n - s i t e " t o mean 

13 w i t h i n the boundaries of the lease and/or 

14 development plan wherein e x p l o r a t i o n and production 

15 waste continues t o be under the c o n t r o l and 

16 management of the operator/producer. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yeah. 

18 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: What about the 

19 scenario where you have a lease, 640 acres, and you 

2 0 have two 32 0s and they both want t o d r i l l from the 

21 same corner, so e s s e n t i a l l y your p i t could be a h a l f 

22 mile apart. Would t h i s even be feas i b l e ? 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k i t becomes 

24 i m p r a c t i c a l t o pump the mud t h a t distance. 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So i t would be more 
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1 i n the case you j u s t described t o Mr. Smith of two 

2 320s and the w e l l s are being d r i l l e d on the l i n e 

3 and --

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The w e l l pads would 

5 have t o be f a i r l y close t o each other, I t h i n k , t o 

6 make i t p r a c t i c a l . 

7 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So t h a t r e a l l y 

8 wouldn't be a concern i f we have a p i t on one corner 

9 of a 320 and then a few hundred -- assuming a h a l f 

10 mile away you have the other w e l l being d r i l l e d and 

11 t h a t temporary p i t i s going t o service t h a t w e l l . 

12 That would not happen. I t ' s j u s t i m p r a c t i c a l . 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I'm not an expert on 

14 t h a t s o r t of f l u i d flow, but you have a mud and 

15 you're c i r c u l a t i n g i t . That's going t o have an 

16 awful l o t of res i s t a n c e . I don't t h i n k p r a c t i c a l l y 

17 t h a t you could have something t h a t was s i g n i f i c a n t l y 

18 longer. You would use i t i n a case where you have 

19 two very near w e l l pads. 

20 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Perhaps one l i n e of 

21 t h i n k i n g on t h i s could be we want t o have d i f f e r e n t 

22 language f o r a temporary p i t t h a t ' s s e r v i c i n g 

23 m u l t i p l e h o r i z o n t a l s o f f of one pad and other 

24 language where we have the separate scenario where 

25 i t ' s two 320s on a 640 acre lease? I'm j u s t 
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1 throwing s t u f f out. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I f i t i s i m p r a c t i c a l 

3 or too expensive, i n d u s t r y i s not going t o use the 

4 mud, so i n t h a t way i t i s l i m i t i n g r i g h t there. I f 

5 we allow the language t o say "temporary p i t s may be 

6 used f o r one or more w e l l s , " then t h a t takes care of 

7 the m u l t i l a t e r a l s from one lease or one w e l l pad. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, I t h i n k i t 

9 r e a l l y comes down t o t i m i n g . How long do you want a 

10 temporary p i t t o e x i s t ? I f you are going t o service 

11 so many m u l t i l a t e r a l s i t w i l l take you more than a 

12 year, you probably ought t o do something d i f f e r e n t 

13 w i t h your p i t . I t h i n k t h a t r e a l l y b o i l s down your 

14 concern. 

15 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t does. 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So f o r the f i r s t 

17 t h i n g t o decide, I t h i n k , i s how long you would l e t 

18 a temporary p i t e x i s t , no matter how many w e l l s are 

19 using i t . Then i f you need a p i t f o r longer than 

20 t h a t , there's a s o l u t i o n . I t ' s c a l l e d a permanent 

21 p i t . 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, permanent p i t s are 

23 on ly f o r producing - -

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: W e l l , okay, you ' r e 

25 r i g h t . I t h i n k t h a t ' s where you would have t o 
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1 t r i g g e r a variance or --

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The automatic renewal. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, some s o r t of 

4 ov e r s i g h t . I f you want t o have a temporary p i t more 

5 than X time, be i t a year or s i x months or whatever, 

6 I t h i n k t h a t ' s a d i f f e r e n t animal. You have t o look 

7 f o r something d i f f e r e n t . Now, i f you do ask f o r an 

8 exception or a variance, then I guess there's a 

9 process f o r t h a t . 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Under Rule 17 we 

11 haven't seen much use of the exception, so I don't 

12 know t h a t there would be anything out there. But 

13 have you seen, Chairman Bailey, any requests f o r an 

14 exception t h a t would allow a temporary p i t t o go 

15 more than a year? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That's handled at the 

17 d i s t r i c t o f f i c e , so I would not n e c e s s a r i l y become 

18 aware of i t . I t ' s j u s t handled through the d i s t r i c t 

19 supervisor. 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Would a more robust 

21 l i n e r be required? 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, because you are 

23 not going t o r e l i n e the p i t t h a t ' s already there. 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That's t r u e . I was 

25 wondering i f the exception occurred from the 
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1 outside. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We d i d have 

3 discussions about the automatic renewals f o r the 

4 closure of the p i t s . Remember that? Where they get 

5 the six-month extension? 

6 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I don't remember 

7 t h a t . I w i l l have t o go back and read i t . That was 

8 a proposal? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Ms. Foster t a l k e d or 

10 questioned the witnesses about the automatic 

11 extensions. And i t i s r e g u l a r l y given. So i f we 

12 are having m u l t i p l e w e l l s using one p i t so t h a t we 

13 have less disturbance, I don't t h i n k t h a t i t ' s out 

14 of l i n e t o go ahead and have the one-year closure 

15 time and then t h a t saves t h a t surface disturbance. 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k i f i t ' s more 

17 than a year, then apply f o r an exception or variance 

18 and they would go t o the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e and/or 

19 hearing, and then t h a t hearing or the d i s t r i c t 

20 o f f i c e might s p e c i f y a more s t r i n g e n t l i n e r or 
21 something l i k e t h a t . 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: But the l i n e r i s 

j 

23 a l ready t h e r e . I t ' s not l i k e - -

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: W e l l , I ' m t a l k i n g 

25 about a case where somebody knows they w i l l need i t 
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1 f o r more than a year, where they are going t o d r i l l 

2 e i g h t l a t e r a l s from one w e l l pad. I t hasn't 

3 happened i n New Mexico yet but I t h i n k i t could 

4 happen. 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We could always leave 

6 t h a t door open f o r an operator t h a t has t h a t many 

7 w e l l s or knows beforehand t h e y ' l l need i t . So can 

8 we l i v e w i t h the d e f i n i t i o n "means a p i t i n c l u d i n g a 

9 d r i l l i n g or workover p i t which i s constructed w i t h 

10 the i n t e n t t h a t the p i t w i l l hold l i q u i d s " ? Well, 

11 i t ' s also going t o hold s o l i d s . 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Mineral s o l i d s , 

13 r i g h t ? 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Liquids and mineral 

15 s o l i d s . 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: " W i l l hold l i q u i d s and 

17 mineral s o l i d s . Temporary p i t s may be used f o r one 

18 or more w e l l s . " Delete t h a t up t o two w e l l s , "and 

19 located e i t h e r o n - s i t e or o f f - s i t e of a w e l l 

20 d r i l l i n g l o c a t i o n . Temporary p i t s must be closed i n 

21 less than one year from the spud date of the f i r s t 

22 w e l l using the p i t . Any containment s t r u c t u r e t h a t 

23 holds only freshwater, such as a pond, p i t or other 

24 impoundment, i s not a temporary p i t . " Can we l i v e 

25 w i t h that? 
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1 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k so f o r me, 

2 although I t h i n k the language about o n - s i t e might be 

3 us e f u l t o define somewhere. 

4 MR. SMITH: I f your concern i s t o ensure 

5 t h a t the temporary p i t be somewhere around the pads, 

6 as I appreciate i t , the way -- I would suggest from 

7 the l e g a l standpoint you not r e l y on p r a c t i c a l 

8 l i m i t a t i o n s , t h a t you t r y t o s t a t e something t h a t 

9 gets at your i n t e n t i n t h a t regard. 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Which i s why the 

11 d e f i n i t i o n of o n - s i t e versus o f f - s i t e would be 

12 u s e f u l . 

13 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Or we go around t h a t 

14 and we could say something l i k e , "Temporary p i t s 

15 must be located on a pad." J 

16 MR. SMITH: That's not going t o help you 

17 w i t h respect t o m u l t i p l e pads. 

18 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: No. 

19 MR. SMITH: And even i f you define 

20 o n - s i t e , i f you say e i t h e r o n - s i t e or o f f - s i t e , you 

21 haven't done anything t o f i x your problem w i t h 

22 respect t o t h i s d e f i n i t i o n . 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Because a l l t h i s says 

24 i s t h a t they can move i t from one d r i l l i n g l o c a t i o n 

25 t o another d r i l l i n g l o c a t i o n . 
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1 MR. SMITH: Right. I mean, t o say i t can 

2 e i t h e r be o n - s i t e or o f f - s i t e means close t o the pad 

3 or i n my l i v i n g room. P r a c t i c a l considerations 

4 might keep them from a l i v i n g room, but i f what your 

5 i n t e n t here i s t o say somewhere i n the neighborhood 

6 of the w e l l s t h a t are using the p i t , then you need 

7 t o f i g u r e out some s o r t of way t o say t h a t i f t h a t ' s 

8 what you mean. I f t h a t ' s not what you mean i t 

9 doesn't make a d i f f e r e n c e . 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, the d e f i n i t i o n 

11 of o n - s i t e t h a t was proposed by the p u b l i c commenter 

12 b a s i c a l l y says on lease. The reason f o r the on 

13 lease d e f i n i t i o n was t h a t then other waste 

14 management i s the r e s p o n s i b i l i t y of the operator i n 

15 t h a t area. 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Could we have a 

17 s i t u a t i o n where you create the temporary p i t t h a t 

18 serves one or more w e l l s and i t ' s s i t t i n g -- the 

19 temporary p i t i s o f f on i t s own s o r t of between the 

20 number of d r i l l i n g l o c a t i o n s r a t h e r than being on 

21 one of the d r i l l i n g l ocations? 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Not inconceivable. 

23 Nothing denies t h a t . 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: With technology you 

25 can do amazing t h i n g s . 
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1 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So I guess I wonder 

2 about surface disturbance, i f t h a t ' s c r e a t i n g --

3 would t h a t be ideal? 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Every time you d r i l l 

5 a p i t you are c r e a t i n g a surface disturbance. 

6 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: But ge n e r a l l y now we 

7 see the p i t and the d r i l l i n g equipment --

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Localized. 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: -- l o c a l i z e d , yeah, 

10 e s s e n t i a l l y a l l i n one area. So t h i s could allow 

11 something where you have two d r i l l i n g s i t e s and a 

12 temporary p i t i n the middle and you have an ex t r a 

13 road i n between them. I don't know. 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: What I t h i n k i s 

15 probably a more l i k e l y scenario i s t h a t we have a 

16 temporary p i t at one w e l l l o c a t i o n and they want t o 

17 d r i l l a w e l l at another l o c a t i o n . They go and pump 

18 out the f l u i d s from one p i t and go put i t i n another 

19 p i t and t h a t way they are removing the d r i l l i n g muds 

20 and p u t t i n g i t f o r reuse/recycle at the other w e l l . 

21 I mean, I would b e l i e v e t h a t would a more l i k e l y 

22 scenario. 

23 MR. SMITH: But i f you want t o allow what 

24 Commissioner Bloom has j u s t described --

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Or not allow. 
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1 MR. SMITH: Right. But i f you want t o 

2 allow what Commissioner Bloom has described, then 

3 saying something about i t being w i t h i n a p r o x i m i t y 

4 of the w e l l pad might not get you there. 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So I know what the 

6 average pad size i s . What, i f anything, d i c t a t e s 

7 the size of the pad t h a t can be put down? 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The number of t r u c k s , 

9 the amount of a c t i v i t y , the depth of the w e l l and 

10 the proposed --

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So there are only 

12 o p e r a t i o n a l c o n s t r a i n t s . No one i s going t o make a 

13 500 by 200 f o o t pad. 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Most leases are f o r as 

15 much of the surface as i s necessary f o r the 

16 operation. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So the s i t u a t i o n 

18 there, compared t o what you were t a l k i n g about where 

19 you have Pad 1 and Pad 2 w i t h a c i r c u l a t i n g f l u i d 

2 0 p i t i n the middle. Instead of having Pad 1 and Pad 

21 2, they might j u s t make a bigger pad t h a t 

22 encompasses a l l of t h a t . You might a c t u a l l y 

23 increase the surface disturbance i n t h a t scenario 

24 compared t o having a s i n g l e p i t between. But I 
25 don't know i f t h a t e n t i r e pad has t o be paved 

j 
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1 over -- not paved over but does the e n t i r e pad have 

2 t o be worked? Flattened? Leveled? 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Has t o be? 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So i f you j u s t l i m i t 

7 i t t o a pad you might end up w i t h the scenario of 

8 two w e l l s o f f of one p i t where they put i n a bigger 

9 pad. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I'm not t r y i n g t o 

11 f i n d a new thi n g s but j u s t look at the unintended 

12 consequence. 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I understand. That's 

14 why I pointed out the unintended consequence. 

15 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah. 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The operators have a 

17 l o t of d i s c r e t i o n as f a r as setbacks and things l i k e 

18 t h a t , about where they can place the w e l l w i t h i n 

19 t h e i r lease. 

2 0 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: There are d r i l l i n g 

21 windows f o r l o c a t i o n of w e l l s , but there's a l o t of 

22 d i s c r e t i o n w i t h i n t h a t general window. 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. So i f you 

24 could encourage people t o locate the d r i l l i n g pads 

25 c l o s e r t o one another, you are going t o o v e r a l l 
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1 decrease the number of roads t h a t are necessary t o 

2 access the same resource. One way t o encourage them 

3 i s t o allow them t o use the d r i l l i n g p i t s f o r more 

4 than one w e l l . P r a c t i c a l l y speaking, you w i l l have 

5 a hard time using i t f o r more than two, except f o r 

6 the case of d r i l l i n g i s l a n d s where you could be 

7 using any number i n theory. 

8 Now, you could l i m i t i t t o two and then 

9 have s p e c i f i c exceptions f o r d r i l l i n g i s l a n d s . 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a 

11 mistake. 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: How come? 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Because we w i l l have 

14 many wellbores coming from one w e l l pad w i t h the 

15 l a t e r a l s and they are not n e c e s s a r i l y d r i l l i n g 

16 i s l a n d s . 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Just a r e a l l y long 

18 pad. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k we can j u s t 

20 leave the language as i t i s and allow variances i f 

21 they are needed. 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k i f i t ' s 

23 c l e a r l y s t a t e d "must be closed w i t h i n a year," i t ' s 

24 i n t h e i r operation plan.and i t ' s going t o take them 

25 18 months, then they have t o come and get a variance 
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1 or an exception. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Uh-huh. 

.3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And po s s i b l y beef up 

4 t h e i r design. 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. 

6 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I f i t ' s okay w i t h you 

7 a l l , I would l i k e t o sleep on t h i s and t h i n k about 

8 o n - s i t e / o f f - s i t e a l i t t l e b i t more. I t h i n k we are 

9 moving towards s t i l l c onsidering whether or not t o 

10 remove the language about only having f l u i d s i n the 

11 p i t f o r s i x months. I t h i n k these p i t s are going t o 

12 see more a c t i v i t y than they would have p r e v i o u s l y . 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We can come back t o 

14 t h i s . 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: This i s h i g h l i g h t e d . 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k we w i l l be 

17 able t o make b e t t e r progress by j u s t coming back t o 

18 something a f t e r we t h i n k about i t some more. 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We w i l l get t o the 

20 place where we have t o have a d e f i n i t i o n of 

21 temporary p i t s and we w i l l come back t o i t . 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The next d e f i n i t i o n i s 

23 unconfined groundwater. We deleted the d e f i n i t i o n 

24 f o r confined groundwater, seeing t h a t we d i d not 

25 want t o make t h a t d i s t i n c t i o n between confined and 

I 
l 
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1 unconfined, so i f we hold w i t h t h a t j u s t i f i c a t i o n , 

2 we could go ahead and dele t e t h i s d e f i n i t i o n . Are 

3 we a l l agreed t o delete the d e f i n i t i o n f o r 

4 unconfined? 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Agreed. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And then we come t o 

8 the d e f i n i t i o n f o r v i s i b l e , which we touched on 

9 l i g h t l y when we t a l k e d about measurable. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We put o f f t a l k i n g 

11 about measurable. 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We wanted t o t a l k 

13 about v i s i b l e before. I t ' s one of those t h i n g s 

14 where you have two issues t h a t are i n t e r t w i n e d . You 

15 can see the w e l l before you can measure i t . You 

16 have a molecule t h i c k l e v e l of o i l t h a t you can't 

17 measure but you can see. 

18 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k i f t h i s helps 

19 any, I appreciated OCD's recommendations on v i s i b l e . 

2 0 I t h i n k the concern w i t h NMOGA's proposal was t h a t 

21 how and when do you have 30 percent i f i t ' s a windy 

22 day and the sheen would be swept t o one side of the 

23 p i t . So I p r e f e r OCD's. 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Sounds l i k e the 

25 measuring i s not a complicated task, so i f someone 
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1 goes out and they see o i l , they should make a make a 

2 note of i t . 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So what we can do i s 

4 delete the language t h a t says, "means any sheen t h a t 

5 occupies 30 percent or more of the t o t a l p i t l i q u i d 

6 surface area," and simply use the OCD suggested 

7 language of, "any sheen on the p i t l i q u i d surface 

8 area." Are we a l l i n agreement w i t h that? 

9 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k so. Then we 

10 go back and look at measurable, I suppose. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: "Measurable means a 

12 la y e r of o i l greater than a sheen t h a t i s measurable 

13 by c o l o r c u t t i n g or other acceptable method," which 

14 gives us our cont r a s t between v i s i b l e and 

15 measurable. 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: OCD coincides w i t h 

17 t h a t . 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Color c u t t i n g , see 

19 how much i t reacts. That makes sense. 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. So we are 

21 accepting the d e f i n i t i o n f o r measurable as "means a 

22 la y e r of o i l greater than a sheen measurable by 

23 c o l o r c u t t i n g or other acceptable method." 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So when the OCD 

25 inspector goes out there, they have the means t o do 
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1 t h a t w i t h them i n t h e i r truck? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. And when they 

4 make the measurement, then they would c a l c u l a t e some 

5 area as the thickness and see i f i t t r i g g e r s a 

6 response or not? 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Seems appropriate. 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Now we come t o the 

10 d e f i n i t i o n f o r wetlands. "Means those areas t h a t 

11 are inundated or saturated by surface or groundwater 

12 of a frequency and d u r a t i o n s u f f i c i e n t t o support 

13 and under normal circumstances t o support a 

14 prevalence of veg e t a t i o n t y p i c a l l y adapted f o r l i f e 

15 i n saturated s o i l c o n d i t i o n s i n New Mexico. This 

16 d e f i n i t i o n does not constructed wetlands used f o r 

17 wastewater purposes." Do you have an opinion on 

18 t h a t d e f i n i t i o n ? 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Are there any other 

20 d e f i n i t i o n s of wetlands t h a t we need t o deal with? 

21 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Who d i d the proposal 

22 come from? 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Must be IPANM. No, 

24 t h a t ' s not OCD, t h a t would be IPANM. 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: A l l the m o d i f i c a t i o n s 
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1 are i n green. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Green means IPANM. 

3 The red was NMOGA. 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Some of the green was 

5 OCD. 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k the question 

7 here i s whether or not constructed wetlands used f o r 

8 wastewater purposes f a l l s under the d e f i n i t i o n of 

9 wetlands, which would be n a t u r a l wetlands. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: IPANM i n i t s c l o s i n g 

11 says, "Wetlands d e f i n i t i o n added by IPANM t o 

12 h i g h l i g h t the l a s t sentence proposed as t h i s 

13 d e f i n i t i o n does not include constructed wetlands 

14 used f o r wastewater purposes. The IPANM concern 

15 revolves around b u i l d i n g a r e t e n t i o n pond and 

16 avoiding c l a s s i f i c a t i o n of the wetland. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So why use the word 

18 wastewater? Wouldn't t h i s apply t o any f r e s h water 

19 storage? I f you leave i t there long enough ducks 

20 w i l l land on i t . 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: They w i l l . And we 

22 have no a u t h o r i t y f o r c l o s i n g dates f o r freshwater 

23 impoundments, so i t ' s a matter of do we determine 

24 t h a t man-made wetlands --

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Are there other 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb 19b22a 1 ea 



1 
Page 2549 

d e f i n i t i o n s of wetlands used i n Fish & w i l d l i f e ? 

2 Game & Fish? 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I don't know. 

4 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I'm sure there are. 

5 And maybe what we could do i s i n order t o look at 

6 t h a t we could s k i r t i t and j u s t say, "Wetlands do 

7 not include constructed wetlands or constructed 

8 areas used f o r wastewater purposes" or something 

9 l i k e that? 

10 MR. SMITH: Why don't you l e t me look and 

11 see i f I can f i n d another d e f i n i t i o n of wetlands and 

12 you can come back t o i t . 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. We could take a 

14 break. 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That's the l a s t 

16 d e f i n i t i o n . 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Let's take a 

18 ten-minute break. 

19 (Note: The hearing stood i n recess at 

20 2 :30 t o 2 :45.) 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: A l l r i g h t . Mr. Smith? 

22 I b e l i e v e d u r i n g the break you were checking t o f i n d 

23 a d e f i n i t i o n f o r wetlands t h a t would already be 

24 e s t a b l i s h e d i n New Mexico? 

25 MR. SMITH: Yes. I t ' s on the screen here. 
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1 I t ' s from NMAC 20.6.4.7(W)(4) which i s under Chapter 

2 6, Water Q u a l i t y , Standards f o r I n t e r s t a t e and 

3 I n t r a s t a t e Surface Water. 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That's s u b s t a n t i a l l y 

5 the same. 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t i s . The only 

7 d i f f e r e n c e i s the very l a s t sentence. The proposed 

8 language t h a t IPANM gave us was "This d e f i n i t i o n 

9 does not include constructed wetlands used f o r 

10 wastewater purposes," and t h a t d e f i n i t i o n has the 

11 l a s t sentence saying "That brings i n surface waters 

12 of the s t a t e and wastewater treatment," which I 

13 t h i n k may not be c o r r e c t , but I t h i n k wastewater 

14 treatment has t o do w i t h c i t y sewage ponds and t h a t 

15 type of a c t i v i t y r a t h e r than what we have here, 

16 which i s waste water, two words. 

17 MR. SMITH: I t h i n k t h a t ' s r i g h t . 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The d i s t i n c t i o n i s 

19 t h a t one deals w i t h treatment f a c i l i t i e s f o r c i t i e s 

20 and counties and people, and t h i s one has t o do w i t h 

21 waste water t h a t i s p a r t of the o i l and gas 

22 a c t i v i t y ? 

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So what we are t r y i n g 

24 t o prevent i s p i t or other body of water t h a t the 

25 i n d u s t r y would use or create from being seen as a 
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1 wetlands, correct? 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Evaporation ponds, 

3 things l i k e t h a t . 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: But i n t h a t case 

6 couldn't we j u s t adopt the previous d e f i n i t i o n w i t h 

7 the l a s t sentence as a caveat? 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I'm not sure I 

9 understand what you j u s t s a i d. Adopt the proposed 

10 language by IPANM or the --

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: No, I t h i n k you want 

12 t o use the e x i s t i n g r e g u l a t o r y language, and then i f 

13 you want t o be s p e c i f i c about not i n c l u d i n g 

14 constructed wetlands used f o r wastewater purposes, 

15 you would add t h a t o f f . I don't t h i n k you have t o 

16 have a d e f i n i t i o n of wetlands i n there. You could 

17 say "wetlands, as defined by NMAC" whatever. 

18 MR. SMITH: Well, the question there would 

19 be, though, i f you are going t o allow something 

20 constructed f o r wastewater purposes under the O i l 

21 and Gas Act t o come w i t h i n the d e f i n i t i o n of the 

22 WQCC wetlands, does t h a t r e q u i r e -- I mean, are 

23 there r e g u l a t i o n s t h a t are going t o apply t o t h a t 

24 t h a t you don't know about? Now, t h i s i s pursuant t o 

25 the Water Q u a l i t y Act, and you a l l are a c o n s t i t u e n t 
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1 agency, correct? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

3 MR. SMITH: Which as I appreciate i t means 

4 t h a t you enforce the Water Q u a l i t y Act. So the 

5 question i s , i f you're going t o include wastewater 

6 wetlands t h a t have been constructed by the o i l and 

7 gas i n d u s t r y i n the d e f i n i t i o n of wetlands, what 

8 does t h a t mean w i t h respect t o your r e g u l a t i o n of 

9 them under the water q u a l i t y ? 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That we should not 

11 include t h i s d e f i n i t i o n i n our r u l e . 

12 MR. SMITH: I'm not saying t h a t you 

13 shouldn't, I'm saying t h a t you may be i n a s i t u a t i o n 

14 where you need t o enforce r e g u l a t i o n s , the scope of 

15 which I'm unable t o t e l l you r i g h t now, though I can 

16 f i n d i t out. 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, discharge plans 

18 are an example of where we use and enforce the water 

19 q u a l i t y c o n t r o l r e g u l a t i o n s and there could be 

20 wetlands t h a t would be developing outside of t h e i r 

21 evaporation ponds, f o r example, at a f a c i l i t y . This 

22 would be changing or c r e a t i n g -- not changing but 

23 c r e a t i n g a question of which act i s being -- or 

24 which r e g u l a t i o n s are being enforced? 

25 MR. SMITH: I t would be c r e a t i n g t h a t 
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1 question. That's r i g h t . j 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. So i f we don't | 

3 have t h i s d e f i n i t i o n and the l a s t sentence as a | 

4 caveat, i s t h a t a b e t t e r way t o do t h i s ? ] 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. Not t o have t h i s j 

6 d e f i n i t i o n . 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: What happens now f o r | 

8 these c o n s t r u c t i n g wetlands? Do we have a l i f e 

9 cycle defined by permit? 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No. ) 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So j u s t created -- j 

12 MR. SMITH: You already have the 

13 d e f i n i t i o n of wetlands. j 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Under the Water | 

15 Q u a l i t y Control r e g u l a t i o n s . j 

16 MR. SMITH: No, I t h i n k under your 1 

17 r e g u l a t i o n s . I t h i n k t h a t ' s r i g h t . Hang on. j 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Here i t i s . I t means 

19 "Those areas t h a t are inundated and saturated by | 

20 surface t o groundwater at a frequency and d u r a t i o n 1 

21 s u f f i c i e n t t o support and under normal circumstances 

22 do support a prevalence of veg e t a t i o n t y p i c a l l y 

23 adapted f o r l i f e and saturated s o i l c o n ditions i n 

24 New Mexico. This d e f i n i t i o n does not include i 

25 constructed wetlands used f o r wastewater treatment j 
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1 purposes." 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So e s s e n t i a l l y we 

3 already have a d e f i n i t i o n . 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We already have a 

5 d e f i n i t i o n and i t exempts --

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Wastewater. 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Wastewater treatment, 

8 not waste water purposes. 

9 MR. SMITH: And wastewater treatment would 

10 be consistent w i t h the WQCC d e f i n i t i o n . 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I s there a s i t u a t i o n 

13 where you constru c t a wetland and not t r e a t i t ? 

14 What i s the d e f i n i t i o n of treatment? I s a l l o w i n g i t 

15 t o evaporate a treatment? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. This i s a 

18 question t h a t has -- t h a t I have thought about a 

19 couple of times i n regards t o coal bed methane 

2 0 produced water i n the Raton Basin t h a t i s cleaner 

21 than the Pecos River water yet i t ' s i n d u s t r i a l waste 

22 and we can't do anything w i t h i t . 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t ' s produced water. 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I don't see a need t o 
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1 change our current d e f i n i t i o n . I don't t h i n k we had 

2 s u f f i c i e n t testimony t o change our current 

3 d e f i n i t i o n . 

4 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: The change would only 

5 be wastewater would be adding treatment there. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: E s s e n t i a l l y . 

7 MR. SMITH: The change would be --

8 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Change would be two 

9 purposes. 

10 MR. SMITH: Change would be the delete the 

11 word "treatment," r i g h t ? 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And combine 

13 waste water i n t o one word, which has a d i f f e r e n t 

14 meaning than waste water? 

15 MR. SMITH: Wastewater purposes i s 

16 c e r t a i n l y a very d i f f e r e n t phrase from waste water 

17 treatment purposes. That's not an inconsequential 

18 change. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I agree t h a t we 

21 d i d n ' t . 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f the e x i s t i n g 

23 d e f i n i t i o n already i n the r e g u l a t i o n covers t h i s 

24 area, then I don't see why i t needs t o be addressed. 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I agree w i t h t h a t . 
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1 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. That conclusion 

2 our discussion about d e f i n i t i o n s , except f o r those 

3 d e f i n i t i o n s t h a t we w i l l come back t o , one of them 

4 having t o do w i t h low c h l o r i d e , one of them having 

5 t o do w i t h o n - s i t e and o f f - s i t e designations, and 

6 one of them having t o do w i t h temporary p i t s . Other 

7 than t h a t , we have reached agreement w i t h the other 

8 d e f i n i t i o n s . Do I hear a motion t o adopt --

9 MR. SMITH: I'm so r r y , before you do t h a t , 

10 Madam Chair, you want t h i s wetlands d e f i n i t i o n 

11 deleted then, correct? 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

13 MR. SMITH: Okay. 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Do I hear a motion t o 

15 adopt those d e f i n i t i o n s t h a t we have agreed on and 

16 t o come back t o deal w i t h low c h l o r i d e , o n - s i t e and 

17 o f f - s i t e and temporary p i t s ? 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: At a l a t e r time. 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I would so move. 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I would second. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: A l l i n favor? Aye. 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Aye. 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Aye. 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. We can move t o 

25 19.15.17.8, Permit or R e g i s t r a t i o n Required, where 
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1 the words "or r e g i s t r a t i o n " are i n s e r t e d i n the 

2 t i t l e . Below-grade tanks are removed from the 

3 requirement f o r a d i v i s i o n - i s s u e d permit and 

4 closed-loop systems are something t h a t we need t o 

5 t a l k about and j u s t r e g i s t r a t i o n of below-grade 

6 tanks. We w i l l go l i n e by l i n e . I agree we need t o 

7 put i n "or r e g i s t r a t i o n " i n the t i t l e . Do you both 

8 agree w i t h that? 

9 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f the idea as t o 

10 e l i m i n a t e 5,000 below-grade tanks. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Ten thousand. 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I underestimated i t . 

13 Then t h a t would c e r t a i n l y be the case. 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We have agreed t o 

16 include "or r e g i s t r a t i o n " i n the t i t l e . 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: F i r s t l i n e , "A person 

19 s h a l l not construct or use a p i t , " and the 

20 suggestion i s to..delete the words "or below-grade 

21 tank except i n accordance w i t h the d i v i s i o n - i s s u e d 

22 permit." I be l i e v e t h a t makes sense i f we are going 

23 t o have r e g i s t r a t i o n of the below-grade tanks r a t h e r 

24 than the p e r m i t t i n g of the below-grade tanks. We 

25 had q u i t e a b i t of discussion on t h a t . 
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1 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We d i d . 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, I t h i n k i t was 

3 demonstrated p r e t t y c o n c l u s i v e l y t h a t those e x i s t i n g 

4 tanks are never going t o be processed using the 

5 current system, and the r e g i s t r a t i o n would at l e a s t 

6 give you most of the rel e v a n t i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t you 

7 need, how long i t ' s been i n operation and the 

8 maintenance schedule, i f necessary, by examining the 

9 records of the operator. I f I r e c a l l c o r r e c t l y . 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And r e g i s t r a t i o n would 

11 s t i l l be p r o t e c t i v e of groundwater. I t would not 

12 harm or cause any a d d i t i o n a l p o t e n t i a l t h r e a t t o 

13 groundwater. 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Because of the 

15 regul a r i n s p e c t i o n and t e s t i n g . 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah. 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we agree t o delete 

19 the words "or below-grade tank" i n s e c t i o n A? 

20 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Agreed. 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Agreed. 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The suggestion i s made 

23 t o delete a l l of the cur r e n t B and instead have 

24 a d d i t i o n a l paragraphs below, but we would then skip 

25 t o "i s s u i n g a s i n g l e permit f o r a l l p i t s , " d e l e t i n g 
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"below-grade tanks, closed-loop systems or d i v i s i o n 

2 approved" -- and also include "or division-approved 

3 a l t e r n a t i v e methods associated w i t h a s i n g l e 

4 a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a permit t o d r i l l . " That removes 

5 the permit r e q u i r e d f o r a below-grade tank and the 

6 closed-loop system. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And allows the 

8 i n c l u s i o n at some f u t u r e date of the p r o v i s i o n of 

9 other approved methods. 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right now an 

12 a p p l i c a t i o n f o r closed-loop system i s a s i n g l e page 

13 and i t ' s t r e a t e d p r e t t y much as a rubber stamp at 

14 the d i v i s i o n l e v e l ? 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So a l l i t does i s 

17 create paperwork and doesn't serve a r e a l purpose. 

18 But t o r e g i s t e r them much l i k e the tanks, you know 

19 when and where they were operated. 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, the l a s t 

21 paragraph of t h i s says t h a t closed-loop systems and 

22 sumps don't r e q u i r e e i t h e r a permit or a 

23 r e g i s t r a t i o n , t h a t they are simply used as p a r t of a 

24 d r i l l i n g system and n e i t h e r a r e g i s t r a t i o n nor a 

25 permit are requi r e d . I bel i e v e we had s u f f i c i e n t 
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1 testimony on t h a t . 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Looking at OCD ' s 

3 language here. I guess t h a t ' s the next s e c t i o n 

4 where we see n o t i f i c a t i o n r e q u i r e d , correct? So we 

5 are g e t t i n g away from p e r m i t t i n g or r e g i s t r a t i o n t o 

6 n o t i f i c a t i o n , correct? So e s s e n t i a l l y the a d d i t i o n 

7 of D i s n ' t complicated by the n o t i f i c a t i o n 

8 requirement t h a t comes i n the next s e c t i o n , correct? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Okay. 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And i t s i m p l i f i e s 

12 operations because they don't have t o f i l e another 

13 a p p l i c a t i o n w i t h the BLM or other r e l a t e d agencies. 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. These also 

15 introduce the n o t i o n of a s i n g l e r e g i s t r a t i o n f o r 

16 a l l below-grade tanks as p a r t of the APD system. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Single r e g i s t r a t i o n 

18 f o r a l l below-grade tanks. So they f i l e something 

19 w i t h a l i s t ? 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: For a l l the 

22 below-grade tanks i n c l u d i n g the l o c a t i o n and a l l 

23 that? 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So Company A could 

25 r e g i s t e r a l l t h e i r below-grade tanks i n New Mexico 
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2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f they add a tank, 

4 how does i t get added t o the l i s t ? 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: They do an a d d i t i o n a l . j 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f they remove one do | 

7 they send a rev i s e d l i s t every so often? 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That comes i n the next j 

9 s e c t i o n of 17.9, Permit A p p l i c a t i o n and 

10 R e g i s t r a t i o n . There's a whole p o r t i o n t o go t o 

11 below-grade tanks, so at t h i s p o i n t we are simply 

12 saying t h a t we w i l l not r e q u i r e the p e r m i t t i n g or 

13 r e g i s t r a t i o n of closed-loop systems and sumps, t h a t j 

14 below-grade tanks may be r e g i s t e r e d and s i n g l e 

15 r e g i s t r a t i o n i s good f o r a l l of t h e i r below-grade 

16 tanks at t h a t l o c a t i o n . 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: But I t h i n k 

18 Commissioner Balch's question might s t i l l be of 

19 i n t e r e s t . O p e r a t i o n a l l y would t h i s allow, as i t 

20 stands -- we might need t o take the two sections 

21 together. I don't know i f they are r e l a t e d , but 

22 would i t allow f o r updates or re q u i r e an annual 

23 update or re q u i r e somebody t o 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No. I t requires 
k 

25 i n s p e c t i o n s . Below-grade tanks are inspected. 
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1 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Right. But would the 

2 l i s t be updated or would the company n o t i f y OCD when 

3 a tank i s removed or a tank i s sold? 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Or closed out? 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Closed, yeah. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Transferred. 

7 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I'm j u s t wondering 

8 about the l o g i s t i c s of OCD keeping updated paperwork 

9 and compliance. 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the i n i t i a l 

11 round of lo o k i n g at t h i s page i s t o see i f the 

12 language i s appropriate. I t h i n k the language i s 

13 appropriate, assuming we work our way through the 

14 r e g i s t r a t i o n page as w e l l , so I t h i n k we can look at 

15 the language and say r i g h t now i t looks f i n e and 

16 then go back and r e w r i t e i t a f t e r we are done w i t h 

17 Section 17.9. 

18 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I agree w i t h t h a t . 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we w i l l have a 

20 c o n d i t i o n a l approval of the suggested language i n 

21 17.8? 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah, I t h i n k we can 

23 a l l agree on a l l t h a t language. Yes. 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The language t h a t the 

25 operator may f i l e a s i n g l e r e g i s t r a t i o n f o r a l l 
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below-grade tanks. 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Shall? 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k " s h a l l " i s 

4 b e t t e r than "may," because you have "must be 

5 r e g i s t e r e d " i n the f i r s t sentence and then may f i l e 

6 the l i s t . I s t h a t t o allow them t o have m u l t i p l e 

7 l i s t s i f they want? 

8 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Maybe "The operator 

9 s h a l l r e g i s t e r a l l below-grade tanks" and they can 

10 decide i f i t ' s one l i s t or numerous l i s t s ? 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: This i s a l l r e l a t e d t o 

12 a s i n g l e a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a permit t o d r i l l , i f you 

13 w i l l look at the l a s t sentence of the paragraph 

14 above. "The d i v i s i o n may issue a s i n g l e permit f o r 

15 a l l p i t s or division-approved a l t e r n a t i v e methods 

16 associated w i t h a s i n g l e a p p l i c a t i o n f o r permit t o 

17 d r i l l . " 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: S i m i l a r language i n 

19 C. 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. Sh a l l f i l e a 

21 s i n g l e r e g i s t r a t i o n f o r a l l below-grade tanks 

22 associated w i t h --

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: But i s the i n t e n t --

24 okay. I s t h a t the i n t e n t or i s i t the i n t e n t t o 

25 have one master l i s t f o r t h e i r e n t i r e operation i s a 
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1 p o s s i b i l i t y ? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k t h a t would 

3 create more chaos than anything else. 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So i t ' s b e t t e r t o 

5 associate i t w i t h an indexable APD number. 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. 

7 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: But what about the 

8 backlog t h a t ' s out there? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That's p e r m i t t i n g , not 

10 r e g i s t r a t i o n . That's a laborious process of going 

11 through and analyzing each and every tank t h a t ' s 

12 operating. 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: B a s i c a l l y you f i l e a 

14 C 144 f o r each tank, which takes a week or so of 

15 processing time on OCD's side? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, i t ' s o nly being 

17 looked at upon request of s p e c i f i c tanks f o r when 

18 operators are s e l l i n g the f a c i l i t y or t r a n s f e r r i n g 

19 the tanks. So f o r No. C should we have the l a s t 

20 sentence, "The operator s h a l l f i l e a s i n g l e 

21 r e g i s t r a t i o n f o r a l l below-grade tanks associated 

22 w i t h a s i n g l e a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a permit t o d r i l l " and 

23 t h a t way we are not t a l k i n g about the e n t i r e l i s t of 

24 every below-grade tank they have i n the state? 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 
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1 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That w i l l be e a s i l y 

2 and t r a n s p a r e n t l y regulated? 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Through the API 

4 number. 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f they have three 

6 tanks associated w i t h an operation 1 they could j u s t 

7 send a l i s t of three tanks w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

9 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Or have i t attached 

10 t o the a p p l i c a t i o n ? I f they changed i t when then 

11 they would modify i t ? 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So d i d you p i c k t h a t 

13 up, Theresa? C, the very l a s t sentence of C should 

14 read, "The operator s h a l l f i l e a s i n g l e r e g i s t r a t i o n 

15 f o r a l l below-grade tanks associated w i t h a s i n g l e 

16 a p p l i c a t i o n f o r permit t o d r i l l . " 

17 So now we go t o 17.9, Permit A p p l i c a t i o n 

18 and R e g i s t r a t i o n . And do we want t o include "and 

19 r e g i s t r a t i o n " i n the t i t l e of t h i s section? 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes, we do. 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The f i r s t l i n e , "An 

23 operator s h a l l use the appropriate Form C144? Does 

24 t h a t make sense t o y ' a l l ? 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 
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CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: To apply t o the 

2 D i v i s i o n f o r a permit t o construct or use a p i t or 

3 proposed a l t e r n a t i v e method." Does t h a t make sense? 

4 Do you agree? 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: D e l e t i n g the 

8 words "closed-loop system or" and then "to r e g i s t e r 

9 a below-grade tank" t o which 19.15.17 NMAC ap p l i e s . 

10 Do we a agree w i t h the f i r s t sentence? 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: "Operator s h a l l submit 

14 the Form C144 used separately or as an attachment t o 

15 a permit a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a f a c i l i t y w i t h which the 

16 p i t , " d e l e t i n g the words closed-loop system, 

17 "below-grade tank or proposed a l t e r n a t i v e method 

18 s h a l l be associated." Do we agree w i t h the d e l e t i o n 

19 of closed-loop system? 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f they w i l l be dea l t 

21 w i t h by r e g i s t r a t i o n . 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: "For upstream 

23 f a c i l i t i e s the operator may submit Form C144 

24 separately or as an attachment t o an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

25 w e l l permit." Then t o include the words "An 
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1 operator s h a l l use a C101, C103 or ap p l i c a b l e BLM 

2 form t o n o t i f y the appropriate d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t 

3 o f f i c e of c o n s t r u c t i o n or use of a closed-loop 

4 system," so t h a t reduces closed-loop systems from 

5 p e r m i t t i n g or r e g i s t r a t i o n t o simply a n o t i f i c a t i o n 

6 on the C101 or C103. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. And I t h i n k 

8 t h i s v e r s i o n only s t r i k e s the l a s t sentence. 

9 Otherwise i t leaves i t the same. 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So do you want t o 

11 include the language " r e q u i r i n g appropriate 

12 engineering p r i n c i p l e s and p r a c t i c e s and f o l l o w i n g 

13 a p p l i c a b l e manufacturer's requirements?" We had 

14 testimony showing t h a t would be l i m i t e d f o r a l l of 

15 the d i f f e r e n t types of systems t h a t some of the 

16 operators have come up w i t h . 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the concern 

18 was ambiguity. What i s appropriate p r a c t i c e s , and 

19 those w i l l change over time, and they may change 

20 depending on how deep your w e l l i s , your pressure 

21 and a v a r i e t y of other t h i n g s t h a t were brought out 

22 i n testimony. So t h i s would remove the ambiguity. 

23 I t says the purpose of the closed-loop system i s 

24 merely t o manage the s o l i d s and the l i q u i d s . 

25 U l t i m a t e l y i t doesn't r e a l l y matter how they do i t 
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1 as long as i t works, r i g h t ? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right. So do we agree 

3 w i t h e l i m i n a t i o n of the l a s t sentence concerning --

4 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I am t r y i n g t o t h i n k , 

5 are there any other instances where we have language 

6 t h a t a system s h a l l use appropriate engineering 

7 p r i n c i p l e s ? 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: When we come t o the 

9 l i n i n g , I b e l i e v e , of the d i f f e r e n t kinds of p i t s . 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That's r i g h t . 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We w i l l probably 

12 replace t h a t w i t h language t h a t has more t o do w i t h 

13 s p e c i f i c a t i o n s . 

14 MR. SMITH: Are there BMPs t h a t l i n k t o 

15 t h i s ? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Possibly. 

17 MR. SMITH: That's something you could 

18 reference, the best management p r i n c i p l e s . 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Whether you say i t or 

20 not, t h a t ' s what w i l l be applie d . 

21 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I am wondering i f 

22 g e n e r a l l y we do not put such language -- I mean, I 

23 guess I could see an instance where you could put 

24 t h a t language a f t e r e v e r ything and t h a t would be 

25 redundant. You know, sump, below-grade tank, a 
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boom 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Any operation. 

3 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah. I t h i n k i t ' s 

4 presumed. 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k t h a t was the 

6 primary concern i n the testimony, i t s t i f l e s 

7 innov a t i o n . 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we agree t o delete 

9 t h a t l a s t sentence? 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Theresa, we are 

13 d e l e t i n g the l a s t sentence. 

14 MR. SMITH: Are you a l l comfortable w i t h 

15 whatever the a p p l i c a b l e BLM form is? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: No c o n t r o l over BLM, 

18 r i g h t ? I t h i n k t h a t was the only d i f f e r e n c e between 

19 those two paragraphs but we can doublecheck. 

2 0 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we come t o the 

21 s e c t i o n having t o do w i t h the permit a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

22 permanent p i t s and there have not been any 

23 suggestions t o change the permit a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

24 permanent p i t s . However, m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d 

25 management p i t s are an issue t h a t we might want t o 
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consider as i n c l u d i n g i n t h i s l i s t and t r e a t i n g a 

2 m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t i n a manner s i m i l a r 

3 t o permanent p i t s because we had deleted any kind of 

4 size r e s t r i c t i o n . 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f you had a 

6 m u l t i - w e l l management p i t t h a t was under ten acre 

7 f e e t or above ten acre f e e t , you may want t o apply a 

8 more s t r i c t e r r e g u l a t i o n t o . Ten acre f e e t you may 

9 be w i l l i n g t o go w i t h e x i s t i n g temporary p i t 

10 s p e c i f i c a t i o n s . Already they're allowed t o have 

11 temporary p i t s of up t o ten acre f e e t . 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Permanent f i t s are 

13 also r e s t r i c t e d t o ten acre f e e t . I t ' s a matter of 

14 how long the p i t i s going t o be up. We have imposed 

15 e s s e n t i a l l y a two-year l i m i t a t i o n , which i s double 

16 the time of the temporary p i t . 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: There's a sec t i o n 

18 where we address m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s 

19 and t h e i r s p e c i f i c a t i o n s . 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Maybe t h a t ' s where we 

22 have to tackle that. \ 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Save the discussion 

24 f o r t h a t time? 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t ' s coming up f a s t 

! 
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1 i n the permit a p p l i c a t i o n r e g i s t r a t i o n as w e l l . 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Regardless, permanent 

3 p i t s -- nobody has requested a m o d i f i c a t i o n of 

4 permanent p i t s . 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Nobody, no. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: There's not a l o t t o 

7 discuss there then. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then we can move along 

9 t o temporary p i t s . The suggested change f o r 

10 temporary p i t s i s 17.9B2C, t o delete "the a c t u a l and 

11 p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s on s o i l , surface water and 

12 groundwater." 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f I may i n t e r j e c t , 

14 Commissioner Bloom had j u s t a few minutes ago 

15 mentioned the p o s s i b i l i t i e s of other places where we 

16 had appropriate engineering p r i n c i p l e s . There's 

17 appropriate engineering p r i n c i p l e s i n the beginning 

18 d e s c r i p t i o n of B2, Temporary P i t s . "The plan f o r a 

19 temporary p i t s h a l l use appropriate engineering 

20 p r i n c i p l e s and p r a c t i c e s and f o l l o w a l l a p p l i c a b l e 

21 l i n e r manufacturing requirements." 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k i t ' s 

23 important t o have i n there at l e a s t the p a r t t h a t 

24 says " f o l l o w a p p l i c a b l e l i n e r manufacturer 

25 requirements." P a r t i c u l a r l y -- not so much i n t h i s 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb 19b22a 1 ea 



Page 2572 

1 case but as we1 re moving forward and lo o k i n g at 

2 l i n e r requirements f o r m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management 

3 p i t s . 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I am a c t u a l l y 

5 i n t e r e s t e d t h a t nobody suggested a change t o t h i s 

6 during testimony, because there was an awful l o t of 

7 discussion about appropriate engineering p r i n c i p l e s 

8 when i t came t o the design of temporary p i t s . I 

9 don't know i f t h a t ' s more of a footnote. Later on 

10 we w i l l most c e r t a i n l y be discussing these 

11 a p p l i c a b l e or appropriate engineering p r i n c i p l e s and 

12 p r a c t i c e s . 

13 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: When i t comes t o 

14 l i n e r s , yes. 

15 MR. SMITH: Well, you have taken i t out of 

16 the one area though. I f you leave i t i n here the 

17 question, of course, i s why? Do you in t e n d not t o 

18 r e q u i r e the appropriate engineering p r i n c i p l e s and 

19 p r a c t i c e s f o r the former but you do f o r the l a t t e r ? 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: No. I t h i n k I don't 

21 want t o misquote Mr. Bloom, but i t ' s an add-on. I f 

22 doesn't n e c e s s a r i l y add anything. 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So you are suggesting 

24 t h a t we have t h a t l i n e be, "Temporary P i t s . The 

25 plan f o r a temporary p i t s h a l l f o l l o w a p p l i c a b l e 
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1 l i n e r manufacturer requirements"? 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I d i d n ' t make a 

3 proposal. I was t h i n k i n g i f we were going t o be 

4 consistent we might remove, "Use appropriate 

5 engineering p r i n c i p l e s and p r a c t i c e s " but we leave 

6 i n " f o l l o w i n g a p p l i c a b l e l i n e r manufacturer's 

7 requirements." 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We would keep t h a t 

9 p o r t i o n and delete the language "use appropriate 

10 engineering p r i n c i p l e s and p r a c t i c e s . " 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Okay. 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We may have t o do a 

13 search through the document t o see i f there's 

14 something else i n the black t e x t . 

15 MR. SMITH: Yeah. I t h i n k --do you want 

16 t h i s language h i g h l i g h t e d ? 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Deleted. 

18 MR. SMITH: Right. Now, t h a t s t i l l 

19 d i f f e r s from what you had p r e v i o u s l y , r i g h t ? I n the 

20 p r i o r section? I t h i n k you deleted " f o l l o w the 

21 a p p l i c a b l e manufacturer's requirements," d i d n ' t you? 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Up above i n A we 

23 deleted the l a s t l i n e . "The closed-loop system 

24 s h a l l use appropriate engineering p r i n c i p l e s and 

25 p r a c t i c e s and f o l l o w a p p l i c a b l e manufacturer's 
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1 requirements or equivalent t h e r e t o . " 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We might want t o put 

3 the l a s t p a r t of the sentence back i n . 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So i t would say, "A 

5 closed-loop system s h a l l f o l l o w a p p l i c a b l e 

6 manufacturing requirements or equivalent"? 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k we are 

8 t a l k i n g apples and oranges here. They are not the 

9 same t h i n g . But I t h i n k i t ' s appropriate t o s t r i k e 

10 i t here. 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We can't imagine t h a t 

12 someone would go out and t h i n k t h a t they could use 

13 the equipment outside the requirements or something. 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We can c e r t a i n l y 

15 imagine i t . 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We can imagine i t . 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we w i l l leave the 

18 e n t i r e sentence deleted i n A and only delete those 

19 words "use appropriate engineering p r i n c i p l e s and 

2 0 p r a c t i c e s " under temporary p i t s , under the section 

21 of temporary p i t s . I s t h a t what we agreed to? 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k I am 

23 proposing t h a t . 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I'm sorr y , what d i d 

25 you propose? 
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Just t o s t r i k e -- ) 

2 i t ' s been s t r i c k e n . 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So "use appropriate 

4 engineering p r i n c i p l e s and p r a c t i c e s . " 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Delete t h a t , yes. I 

6 would agree w i t h t h a t . 

7 

8 

COMMISSIONER BALCH: 

anything. 

I t doesn't add ) 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: No. 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. Then we w i l l go 

11 t o Subparagraph C. 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I'm sorry, c o n t i n u i n g j 

13 on w i t h 2 --

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: There's a l o t more. 

15 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I propose the 1 

16 d e l e t i o n of "the a c t u a l and p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s on j 

17 s o i l surface water and groundwater." 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Okay. 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The operator s t i l l ! 

21 needs t o provide i n f o r m a t i o n on s o i l geology, j 

22 hydrology, and those --

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That's a p r e t t y major 

24 change. 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Those f a c t o r s have t o J 
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1 do w i t h the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a . One of them i s the 

2 e n f o r c e a b i l i t y of at t h i s p o i n t i s the d i s t r i c t --

3 are the d i s t r i c t personnel capable of ev a l u a t i n g 

4 a c t u a l e f f e c t s on water? 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Or even p o t e n t i a l 

6 e f f e c t s . 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Or even p o t e n t i a l 

8 e f f e c t s at t h i s p o i n t . 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So as i t stands now, 

10 t h i s permit a p p l i c a t i o n comes i n and includes 

11 operating and maintenance procedures, closure plan, 

12 c l i m a t o l o g i c a l data, d e t a i l e d on topography and 

13 s o i l s , and now I'm j u s t w o r r i e d t h a t compliance w i t h 

14 the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a of 19.15.17.10 NMAC, we would 

15 j u s t get down t o i s the p i t going t o be w i t h i n 300 

16 f e e t of a continuously f l o w i n g water or something 

17 l i k e t h a t . And t h i s would be i n s t r u c t i n g the 

18 d i s t r i c t o f f i c e t o also evaluate e f f e c t s on s o i l 

19 surface water and groundwater. 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Which i s d i f f i c u l t i n 

21 t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n . 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k they are 

23 asking f o r somebody w i t h the appropriate amount of 

24 s k i l l t o determine the data a f t e r the f a c t , the 

25 a c t u a l e f f e c t s , and p r e d i c t t o some extent the 
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1 p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s . That's out of the s p e c i a l t y , I 

2 t h i n k , of the person approving t h i s at the d i v i s i o n 

3 l e v e l . 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And we can't have 

5 every APD come t o Santa Fe f o r a h y d r o l o g i s t ' s 

6 ev a l u a t i o n . 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the idea i s 

8 t h a t -- I t h i n k the reason they st r u c k i t -- I'm 

9 sorry, I d i d n ' t mean t o i n t e r r u p t you. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I was j u s t going t o 

11 say t h a t then begs the question whether over the 

12 years t h a t Rule 17 has been i n e f f e c t have we not 

13 been l o o k i n g at p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s on s o i l surface 

14 water and groundwater when we are s i t i n g the p i t ? 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: They have been going 

16 by what the Rule 17 s p e c i f i e s . They have been 

17 e n f o r c i n g the r u l e as i t was w r i t t e n . 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I guess the question 

19 may be -- i n f a c t , i f I could t r y t o rephrase the 

20 question a l i t t l e b i t . When the a p p l i c a t i o n comes 

21 i n you have a c h e c k l i s t of the geology, topography, 

22 surface hydrology, a l l t h a t s t u f f . When t h a t comes 

23 i n , i s i t j u s t checked o f f on a l i s t or i s somebody 

24 t a k i n g i t and i n t e r p r e t i n g i t f o r ac t u a l and 

25 p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s on s o i l , surface water and 
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1 groundwater or i s i t even poss i b l e t o do that? . 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I don't t h i n k i t ' s 

3 possible t o do t h a t . So I would be g r e a t l y 

4 su r p r i s e d i f the s k i l l s of the d i s t r i c t supervisors 

5 or the people who are e v a l u a t i n g the APDs run t o the 

6 hydrology f o r the p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s or the ac t u a l 

7 e f f e c t s . I t h i n k t h a t they look at what i s re q u i r e d 

8 under 17 t o see i f t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n i s given. 

9 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So i t ' s given and 

10 they read i t , they read through i t and check i t o f f 

11 on a l i s t e s s e n t i a l l y ? 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k so. 

13 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Let me add t h i s . I f 

14 we look at 19.15.17.10, the s i t i n g requirements 

15 under A, i t doesn't look l i k e -- t h a t ' s s o r t of a 

16 c h e c k l i s t of depth t o groundwater and i t s 

17 r e l a t i o n s h i p t o s i t i n g , h o r i z o n t a l distance t o other 

18 bodies of water. I t can't be i n a 100-year 

19 f l o o d p l a i n and i f i t ' s i n an unstable area the 

2 0 operator has t o demonstrate t h a t i t ' s incorporated 

21 the measures i n t o the design, but t h a t would not 

22 re q u i r e any anal y s i s of e f f e c t s on s o i l , surface 

23 water and groundwater. 

24 So I guess my concern i s , are we 

25 e s s e n t i a l l y saying t h a t these decisions are made i n 
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1 the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e , and we don't care what the 

2 e f f e c t s of s o i l , surface water and groundwater are? 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I don't t h i n k i t ' s so 

4 much t h a t we don't care, but i t sounds l i k e i t ' s 

5 impossible t o determine w i t h c u r r e n t technology. 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The curr e n t r u l e says 

7 t h a t an operator s h a l l not locate a temporary p i t i n 

8 these c e r t a i n c o n d i t i o n s , which includes depth t o 

9 water. That i s one of the thi n g s t h a t i s looked a t . 

10 As I say, the r u l e i s enforced as i t i s c u r r e n t l y 

11 w r i t t e n . So i f you want t o say t h a t groundwater 

12 t h a t i s less than 50 f e e t below the bottom of the 

13 temporary p i t i s grounds f o r analyzing 

14 h y d r o l o g i c a l l y whether or not there i s a p o t e n t i a l 

15 t h r e a t t o groundwater, the people who look at the 

16 APDs say t h i s i s what the r u l e says, t h i s i s whether 

17 or not we can approve t h i s APD. 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So i t seems l i k e , 

19 Commissioner, t h a t the s t r i c k e n - o u t p a r t would most 

20 l i k e l y only apply t o exceptions. That's where you 

21 would do the analysis -- t h a t ' s where you might t r y 

22 t o convince somebody t h a t you're not i n dangering 

23 water or he a l t h , groundwater, surface water or what 

24 not, and t h a t the main p r o t e c t i v e f e a t u r e i s the 

25 s i t i n g requirements and implementation. 
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1 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: And depth t o 

2 groundwater. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: S i t i n g requirements. 

4 MR. SMITH: I would l i k e t o ask a question 

5 here t o make sure t h a t you avoid ambiguity. This 

6 requires the submission of operating maintenance 

7 procedures, closure plan, hydrogeologic data t h a t 

8 provides, and then i t goes on t o l i s t a v a r i e t y of 

9 d e t a i l on topography, s o i l , geology, blah blah blah, 

10 r i g h t ? I f you make t h i s change i t w i l l say, "To 

11 allow the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e t o evaluate compliance 

12 w i t h s i t i n g c r i t e r i a . " 

13 Now, do you need a l l t h a t s t u f f t o 

14 evaluate the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a ? And i f you don't and 

15 you want t o l i m i t t h i s d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ' s e v a l u a t i o n 

16 t o complying w i t h s i t i n g c r i t e r i a , I t h i n k you 

17 should get r i d of everything i n t h a t sentence before 

18 t h a t t h a t i s n ' t u s e f u l t o e v a l u a t i n g s i t i n g 

19 c r i t e r i a . Otherwise, you are asking f o r a l o t of 

20 useless i n f o r m a t i o n . 

21 I'm assuming t h a t some of t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n 

22 or the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t ' s l i s t e d there would be 

23 u s e f u l t o what I understand t o be the impossible 

24 task of e v a l u a t i n g e f f e c t s on s o i l s and water. But 

25 i f you're going t o take t h a t out, the s t u f f up p r i o r 
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1 t o t h a t t h a t you were asking t o have submitted t h a t 

2 doesn't r e a l l y have anything t o do w i t h s i t i n g 

3 c r i t e r i a , you should take t h a t out, I t h i n k . 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Everything t h a t leads 

5 up t o the t o "evaluate the a c t u a l e f f e c t s on s o i l s , 

6 surface water and groundwater." 

7 MR. SMITH: So what I am saying i s you 

8 look at everything a f t e r the word "include" where i t 

9 says "operating and maintenance procedures," and 

10 then go down t o "to enable the appropriate 

11 d i v i s i o n , " e v e r ything i n between there, evaluate 

12 what you need f o r what you want the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e 

13 t o do. 

14 I don't know, maybe you wind up t a k i n g out 

15 the whole t h i n g . I don't know. But there's no 

16 p o i n t i n r e q u i r i n g the submission of i n f o r m a t i o n 

17 t h a t you're not going t o use. I t j u s t creates 

18 confusion as t o the purpose of the character. 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Let me add t h a t we 

20 may need a good b i t of the i n f o r m a t i o n , geology, 

21 maybe some of the hydrology, i f we are going t o --

22 i f we expect OCD t o work w i t h t h i s language i n 

23 Section 10, which i s t a l k i n g about unstable areas. 

24 Then t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n would s t i l l be u s e f u l . 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Unstable areas i s 
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1 very i n t e r e s t i n g because i t ' s another one of those 

2 ambiguous terms. I t h i n k i n p r a c t i c e what people 

3 submit f o r unstable areas i s a map of p o t e n t i a l --

4 obviously, a sinkhole would'be a unstable area. But 

5 what i f you had a slope above a c e r t a i n degree or 

6 you were i n an area t h a t had --

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: A mine? 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: - - a mine. They also 

9 submit maps of mine l o c a t i o n s as p a r t of another 

10 requirement, but I t h i n k t h a t Mr. Smith has a r e a l l y 

11 good p o i n t ; t h a t -- you know, a l o t of t h i s s t u f f , 

12 the s p e c i f i c i n f o r m a t i o n they are asking f o r r i g h t 

13 here i s s t u f f you would use i f you were t r y i n g t o 

14 get an exception t o whatever s i t i n g c r i t e r i a we end 

15 up w i t h , and then you would t r y t o say, "Well, t h i s 

16 i s s t i l l safe because the s o i l c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s are 

17 l i k e t h i s . You won't have the flow, we have 30 

18 percent loam, 70 percent sand." 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So when I read t h i s , 

20 I guess t h a t sentence, I'm t h i n k i n g t h a t the data 

21 t h a t ' s requested i s t o help w i t h the determination 

22 on a c t u a l p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s on s o i l , surface water 

23 and groundwater and t h a t i t ' s about something more 

24 than j u s t g i v i n g enough i n f o r m a t i o n so you can 

25 understand the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a , which might be 
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1 something along the l i n e s of w e l l , the groundwater 

2 i s at 48 f e e t and there's no surface water w i t h i n a 

3 h a l f mile and n e i t h e r are there any residences, 

4 w e l l s , m i s s i l e boundaries or some of the other 

5 t h i n g s . I t h i n k the language t h a t there i s now goes 

6 beyond j u s t addressing s i t i n g . 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t does go beyond 

8 addressing s i t i n g , but I t h i n k the problem i s i t ' s 

9 not - -

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t ' s not doable. 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Did we hear any 

12 testimony t o that? 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We had a l o t of 

14 testimony about the len g t h of time i t takes t o 

15 prepare and process a l l t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n , and t o me, 

16 the conclusion i s i f you want -- i f you don't have 

17 some s i t i n g c r i t e r i a -- the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a i s 

18 designed, I t h i n k , t o say i f you are above t h i s 

19 l i m i t you are not r e a l l y causing a r i s k . I f you are 

20 below the l i m i t t h a t ' s set, then there's a p o t e n t i a l 

21 f o r r i s k and you want t o do a f u r t h e r evaluation. 

22 That's where you need a l o t of the 

23 a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n , when you're t r y i n g t o say 

24 t h a t groundwater i s at 48 f e e t but I s t i l l t h i n k 

25 i t ' s safe because of t h i s , and then somebody would 
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1 make an e v a l u a t i o n using the data you gave them on 

2 whether they thought you are c o r r e c t on t h a t . 

3 MR. SMITH: You a l l can r e q u i r e t h i s 

4 i n f o r m a t i o n i n whatever context you want. My 

5 suggestion i s l a r g e l y simply t o divorce i t from an 

6 ev a l u a t i o n of s i t i n g c r i t e r i a . I f you want t h a t 

7 i n f o r m a t i o n you can r e q u i r e i t someplace, but t o say 

8 t h a t you want i t i n order f o r the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e t o 

9 evaluate the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a , I don't know -- I 

10 t h i n k people are going t o be confused about why am I 

11 g i v i n g t h i s f o r s i t i n g c r i t e r i a ? 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. 

13 MR. SMITH: But i f you take t h i s out, i s 

14 t h i s the only place -- and I'm sorry, I don't know 

15 t h i s -- i s t h i s the only place, f o r instance, t h a t a 

16 closure plan i s required? 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: No, I don't t h i n k a 

18 closure plan i s re q u i r e d anyway. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Every f a c i l i t y has a 

20 closure plan. Permanent p i t s , below-grade tanks, 

21 temporary p i t s , m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s a l l 

22 have a closure plan. 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I may go o f f on a 

24 s l i g h t tangent t o t r y t o work t h i s through i n my own 

25 mind. As was pointe d out i n some of the prehearing 
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1 statements, I worked w i t h developing software t o 

2 address s i t i n g c r i t e r i a i n p a r t i c u l a r . I t ' s r e a l l y 

3 nice t o say t h a t we are going t o p r e c i s e l y i d e n t i f y 

4 depth t o groundwater, distance t o surface stream, 

5 s o i l geomorphology, a l l t h a t s t u f f . I t ' s r e a l l y 

6 nice t o say and you wish i n a p e r f e c t world t h a t you 

7 have t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n t o the accuracy you desire. 

8 But i n r e a l i t y , you are working w i t h 

9 e l e v a t i o n models t h a t have an accuracy of plus or 

10 minus 20 f e e t . You are working w i t h s o i l maps t h a t 

11 are drawn f o r e n t i r e regions of the s t a t e . You are 

12 working w i t h water maps and topography t h a t are 

13 updated every 25 or 30 years. So you could go out 

14 there f o r every s i n g l e s i t e , have a surveyor come 

15 i n , p i n p o i n t every s i n g l e p o i n t of e l e v a t i o n at as 

16 f i n e a scale as you want. People could go out there 

17 and sample 100 l o c a t i o n s f o r s o i l c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s . 

18 You could d r i l l t e s t w e l l s f o r depth t o water and 

19 get a b e t t e r value than what you're going t o 

20 estimate from the OSC water w e l l database. 

21 You could do a l l t h a t s t u f f , but I t h i n k 

22 i t ' s not p a r t i c u l a r l y p r a c t i c a l and i t comes down t o 

23 two of the strongest arguments I t h i n k i n the 

24 f i n d i n g s . And on the one hand, you have the 

25 p e t i t i o n e r s t h a t are saying you have t o reasonably 
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1 p r o t e c t ; and the other side, I t h i n k they want a 

2 much more strong a f f i r m a t i o n t h a t you are a c t u a l l y 

3 p r o t e c t i n g . And t h i s question of balance i s 

4 something t h a t I t h i n k we have t o address at some 

5 p o i n t . 

6 MR. SMITH: One t h i n g you might want t o 

7 note i s the language i n your cur r e n t r u l e i s 

8 ev a l u a t i n g the e f f e c t s as opposed t o determining, 

9 f o r instance. 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Chairman Bailey, I 

11 guess I'm t r y i n g t o t h i n k of anywhere i n the r u l e 

12 t h a t would -- I'm t r y i n g t o t h i n k here -- t h a t would 

13 give the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e personnel the a b i l i t y t o 

14 make a dec i s i o n t h a t would change s i t i n g or 

15 something else based on what they thought the ac t u a l 

16 p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s on surface, s o i l water and 

17 groundwater i s . 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k t h a t comes 

19 back t o the r e s u l t of the r u l e and the way i t ' s 

2 0 ap p l i e d . I'm sorry, I don't want t o --

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, go ahead. 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I s t h a t the r e s u l t i s 

23 or the implementation i s they have a c h e c k l i s t f o r 
24 the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a . I f i t meets the s i t i n g 

25 c r i t e r i a i t ' s okay. I f i t doesn't i t ' s not okay and 
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1 then you have t o get an exception. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Which i s a very 

3 p r a c t i c a l process. 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Determining the four 

6 we l l s ever d r i l l e d , what the a c t u a l e f f e c t i s on 

7 groundwater t h a t may be a c e r t a i n depth below the 

8 surface of the temporary p i t i s an i m p o s s i b i l i t y 

9 unless you have a pipe t h a t goes d i r e c t l y down and 

10 pouring contaminants down t h a t pipe, which the OCD 

11 i s very c a r e f u l t o ensure t h a t d r i l l i n g does not 

12 delay d u r i n g p e n e t r a t i o n of the surface u n t i l a f t e r 

13 they have gone beyond the a q u i f e r and cementing 

14 p r a c t i c e s ensure t h a t we do not have contamination 

15 of the a q u i f e r because of cement issues. 

16 So the p r a c t i c a l a b i l i t y t o determine the 

17 a c t u a l e f f e c t s on surface and groundwater i s not 

18 something t h a t can be done w i t h o u t , as I say, an 

19 i n t e n t t o a c t u a l l y a f f e c t the groundwater. 

2 0 The question i s , as Commissioner Balch 

21 brings out, i f the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e i s given the 

22 s i t e ' s topography, s o i l s , geology and surface and 

23 groundwater hydrology along w i t h the s i t i n g 

24 requirements t h a t we w i l l i n c orporate i n t o any ki n d 

25 of r u l e t h a t comes out of t h i s , i s t h a t s u f f i c i e n t 
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1 t o provide reasonable p r o t e c t i o n f o r groundwater? I 

2 have mulled t h i s over f o r q u i t e a few years. This 

3 i s not a brand new since A p r i l or May t h i s year, and 

4 I l i k e n i t very much t o a gate. You can close the 

5 gate t o deter access t o a l o c a t i o n . You can put a 

6 padlock on the gate. You can put an e l e c t r o n i c lock 

7 along w i t h t h a t padlock on the closed gate. Then 

8 you can e l e c t r i f y t h a t gate along w i t h the 

9 e l e c t r o n i c lock and padlock and the closed gate, and 

10 then you can put barbed wi r e . 

11 I s a l l t h a t s u f f i c i e n t t o deter access? 

12 Or i s maybe a closed gate and maybe a padlock a l l 

13 t h a t ' s necessary t o deter a problem? I f we have the 

14 i n f o r m a t i o n f o r the topography, the s o i l s , the 

15 geology, the surface and groundwater hydrology and 

16 the s i t e requirements t h a t we w i l l determine here, 

17 i t seems t o me t h a t a layperson who i s not a doctor 

18 i n hydrology would be able t o determine whether or 

19 not there i s reasonable p r o t e c t i o n of t h a t 

2 0 groundwater. 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: There's an awful l o t 

22 of testimony given about s i t i n g c r i t e r i a . 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: An awful l o t . And we 

24 w i l l make t h a t d e c i s i o n on what t h a t s i t i n g c r i t e r i a 

25 should be, which includes depth t o groundwater. I t 
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1 includes h o r i z o n t a l and v e r t i c a l distances t o areas | 

j 

2 t h a t may be more vuln e r a b l e . So at t h i s p o i n t I j 

3 w i l l have t o agree w i t h the suggestions t h a t have | 

4 been made t h a t at t h i s p o i n t we can delete "actual 1 

5 and p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s on s o i l , surface water and 

6 groundwater" and r e q u i r e the d e t a i l on the s i t e ' s 

7 topography, s o i l geology, surface hydrology and 

8 groundwater hydrology t o enable the appropriate 

9 d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t o f f i c e t o evaluate compliance w i t h | 

10 the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a t h a t we w i l l determine, and i n 

11 the absence of s i t e - s p e c i f i c groundwater data, t h a t ; 

12 the operator can provide reasonable determination of i 
i 

13 probable groundwater depth using data generated by j 
I 

14 models, cathodic w e l l l i t h o l o g y , published | 
| 

15 i n f o r m a t i o n or other t o o l s as approved by the j| 

16 appropriate d i s t r i c t o f f i c e . 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Maybe I can 

18 i n t e r p r e t , Mr. Bloom, what I t h i n k the data are. | 

19 For topography, what I t h i n k people w i l l submit i s a 

2 0 topographic map. That's from the USGS. Accuracy, 

21 l i k e I said, not p e r f e c t . S o i l s , there's a map of | 

22 surface s o i l s generated by the New Mexico Bureau of 

23 Minerals -- they changed the name a couple years j 
24 ago -- New Mexico Bureau of Geology and Mineral 
25 Resources. They have a s t a t e g e o l o g i c a l map which : 
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1 t e l l s you what the surface geologic u n i t i s i n a 

2 p a r t i c u l a r area. Again, t h a t ' s state-wide. 

3 Accuracy, not super precise when you get down t o 

4 where i s the boundary between the Pennsylvania and 

5 the Permian i n a s p e c i f i c s i t e . 

6 Surface hydrology i s going t o be again a 

7 USGS map of surface streams. Groundwater hydrology 

8 i s going t o be u s u a l l y taken from the O f f i c e of the 

9 State Engineer's groundwater w e l l data, which i n 

10 some areas i s dense and other areas i s sparse. 

11 There's also some USGS groundwater data t h a t people 

12 can o b t a i n . So unless you have a groundwater w e l l 

13 r i g h t near your s i t e , you are making a guess as t o 

14 groundwater. 

15 These are thi n g s t h a t are l i s t e d here t h a t 

16 someone can evaluate and say yes, the s i t e i s 

17 greater than X f e e t from a r i v e r . I t appears t h a t 

18 groundwater i n the area i s greater than 3 50 f e e t so 

19 i t ' s okay. But i t does not, I t h i n k , allow them t o 

20 evaluate the a c t u a l p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s on the s o i l s , 

21 surface water and groundwater. You need much more 

22 d e t a i l e d i n f o r m a t i o n . You need s o i l sampling 

23 s p e c i f i c t o the s i t e and you have t o have t e s t holes 

24 d r i l l i n g at a minimum t o the water t a b l e t o see 

25 where i t i s . 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb 19b22a 1 ea 



1 
Page 2591 

COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So you would end up 

2 w i t h a month's long study. 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: More than t h a t . 

4 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: A master's t h e s i s . 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: For every w e l l t h a t 

6 you are going t o d r i l l . 

7 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Does t h i s e v a l u a t i o n 

8 ever meet any determinations d i f f e r e n t from what 

9 compliance w i t h the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a is? 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, there's 

11 testimony t h a t not many or any exceptions have ever 

12 been made. 

13 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: No, I mean I j u s t 

14 wondered i f i t ' s i n p r a c t i c e s , e v a l u a t i o n and ac t u a l 

15 and p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s of the s o i l surface water and 

16 groundwater. 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the 

18 e v a l u a t i o n i s going through the c h e c k l i s t and making 

19 sure i t matches the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a , from what I 

20 understand. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k t h a t we need 

22 t o address the sources of in f o r m a t i o n i f we accept 

23 t h a t data generated by models, cathodic w e l l 

24 l i t h o l o g y , published i n f o r m a t i o n or other t o o l s as 

25 approved i s appropriate f o r determining depth t o 
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1 groundwater. I s modeling something t h a t --

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Well, I mean, i n t h i s 

3 case what i s modeling? I t h i n k e a r l y on when we 

4 were developing our software we wanted t o take the 

5 depth t o groundwater from the ORC and create contour 

6 maps. That requires a model. You are applying an 

7 al g o r i t h m t o the data t o create some contours. The 

8 problem there i s t h a t becomes i n t e r p r e t a t i v e . 

9 Somebody else might draw the contours d i f f e r e n t l y . 

10 Models have some value. I t h i n k what you 

11 are lo o k i n g f o r i s t h a t the model i s consistent w i t h 

12 the a c t u a l data t h a t you have i n any case, which i s 

13 brought up i n m u l t i p l e people's f i n d i n g s as w e l l . 

14 You may not always be able t o match the r e a l world 

15 but you would l i k e t o see some consistency. 

16 Cathodic w e l l l i t h o l o g y , I'm t a k i n g t h a t t o be some 

17 k i n d of a simple e l e c t r i c a l l o g taken from the water 

18 well? I don't know. 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Cathodic w e l l s are 

20 r e g u l a r l y i n s t a l l e d near other --

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So they are 

22 permanently monitoring the c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of --

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, they determine 

24 c o r r o s i o n . 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Oh, okay. 
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1 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: They determine 

2 corr o s i o n of the o i l and gas w e l l . 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: They d r i l l a w e l l f o r 

4 that? 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t ' s a shallow -- j u s t 

6 t o the groundwater. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Just t o the 

8 groundwater? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: But i t ' s not d r i l l e d 

10 before a w e l l i s d r i l l e d , i t ' s d r i l l e d a f t e r . 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You are d r i l l i n g your 

12 w e l l , you f i n d groundwater at t h i s depth and the 

13 c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of the water r e q u i r e you t o deal 

14 w i t h whether your casing i s going t o corrode. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Again, a f t e r the 

17 f a c t . 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I j u s t question 

19 whether or not the average operator out there i s 

20 capable of using modeling. 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You know, I t h i n k a 

22 l o t of the a l t e r n a t i v e s t u f f comes i n t o play or 

23 should only come i n t o p l a y i f you have -- and t h i s 

24 happens a l o t up i n the Northwest -- you go t o look 
\ 
IS 

25 f o r your groundwater data and your nearest water 
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1 w e l l i s ten miles from your s i t e . How do you 

2 determine what the groundwater depth is? You submit 1 

3 at t h i s time a map t h a t has a ten-mile scale t h a t I 

4 shows your one p o i n t of data. At t h a t p o i n t i f they 

5 have other i n f o r m a t i o n , the farmer next-door has a j 

6 undocumented water w e l l or something l i k e t h a t , they 

7 can put t h a t i n there. That 1s when somebody ought 

8 t o take a look at i t , I suppose. That's where your I 

9 ev a l u a t i o n comes i n . j 

10 But i t s t i l l comes back t o they are j 

11 e s s e n t i a l l y e v a l u a t i n g the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a which i s 

12 supposed t o be the p r o t e c t i v e f e a t u r e , but a c t u a l l y ) 

13 coming up w i t h a f u l l - b l o w n e v a l u a t i o n of everything 

14 t h a t could p o s s i b l y go wrong i s i m p r a c t i c a l . I f you 

15 always look at every worst case scenario you w i l l j 

16 never do anything because i f you wait long enough, 

17 anything w i l l happen, which i s why I t i e the preface j 

18 t o t h i s discussion t o the c l o s i n g arguments from 

19 various p a r t i e s , some of which favored a reasonable 

2 0 p r o t e c t i o n and some of which favored a much more 

21 a c t i v e and r e s t r i c t e d environment t o achieve a j 

22 d i f f e r e n t l e v e l of p r o t e c t i o n . I t ' s something t h a t 

23 I t h i n k we have t o come t o g r i p s w i t h . 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So do we choose t o j 
25 accept t h i s proposed sentence on " i n the absence of j 

1 
! 
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1 s i t e s p e c i f i c " ? 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: How i s the absence of 

3 s i t e s p e c i f i c groundwater data d e a l t w i t h now at 

4 OCD? 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: With j u s t knowledge of 

6 the closest water w e l l s , w i t h what the operator has 

7 submitted as p a r t of t h e i r APD t h a t they have 

8 a t t e s t e d t o . 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So you are concerned 

10 t h a t modeling i s i m p r a c t i c a l . The cathodic w e l l 

11 l i t h o l o g y w i l l be a f t e r the fact? 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We are t a l k i n g here 

13 about cathodic w e l l l i t h o l o g y w i l l probably be from 

14 the o f f s e t l o c a t i o n which w i l l probably give you 

15 maybe a b e t t e r idea. S t i l l , i t ' s not s i t e - s p e c i f i c . 

16 You don't know s i t e - s p e c i f i c u n t i l you d r i l l . 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: But i t ' s the best 

18 a v a i l a b l e i n f o r m a t i o n . 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. The current 

2 0 r u l e doesn't allow anything except f o r OSC and USGS 

21 water w e l l data, I b e l i e v e . I t ' s s p e c i f i c a l l y 

22 l i s t e d what and where you can get your data or 

23 comply. 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I f any th ing , t h i s 

2 5 should get us a look at more data . 
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COMMISSIONER BALCH: This gives you more 

2 data. 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: More and b e t t e r 

4 probably. USGS hasn't been updated f o r a long time. 

5 

6 

COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I was going t o 

express my support f o r t h a t as i t stood. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k i n 200 years 

8 the way the computers go, we w i l l have a l l the 

9 i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t everybody wants now. The problem 

10 i s you can't wait t o do the development 200 years. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we w i l l accept t h i s 

12 proposed sentence, which i s the l a s t sentence of C. 

13 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k i t was the --

14 I'm so r r y . 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The second 

16 sentence -- are we t a l k i n g now about the 

17 standardized plans? 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: " I n the absence of 

19 s i t e - s p e c i f i c groundwater data." 

20 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Oh, okay. I t h i n k 

21 opening the door f o r any a d d i t i o n a l data i s a good 

22 t h i n g . 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah. 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The more you have, 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb19b22a1 ea 



1 
Page 2597 

the b e t t e r -- the more data you have, the b e t t e r ! 

2 your model or any p r e d i c t i o n . So t h a t ' s what you 

3 w i l l l i k e l y see from the producer. 

4 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: So we accept the j 

5 sentence i n the absence of --okay. | 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: A l l I have done i s put j 

7 o f f t h a t discussion. 

8 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I know. 
j 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: L e t t i n g i t s e t t l e f o r 

10 j u s t a l i t t l e b i t . 

11 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That's f i n e . j 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then the next area i s 

13 E, "The operator may u t i l i z e , w i t h the approval of 

14 the appropriate d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t o f f i c e , ! 

[ 
15 standardized plans f o r p i t closure and other plans j 

16 which w i l l remain approved u n t i l a subsequent plan 

17 i s e i t h e r r e q u i r e d by the appropriate d i v i s i o n 

18 d i s t r i c t o f f i c e or i s submitted by the operator and | 

19 approved by the appropriate d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t 

20 o f f i c e . " 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So i n p r a c t i c e now, j 

22 are you g e t t i n g a l o t of b a s i c a l l y repeat plans? 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Over and over again. 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So once i t ' s 

25 accepted, they submit i t w i t h a l l t h e i r other I 
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1 a p p l i c a t i o n s . This j u s t cuts out the paperwork and 

2 documents. 

3 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Are there instances 

4 where -- can you p i c t u r e instances where the 

5 standardized plan wouldn't be s u f f i c i e n t and we t u r n 

6 back? Does t h a t happen? 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Standardized plan f o r 

8 p i t c o n s t r u c t i o n , p i t closure and other plans. Yes, 

9 there would be a d e n i a l of approval f o r c e r t a i n 

10 aspects of p i t closure and p i t c o n s t r u c t i o n . That 

11 i s looked at and approved. 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So I t h i n k maybe your 

13 concern, Mr. Bloom, i s t h a t i f we allow the 

14 standardized plans t h a t there may not be s u f f i c i e n t 

15 overs i g h t on thi n g s t h a t we need a v a r i a t i o n from 

16 that? 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah, t h a t ' s the 

18 concern. I was wondering when a standardized plan 

19 wouldn't be s u f f i c i e n t . 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BALCH: S h i f t s the burden 

21 from the d i v i s i o n t o the operator -- or the operator 

22 t o the d i v i s i o n . 

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I understand t h a t 

24 c u r r e n t l y people pound these out and use the same 

25 plan over and over again anyhow. Would t h a t 
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1 . standardized plan then be on f i l e ? 

2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t would be p a r t of 

3 the searchable documents, wouldn't i t ? 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t would be associated 

5 w i t h the w e l l probably, the o n l i n e system. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: What would get a 

7 d i s t r i c t o f f i c e r t o look at something and say, 

8 "Wait, I don't t h i n k you can use your standardized 

9 plan here"? 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That was my question. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. I f a p i t would 

12 be constructed i n v i o l a t i o n of the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a 

13 and some amendment of t h a t standard plan would 

14 enable i t t o meet the c r i t e r i a i f i t were amended, 

15 t h a t would be one way t h a t i t would be necessary. 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Fencing could be 

17 something? Proximity t o a residence or something? 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Go back and show me 

20 the plan w i t h a fence. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Or i f i t ' s next t o a 

22 school or something. 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. I know on 

24 other s i t i n g c r i t e r i a do have p r o x i m i t y t o 

25 residences and other t h i n g s l i k e t h a t . 
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COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Just p r a g m a t i c a l l y , 

2 would t h i s be a plan t h a t ' s on f i l e w i t h OCD and the 

3 operator would simply say, "I'm going t o use my 

4 standardized plan" or would i t s t i l l be attached t o 

5 the permit a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k we could make 

7 t h a t very c l e a r t h a t t h a t would be an APD would 

8 r e q u i r e t h a t , and I bel i e v e our r u l e on APDs --

9 l e t ' s look at t h a t . 

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Seems l i k e there 

11 would be a question about t h a t . 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Seems l i k e t y i n g 

13 t h i n g s t o APD i s --

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The d i v i s i o n may 

15 impose c o n d i t i o n s on approval t o d r i l l , and the 

16 question i s --

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Maybe I answered my 

18 own question by re-reading the sentence above i t . 

19 "The plan f o r a temporary p i t may incorporate by 

20 reference a standard design f o r m u l t i p l e temporary 

21 p i t s . The operator f i l e s w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n " --

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So you could say t h i s 

23 temporary p i t -- they would put i t i n the f i l e . I n j 

24 t h e i r f i l i n g you would say t h i s w i l l incorporate the 

25 standard design associated w i t h APD No." -- and i t 
i 
; 
f 
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1 would be traceable. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t h i n k so. 

3 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah. Does t h a t make 

4 the l a s t sentence a c t u a l l y i r r e l e v a n t or does i t 

5 s t i l l help? 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k the l a s t 

7 sentence l i s t s e v e r y thing t h a t they use i n the plan 

8 t h a t ' s not i n the above sentence. 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Maybe provides a 

10 l i t t l e more c l a r i t y ? 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yeah. 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I'm f i n e w i t h t h a t 

13 language. 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we can accept the 

15 proposed language f o r Paragraph E, "The operator may 

16 u t i l i z e w i t h the approval of the appropriate 

17 d i v i s i o n " ? Are we okay w i t h that? 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k so. 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

2 0 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. And then we 

21 come t o the paragraph t h a t has been deleted on 

22 closed-loop systems. 

23 MR. SMITH: May I i n t e r r u p t ? I already 

24 have. I'm sorry. I had f o r g o t t e n now. Are you 

25 v o t i n g on each paragraph as you go or are you going 
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1 t o wait and vote f o r t h i s whole section? 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The se c t i o n . 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We are j u s t t r y i n g t o 

4 make sure we have gotten through each p o i n t 

5 i n d i v i d u a l l y . 

6 MR. SMITH: Okay. 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. There was a 

8 f i n d i n g by Dr. Neeper i n h i s f a c t s and conclusions 

9 t h a t we should not delete t h i s p o r t i o n of the 

10 closed-loop systems paragraph because of t h a t 

11 sentence, " I f the operator proposes" -- i t ' s about 

12 half-way through the deleted paragraph. " I f the 

13 operator proposes t o bury the contents of a d r y i n g 

14 pad associated w i t h the closed-loop system i n an 

15 o n - s i t e trench, the operator s h a l l provide 

16 s u f f i c i e n t i n f o r m a t i o n i n d e t a i l on the s i t e ' s 

17 topography, s o i l s , e t c . " 

18 I f t h i s paragraph i s deleted, he po i n t s 

19 out t h a t c h l o r i d e s would be l e f t on the surface from 

2 0 d r y i n g pads and t h a t b u r i a l would not be -- or 

21 removal would not be re q u i r e d f o r the d r y i n g pads of 

22 closed-loop systems. 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I s b u r i a l o n - s i t e i n 

24 general covered elsewhere? 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We w i l l get t o b u r i a l 
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2 COMMISSIONER BALCH: So I t h i n k you can 

3 address t h a t concern i n t h a t s e c t i o n . That would be 

4 most appropriate t o do so. 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Right, but we need t o 

6 be aware t h a t there-has been a comment concerning 

7 b u r i a l of d r y i n g pads. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I already had i t 

9 tabbed. 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. So something 

11 f o r us t o keep i n mind along w i t h everything else. 

12 Do we want t o delete t h a t e n t i r e paragraph on 

13 closed-loop systems since closed-loop systems don' t 

14 r e q u i r e r e g i s t r a t i o n or p e r m i t t i n g , j u s t simply 

15 n o t i f i c a t i o n of use? 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t seems redundant. 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k we could do 

18 t h a t , and then l a t e r on deal w i t h -- I t h i n k 

19 a c t u a l l y a more appropriate place than i t i s now i s 

20 the question of burying contents. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yeah, I wanted t o 

22 b r i n g i t out t h a t t h i s i s where he t a l k e d about i t • 

23 
r 

MR. SMITH: I'm sorry? 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we are d e l e t i n g 

25 t h a t e n t i r e Paragraph 3. 
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MR. SMITH: What was the s e c t i o n t h a t you 

2 want t o reserve t o t a l k about i n another section? 

3 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: " I f the operator 

4 proposes t o bury the contents of a d r y i n g pad 

5 associated w i t h the closed-loop system i n an on - s i t e 

6 trench." 

7 MR. SMITH: From there on? 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. His concern was 

9 l e a v i n g c h l o r i d e s on the surface. 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Right. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Then we go t o 

12 below-grade tanks. We have r e g i s t r a t i o n f o r 

13 below-grade tanks f o r the f i r s t proposal and the 

14 second proposal. 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Appropriate 

16 engineering p r i n c i p l e s and p r a c t i c e s . 

17 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. Are you 

18 proposing t h a t we delete t h a t language and say, "A 

19 r e g i s t e r e d below-grade tank s h a l l f o l l o w a p p l i c a b l e 

20 manufacturer's requirements" or j u s t delete t h a t 

21 e n t i r e section? 

22 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That's what we have 

23 been doing. 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: We could j u s t say 

25 w i t h the f i r s t sentence and then say, "The 
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1 r e g i s t r a t i o n of below-grade tanks s h a l l include 

2 operating and maintenance procedures and closure 

3 plan and" --

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Doesn't seem l i k e 

5 t h i s adds anything. 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I agree. 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: S t r i k i n g the second 

8 sentence i n t h a t s e c t i o n . No, the sentence above 

9 i t . "A r e g i s t e r e d below-grade tank s h a l l use." 

10 There you go. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That i n t r o d u c t i o n 

12 needs t o change t o "The r e g i s t r a t i o n of a 

13 below-grade tank s h a l l include operating and 

14 maintenance procedures, a closure plan and a 

15 hydrologic r e p o r t t h a t demonstrates compliance w i t h 

16 the s i t i n g c r i t e r i a of 19.15.17.10" and d e l e t i n g the 

17 language regarding i n f o r m a t i o n and d e t a i l on s i t e 

18 topography, s o i l geology, et cetera because we are 

19 not p e r m i t t i n g a below-grade tank. We are simply 

20 r e g i s t e r i n g . Do you agree w i t h that? 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yeah, I t h i n k so. I 

22 mean, t h a t should --

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t ' s the same 

24 language t h a t I had a question about above. I n t h i s 

25 case we are r e g i s t e r i n g but not p e r m i t t i n g . So yes, 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb19b22a1 ea 



Page 2606 
1 t h a t ' s f i n e w i t h me. 

2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So Theresa, the 

3 crossed-out language can be deleted. Then the next 

4 suggestion i s "The operator may u t i l i z e , w i t h 

5 approval of the appropriate d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t 

6 o f f i c e , standardized plans f o r below-grade tank 

7 c o n s t r u c t i o n and other plans which w i l l remain 

8 approved." So t h a t i s the same general language as 

9 the temporary p i t standardized plans as a r e g i s t e r e d 

10 below-grade tank. Do you agree w i t h using t h a t 

11 sentence? 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I agree w i t h t h a t . 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k so, yes. 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. Okay. Then we 

15 get t o m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s . 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: May I request a 

17 break? 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Let's take a break. 

19 (Note: The hearing stood i n recess at 

20 4 :11 t o 4 :25.) 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Back on the record. 

22 We were about t o go t o Section Paragraph 4 on 

23 m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s . Right o f f the bat 

24 we come across the appropriate engineering 

25 p r i n c i p l e s and p r a c t i c e s again. Do we want t o 
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1 delete t h a t language as we have f o r the other 

2 f a c i l i t i e s and have i t read, "The plan f o r a 

3 m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s h a l l f o l l o w 

4 ap p l i c a b l e l i n e r manufacturer's requirements"? 

5 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I would agree t o 

6 t h a t . 

7 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yeah. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay, Theresa? You 

9 got i t ? "The plan s h a l l include operating and 

10 maintenance procedures, closure, hydrologic data, 

11 i n f o r m a t i o n i n d e t a i l on topography, s o i l s , geology, 

12 hydrology t o enable the appropriate d i v i s i o n 

13 d i s t r i c t o f f i c e t o evaluate compliance." 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: E s s e n t i a l l y t o where 

15 i t says NMAC i s what we have f o r temporary p i t s ? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. And the next 

17 sentence, " I n the absence of s i t e - s p e c i f i c 

18 groundwater data" i s e s s e n t i a l l y the same t h a t we 

19 used there also. 

2 0 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The language i s 

21 e s s e n t i a l l y the same. Standardized plans. 

22 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. So the very 

23 l a s t sentence there i s a s l i g h t change t h a t I t h i n k 

24 we need t o be aware of. The paragraph p r e v i o u s l y , 

25 we had the plans approved u n t i l a subsequent plan i s 
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1 e i t h e r r e q u i r e d by the d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t o f f i c e or 

2 i s submitted and approved. This language at the 

3 very end doesn't t a l k about requirement by the 

4 d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t o f f i c e t h a t may be necessary. See 

5 what I'm saying? 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes, I do. I t h i n k 

7 you want t o adopt the language from Section 3. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So i t would read, "The 

9 operator may u t i l i z e , w i t h approval by the 

10 appropriate d i s t r i c t o f f i c e , standardized plans f o r 

11 p i t c o n s t r u c t i o n , p i t closure and other plans which 

12 w i l l remain approved u n t i l a subsequent plan i s 

13 e i t h e r r e q u i r e d by the appropriate d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t 

14 o f f i c e or i s submitted," so we would be i n s e r t i n g , 

15 Theresa, language -- the words " u n t i l a subsequent 

16 plan i s e i t h e r r e q u i r e d by the appropriate d i v i s i o n 

17 d i s t r i c t o f f i c e . " So the " e i t h e r " goes 

18 before "submitting." "Either r e q u i r e d by the 

19 appropriate d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t o f f i c e or i s 

20 submitted." 

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Change the 

22 appropriate -- r i g h t there, " e i t h e r r e q u ired by the 

23 appropriate d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t o f f i c e , " not j u s t 

24 d i s t r i c t o f f i c e . Right there. I n s e r t " d i v i s i o n . " 

25 That's e s s e n t i a l l y the same language we adopted. 
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CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Commissioner, Bloom, 

2 do you agree w i t h t h i s ? 

3 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes, I agree w i t h 

4 t h a t . 

5 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Now, the i m p l i c a t i o n 

6 i s t h a t m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s are 

7 approved at the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e l e v e l , not at the 

8 Santa Fe o f f i c e l e v e l . Just p o i n t i n g i t out. 

9 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So do we go t o closure 

11 plans? "A closure plan t h a t an operator submits i n 

12 an a p p l i c a t i o n or a r e g i s t r a t i o n . " Do you agree 

13 w i t h t h a t a d d i t i o n ? 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: A p p l i c a t i o n or 

15 r e g i s t r a t i o n ? 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. Because i t ' s 

17 saying t h a t we r e q u i r e closure plans f o r r e g i s t e r e d 

18 f a c i l i t i e s , which would include below-grade tanks. 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I thought we were 

20 s t i l l d e a l i n g w i t h the --

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Do we want t o go back? 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: No, I s t i l l have my 

23 head wrapped around the m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management 

24 p i t s . I'm sorr y . That sounds good, yes. 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, as you are s t i l l 
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1 m u l l i n g m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s , do we want 

2 a l i s t of we l l s t h a t are associated w i t h those 

3 m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s as pa r t of the 

4 permit? 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We have already 

6 decided t h a t they have t o have -- w e l l , I'm not sure 

7 i f we decided, but we were t a l k i n g about having i t 

8 t i e d t o APDs so there's already a l i s t of APDs. 

9 Most of those w i l l t u r n i n t o w e l l s . Do you t h i n k 

10 i t ' s important to- t r a c k which ones a c t u a l l y were 

11 d r i l l e d ? 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, we w i l l do t h a t 

13 w i t h the w e l l r e p o r t s , but i t ' s a matter of do we 

14 know at t h i s plan, the permit a p p l i c a t i o n the l i s t 

15 of w e l l s associated? 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I see. 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Look at our working 

18 d e f i n i t i o n of m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s . Up 

19 i n the d e f i n i t i o n s , almost up t o the very top. 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we say t h a t the p i t 

21 permit has t o l i s t a l l the w e l l s , but we don't put 

22 t h a t i n t h i s s e c t i o n concerning p e r m i t t i n g . 

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. I t h i n k t h a t ' s 
24 a p o i n t w e l l taken there. 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we do need t o 
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1 include t h a t sentence t h a t says t h a t the permit 

2 a p p l i c a t i o n . 

3 COMMISSIONER BALCH: You might want t o 

4 j u s t copy t h a t sentence from the d e f i n i t i o n . I 

5 would s t a r t w i t h " a l l w e l l s w i t h approved 

6 a p p l i c a t i o n s . " 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We can say i t slowly 

8 f o r her so she can w r i t e i t . 

9 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We w i l l do i t f r e s h . 

10 I t ' s i n C. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: At the top where i t 

12 says, "The plan s h a l l include operating and 

13 maintenance procedures, a closure plan and 

14 hydrogeologic data t h a t provides s u f f i c i e n t 

15 i n f o r m a t i o n i n d e t a i l , " what we w i l l i n s e r t i n there 

16 i s , "The plan s h a l l include operating and 

17 maintenance procedures, a l i s t of w e l l s associated 

18 w i t h the p i t " --

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Were we doing t h i s i n 

20 the context of the closure plan? 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, but the closure 

22 plan needs t o be included as p a r t of the permit 

23 a p p l i c a t i o n . "A l i s t of w e l l s associated w i t h " --

24 okay. "The closure plan and hydrogeologic data." 

25 I s t h a t where i t needs t o go? I s t h a t the language 
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1 t h a t we should use? 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Do we want t o 

3 reference the APD as we d i d previously? 

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: A l i s t of the we l l s 

5 w i t h approved APDs. 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Wells w i t h approved 

7 APDs. 

8 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Associated w i t h the 

9 p i t . 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: With approved 

11 a p p l i c a t i o n s f o r permits t o d r i l l . 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Then t h a t creates a 

13 l i m i t of two years; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

14 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: An APD i s approved f o r 

15 two years. There's an e x p i r a t i o n date. 

16 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: And the associated 

17 plan. 

18 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: And i f they want t o 

20 extend t h a t they have t o go t o hearing. So 

21 e f f e c t i v e l y there's a two-year l i m i t without 

22 o v e r s i g h t , without d i r e c t o v e r s i g h t . 

23 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

24 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So are we good w i t h 

25 t h a t whole paragraph? 
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1 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: They w i l l s t i l l get 

2 the APD approved and then f i l e the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

3 the m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s . Do we have 

4 any s o r t of guesstimate of what t i m e l i n e would look 

5 l i k e f o r that? 

6 COMMISSIONER BALCH: How long would i t 

7 take the process? 

8 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I f i t takes s i x 

9 months t o a year or something l i k e t h a t , i t cuts 

10 i n t o the two years p r e t t y hard. 

11 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: I t sure does. 

12 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I was wondering i f 

13 there's a way t o -- i f you want t o do something 

14 r e l a t e d t o two years of the spud date of the f i r s t 

15 well? 

16 COMMISSIONER BALCH: No, regardless --

17 w e l l , I t h i n k regardless we are lo o k i n g at t h a t 

18 two-year time of the APD without some s o r t of 

19 o v e r s i g h t . I f you t r y and t i e i t t o t h a t , then you 

20 have a s i t u a t i o n where they have t o be able t o b u i l d 

21 t h i s p i t . 

22 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes, they w i l l have 

23 t o apply, get the APD, apply and b u i l d i t . 

24 COMMISSIONER BALCH: But I t h i n k the idea 

25 i s t h i s i s not a semi-permanent t h i n g . I t ' s 

1 
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1 temporary f o r s t i m u l a t i o n , f o r example, on X number 

2 of w e l l s i n an area t h a t can b e n e f i t 1 from a s i n g l e 

3 large l o c a t i o n of water. I t h i n k two years i s s t i l l 

4 q u i t e reasonable even i f i t takes them s i x months t o 

5 get i t going. Because every year has t h a t two-year 

6 window, and you s t i l l have t o do s t u f f before you 

7 can d r i l l i t . You are never going t o s t a r t on day 

8 one of the APD. You are never going t o be d r i l l i n g . 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: One of the th i n g s t h a t 

10 we w i l l have t o address i n closure plans i s how long 

11 a f t e r the l a s t w e l l i s spudded do they have t o close 

12 the p i t . That comes l a t e r when we deal w i t h closure 

13 plans so we can give them an a d d i t i o n a l s i x months 

14 or whatever. I mean, whatever we come up w i t h f o r 

15 the time when do they have t o begin closure of the 

16 p i t . 

17 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k i n the 

18 d e f i n i t i o n we said "must be closed w i t h i n the APD of 

19 the l a s t -- w i t h i n the APD associated w i t h i t . " 

20 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: No, we say "may not be 

21 used -- and remain i n use u n t i l a l l w e l l s w i t h 

22 approved APDs i d e n t i f i e d i n the p i t permit are 

23 completed." That doesn't give a deadline of 

24 closure. 

25 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. 
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1 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Which we w i l l deal 

2 w i t h i n a l a t e r s e c t i o n . 

3 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I j u s t don't want t o 

4 add some language here which would burn the time 

5 t h a t the operator has, burn up some of t h e i r two 

6 years. I don't know i f there's any other way t o do 

7 i t though. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: As f a r as operating 

9 the p i t , I don't know i f there i s . I f we want t o 

10 use the APD t i m e l i n e , which i s e a s i l y regulated, and 

11 I t h i n k two years i s s t i l l generous even i f i t turns 

12 i n t o a year and a h a l f . Now, t e l l i n g them i t must 

13 be closed at t h a t date -- l i k e w i t h the closure plan 

14 you can add some time a f t e r the l a s t w e l l i s 

15 sti m u l a t e d . 

16 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. So we have 

17 accepted t h a t whole Paragraph 4? 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: For the second time. 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

2 0 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. C, Closure 

21 Plans. Closure plan t h a t an operator submits i n an 

22 a p p l i c a t i o n or r e g i s t r a t i o n ? We agree t h a t t h a t i s 

23 necessary language? 

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. Paragraph 1, 
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1 "Closure plans f o r m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s 

2 s h a l l describe the proposed procedures and prot o c o l s 

3 f o r the removal of a l l unused s t i m u l a t i o n l i q u i d s 

4 and the d i s p o s i t i o n of l i n e r m a t e r i a l s and other 

5 contents." Do we accept that? 

6 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That looks good. 

7 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Yes. 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: The next section, 

10 "Closure plans s h a l l be f i l e d w i t h the appropriate 

11 d i v i s i o n d i s t r i c t o f f i c e and i n accordance w i t h 

12 19.15.17.13." On Page 26 t h a t ' s the closure and 

13 s i t e reclamation requirements. 

14 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Okay. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we are a l l good 

16 w i t h that? Okay. 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I was j u s t wondering 

18 f o r the sake of consistency -- I don't know i f i t ' s 

19 worth the time, but we are lo o k i n g at permanent 

20 p i t s , f o r example. I t has the closure plan 

21 underneath i t and then temporary p i t s . I don't know 

22 i f they have a closure plan s p e c i f i e d . A c t u a l l y , 

23 t h a t does mention p i t closure. So i s C r e a l l y only 

24 addressing m u l t i - w e l l f l u i d management p i t s ? 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. Required i n 
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1 Subsection B. Subsection B deals w i t h a l l permit 

2 a p p l i c a t i o n s . 

3 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Okay. Most of the 

4 other ones have -- I t h i n k maybe except f o r 

5 below-grade tank mention a closure plan. I was 

6 wondering why C e x i s t s because permanent p i t and 

7 temporary p i t are already mentioned there on closure 

8 plans, r i g h t ? 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Well, we get i n t o the 

10 d e t a i l s of closure i n Section 13. 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Before t h a t we are 

12 j u s t saying you need a closure plan. Now we are 

13 t e l l i n g you what has t o be i n i t . 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: That's f i n e . 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Okay. Then there's 

16 the suggestion d e l e t i o n of paragraph, " I f the 

17 operator proposes an o n - s i t e closure." 

18 COMMISSIONER BALCH: This i s being 

19 scratched because o n - s i t e disposal i s being 

20 addressed i n a separate section? 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That's r i g h t . So do 

22 we want t o reserve discussion or do we want t o --

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We can reserve 

24 discussion. 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I t h i n k reserve 
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2 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We w i l l come back t o 

3 t h i s one. 

4 COMMISSIONER BALCH: We only have 15 

5 

6 

minutes. 

CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yeah. 

7 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: No. 2 , I don't know 

8 i f we can agree t o delete t h a t now. I t ' s 

9 unnecessary. 

10 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I f a l l of the u n l i n e d 

11 p i t s have been resolved. 

12 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: They should have been. 

13 COMMISSIONER BALCH: 2008 I t h i n k was the 

14 deadline. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we can agree t o go 

16 ahead and delete Paragraphs 2 and 3 completely? 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yes. Unlined 

18 temporary p i t s have t o be terminated by 2008? 

19 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Six months or a year 

20 a f t e r the 

21 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Same w i t h u n l i n e d 

22 permanent p i t s ? 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Therefore no unl i n e d 

24 permanent p i t s . 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So t h a t leaves us w i t h 
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1 f i l i n g of permit a p p l i c a t i o n t h a t we can t a l k about 

2 tomorrow along w i t h coming back t o CI, whether or 

3 not t o delete i t and coming back t o the language 

4 under temporary p i t s , which i s B2, whether or not t o 

5 delete the language "actual or p o t e n t i a l e f f e c t s of 

6 s o i l and surface water," etc. So other than those 

7 three areas do we have a motion t o --

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k 1 and 2 

9 should be h i g h l i g h t e d . And then D2. 

10 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Under temporary p i t s , 

11 2C. Next page. Yes, up above. 

12 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I don't have a 2C. I 

13 j u s t have a 2. I t ' s t h a t paragraph t h a t you are 

14 s c r o l l i n g through r i g h t now. 

15 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We w i l l come back and 

16 discuss t h a t . So other than those three, i s there a 

17 motion t o approve the agreements t h a t we reached i n 

18 the other paragraphs? 

19 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I got l o s t . We have 

2 0 a number of things pending. 

21 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: We have the language 

22 i n temporary p i t s . 

23 COMMISSIONER BALCH: That was the --

24 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Low c h l o r i d e f l u i d s . 

25 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: That goes back t o 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 
53c3cf5c-1 dec-4e80-a925-ffb19b22a1 ea 



1 the --
Page 2620 

2 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I'm sorry, we are 

3 t a l k i n g about t h i s c u r r e n t --

4 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Talki n g about t h i s 

5 sect i o n , Section 8 and Section 9. We are going t o 

6 work those together. So we made agreements f o r 

7 19.15.17.8 and 19.15.17.9 r e s e r v i n g c e r t a i n sections 

8 f o r f u r t h e r discussion, p a r t i c u l a r l y concerning 

9 language i n Section 9B2C. I n C --

10 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I don't have t h a t . 

11 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I t h i n k I am working 

12 from a d i f f e r e n t v e r s i o n than you. Maybe Mr. Bloom 

13 i s as w e l l . 

14 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Yeah. 

15 COMMISSIONER BALCH: For us i t ' s j u s t 

16 Section 2 and Dl and 2. 

17 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Section 2 i s the one 

18 phrase, r i g h t ? 

19 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Yes. Then the 

20 paragraph --

21 COMMISSIONER BALCH: The paragraph above 

22 Section D. 

23 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: So we have h i g h l i g h t e d 

24 those t h a t we need t o come back t o . 

25 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Correct. 
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1 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Do we have a mot i o n t o 

2 accept t h e o t h e r p o r t i o n s t h a t we made agreements 

3 on? 

4 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I would so move. 

5 COMMISSIONER BALCH: I would second. 

6 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: A l l i n f a v o r ? 

7 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: Aye. 

8 COMMISSIONER BALCH: Aye. 

9 CHAIRWOMAN BAILEY: Aye. No one opposed. 

10 We w i l l resume tomorrow a t 9:00 o ' c l o c k . Mr. Smith, 

11 you l o o k l i k e you are about t o say something. 

12 MR. SMITH: J u s t t o Theresa. 

13 COMMISSIONER BLOOM: I have one r e q u e s t . 

14 I f you c o u l d E-mail us our p r o g r e s s t o date on t h i s ? 

15 Thank you. 

16 (Note: The h e a r i n g was a d j o u r n e d f o r t h e 

17 day a t 4 : 50) . 
18 

19 
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reduced t o p r i n t e d form under my d i r e c t supervision. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY t h a t I am n e i t h e r employed by 

nor r e l a t e d t o any of the p a r t i e s or attorneys i n 

t h i s case and t h a t I have no i n t e r e s t i n the f i n a l 

d i s p o s i t i o n of t h i s case. 
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